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Letter to shareholders

Dear shareholders,

we are commenting on the past year through a single annual report that, in line with the
adoption of the Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), also integrates
environmental, social and governance aspects into the management report. In recent
years, Dexelance’s business model has progressively incorporated sustainability actions
into its strategy, governance and operational management. However, we would like to
emphasise that, in the past year, the Group has strengthened the consistency between
its industrial strategy and ESG objectives.

The Group’s coordination in operating in full respect of the ecosystem has been
fundamental to this effort, as it has placed further emphasis on the protection of the
surrounding environment through the reduction of our environmental impact, an
increased attention to the promotion of circularity and the efficient use of resources, as
well as the adoption of the work ethic that continues to characterise relations with all
workers and stakeholders.

Our commitment to foster the transition to a low-carbon economy continues; as last year,
the Group has quantified the inventory of GHG emissions generated by its operations,
according to the reference standard ISO 14064. It has broadened the scope of analysis to
fully coincide with the financial reporting scope and obtained certification from an
independent third party. This quantification led the emissions to be fully offset through
the purchase and retirement of credits on the voluntary carbon market, thereby
contributing to the financing of projects for the production of electricity from renewable
sources. Specifically, the purchased credits stem from a project to install plants for
generating electricity through renewable solar energy located in several states in India,
which will be connected to the Indian grid, which is mainly dominated by fossil fuel and
thermal power plants. We believe that the spread of such projects around the world can
truly have a tangible impact on the energy transition that we are being asked to face

worldwide. All credits purchased belong to the Programme Operator Verified Carbon



Standard (VCS), the most widespread and recognised standard in the international CO;
credit market.

We would, however, like to point out that our credit purchase activity does not replace
the Group’s future and soon to be finalised commitments to directly reduce its emissions,
nor its commitment to addressing the challenges of climate change. In fact, there are
several strategies aimed at energy efficiency, such as future investments for the
installation of energy self-production plants in addition to those already installed among

the Group’s production sites, in order to continue operating in a carbon neutrality regime.

2024 was also a year marked by complex and unpredictable events, which were also
aggravated by the continuing political and military tensions of the conflicts between
Russia and Ukraine and between Israel and Palestine, confirming yet again a strong
instability at a macroeconomic and geopolitical level, with the risk of inflationary
phenomena and speculative dynamics, as observed also in previous years.

The Dexelance Group ended the year positively, recording a turnover of EUR 324.1 million
(up from the result achieved in 2023), which was the result of a good organic growth of
4.3% by the Group’s companies. This is all in spite of the continuing negative trend in the
wood-furniture sector, down from the performance recorded during 2023, which affected
the European market the most.

Due to the investments made to support brand development and the inclusion of new
talent to strengthen the organisation, the year closed with an adjusted EBITDA of
EUR 50.9 million, equal to 15.7% of revenue, and an adjusted net profit of
EUR 23.2 million, equal to 7.2% of revenue.

With reference to M&A transactions, we recall that during the fourth quarter, the Group
carried out the agreements for the purchase of the remaining shares in Axo Light S.r.l.
This completed the Group’s consolidation in the strategic business area “lighting”, with a
view to greater organisational effectiveness and renewed synergistic interaction between
the companies.

Investments continue to be made to further strengthen the Group’s structure and to



achieve strategies in the areas of marketing, product development and sustainability that
will help us to outperform the high-end furniture market in 2025.

Growth of Dexelance confirms the strength of the business model, which pursues the
development and evolution objective of the competent, passionate team and the Group,
in order to make its offer even more well structured and complementary. The results
achieved despite the unfavourable external environment stem from Dexelance’s ability
to efficiently combine sustainability and operational performance, productivity and
ethics, and care for the environment, which is also the result of its valuable collaboration
with all stakeholders involved.

At the beginning of 2025, the environment remains complex and difficult to read. The
relevant market is expected to be substantially stable, but we are confident that we will
be able to continue to grow in hopes that the capital market will also be able to enhance
the Group’s excellent capacity for value creation.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our stakeholders for their continued
support, especially our shareholders, Board of Directors and, above all, all the people who
are part of this truly fantastic Group.

Thank you all,

Andrea Sasso

Lo
yuGa N
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Financial Highlights

The following table shows the Group’s main financial highlights (expressed in thousands
of EUR) as at 31 December 2024, compared to the results achieved in the previous year,
as if the acquisitions had taken place on 1 January of each year.

It should be noted that:

- The EBITDA was determined without considering non-recurring costs (adjusted
EBITDA);

- EBIT was calculated gross of the amortisation and depreciation of intangible assets
with a finite useful life recorded during PPA (Purchase Price Allocation) (adjusted
EBIT);

- The net result, on the other hand, was determined without the positive and negative
economic effects of imputed charges and the remeasurement of put and call options
and earnouts due to minority shareholders and the related tax effect (adjusted net

result).
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Revenue

2023 310.816

EBITDA

2023 54.317

EBIT

2023 42.134
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Gross result

2023 36.346

Net result

2023 25.562
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ESEF (European Single Electronic Format) compliance

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2024 have been prepared in the
XHTML format and have been marked in accordance with the provisions of the European
Commission's Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 and subsequent versions on
regulatory technical standards relating to the specification of the European Single

Electronic Format (ESEF).
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MANAGEMENT REPORT, CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 -
CONSOLIDATED SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

General Information— Basis for preparation — ESRS 2

Methodology note

Consolidated Sustainability Statement (or also the “Statement” or “Disclosure”) provides
the reader with clear, accurate, transparent and comprehensible information on the
environmental and social impacts generated by the Dexelance Group, as well as impacts
regarding personnel, respect for human rights and supplier relations management caused
directly or indirectly by the company, or to which it has contributed. It provides a
thorough understanding of the main risks associated with the Group’s business activities,
as well as its achievements and performance in the area of sustainability.

The Dexelance Group, as an organisation already subject to the non-financial reporting
obligation pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 254/2016, is subject to the obligations
arising from the new EU Directive 2022/2464 (the "CSRD Directive"), transposed into
Italian law by Legislative Decree 125/2024, which also expands the provisions of the
Taxonomy Regulation as of the fiscal year 2024.

[BP-1] GENERAL BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF THE SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
This Statement has been prepared in accordance with the European Sustainability

Reporting Standards (ESRS), specifically defined by EFRAG to meet EU regulatory
requirements under the CSRD. The qualitative and quantitative data and information
contained within this document refer to the financial year ended 31 December 2024. The
reporting scope coincides with that of the Dexelance Group’s Annual Consolidated
Financial Statements, meaning that it includes the financial reporting data of the parent

company (Dexelance S.p.A.) and the fully consolidated companies.*

4 For further details on this, please refer to the section “Operating Conditions and Business Development”
in the “Management Report Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements as at 31 December 2024 —
Economic and financial results”, included in this document.
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The information provided in this Sustainability Statement is prepared in such a way that
it includes information on the Group’s relevant impacts, risks and opportunities arising
from its direct and indirect business relationships in the upstream and/or downstream
value chain.

In this document, Dexelance has chosen not to report sensitive information of a strategic,
product-related nature, while making sure not to compromise the overall relevance of
the disclosure. The Group complies with its disclosure obligations by providing all other
information requested and having made all reasonable efforts to ensure that the omission
does not affect the Reporting's completeness and relevance of the report.

Dexelance did not make use of the exemption from the disclosure of information
concerning upcoming developments or matters under negotiation, pursuant to Articles

19 bis, paragraph 3 and 29 bis, paragraph 3 of Directive 2013/34/EU.

[BP-2] Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances Time horizons. In preparing the

Sustainability Statement, Dexelance adopts the short-, medium-, and long-term time

horizons defined by ESRS 1, as follows:

- Short period: one year, the period adopted as the reference for its financial
statements;

- Medium-term: up to five years after the end of the short-term reference period;

- Long term: more than five years.

The choice of time horizons was made to ensure a consistent assessment capable of

integrating sustainability into the company’s business. The short-term horizon, coinciding

with the annual accounting cycle, makes it possible to combine sustainability information

with financial data and to monitor the effectiveness of initiatives in a timely manner. The

medium term, which covers up to five years from the end of the short term, allows for

planning sustainable strategies, monitoring the achievement of relevant objectives and

assessing risks and opportunities within a more predictable time frame. Finally, the long

term, which exceeds five years, is crucial for considering long-term environmental, social

and governance impacts, including emerging risks such as climate change.
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Value chain estimation. As far as the organisation’s GHG calculation is concerned, the

collection of data, its processing and the subsequent quantification of emissions were
based on the core principles of the reference standard UNI EN ISO 14064-1:2018, which
has been adopted since the first year of this inventory’s calculation and reporting, i.e. the
financial year 2023.

For the purposes of the inventory calculation, data on significant direct and indirect
emission sources were collected, as well as the data required to process them.
Regarding to indirect emissions, Dexelance has defined a set of criteria to identify the
significant ones, which are subject to quantification and reporting. To do so, the following
criteria were considered:

e Magnitude: This criterion assesses the magnitude/volume of emissions on the basis of
already published studies for similar realities, or on the basis of qualitative-quantitative
assessments that include expert opinions and/or quick estimates.

e Level of influence and control: This criterion assesses the organisation’s ability to
influence the specific emission source. The objective of this criterion is to circumscribe
the indirect emissions on which the organisation can effectively intervene with reduction
plans, thereby avoiding efforts in reporting on aspects on which the ability to influence is
nil.

e Access to information: The aim of this criterion is to measure the availability of the
information needed to quantify the emissions associated with the source, so that an
assessment can be made of the effort-benefit ratio, cross-referencing it with information

on magnitude and the capacity to influence.

For the purposes of this report, the categories found to be significant, following the
application of the above criteria according to ISO 14064, have been transposed according
to the nomenclature and clustering provided by the GHG Protocol. More information on
the relevant categories and their associated GHG emissions can be found under the

“Energy and Emissions” section of the chapter titled “Environmental Information”.
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The data for the emission factors were quantified by measuring the physical data,
sampling or estimating the physical data, converting the economic data into physical data
or, for unavailable physical quantities, measuring the economic data. The emission factors
used consider all the main GHGs (i.e. CO2, CH4, N20O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6 and other
fluorinated gases), which were then translated into CO2e units using the characterisation
factors released by the IPCC (AR6 of 2021), the most authoritative institution on climate
change.

Sources of estimation and outcome uncertainty. Where estimates have been made in the

quantification of data with a high level of uncertainty, an appropriate indication is given
at the bottom of the relevant figure included in the relevant section. The Group
endeavours to monitor possible changes in regulations or reference standard used (e.g.
ISO 14064) in order to reduce the level of uncertainty of reported information whenever
possible.

Changes in preparation or presentation of sustainability information. Since this is data

presented for the first year of reporting according to ESRS Standards, Dexelance chose
not to state the comparative figure. Consequently, there is no change in the sustainability
information compared to the previous reporting period.

Reporting errors in prior periods. In addition, it should be noted that the introduction of

the new standards required the adoption of metrics and related reporting methods that
do not allow for comparability with data from previous years and the consequent
assessment of any material errors, the introduction of replacement metrics or other
changes.

Disclosures stemming from other legislation or generally accepted sustainability reporting

pronouncements. Other than the information required by ESRS, Dexelance did not include

information required by other legislation containing sustainability reporting requirements
or generally accepted sustainability provisions. Therefore, there are no references to
additional applied reporting principles or frameworks.

Incorporation by reference. The text includes, for each ESRS reporting obligation, a

referral to the “Management Report of the Consolidated and Separate Financial
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Statements as at December 31, 2024 — Economic and financial results”, with an indication

of the corresponding section.

Sustainability governance

[GOV-1] The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies. The

corporate governance system adopted by Dexelance is aimed at creating synergies
between the different companies and is geared towards ensuring a responsible and
transparent management of the Group. Since its listing, and as subsequently confirmed
by the Board of Directors in their meeting on 7 February 2024, Dexelance has adhered to
the Corporate Governance Code of listed companies approved in January 2020 by the
Corporate Governance Committee of Borsa Italiana.

This disclosure requirement is not applicable to the Group, as the number of employees
as of 31/12 is greater than 750.

Therefore, its governance model consists of a Board of Directors (BoD), which is
responsible for managing the company, supported by the Board of Statutory Auditors, a
supervisory body responsible for monitoring compliance with the law and company rules,
in addition to ensuring the adequacy of the company’s internal oversight systems and
organisational departments that monitor the directors’ compliance with the by-laws and
the law.

The BoD pursues the objective of creating sustainable value for the long term by defining
the strategies of the Group and its member companies and by monitoring, through
regular update meetings, the implementation and impacts of its management on the
company. The Board is also called upon to deliberate whenever the Company assesses an
opportunity for external growth, to ensure its adherence and consistency with the
Group’s development strategy.

As of 31 December 2024, the Board of Directors of the Group, unanimously appointed by
the ordinary shareholders’ meeting on 9 May 2023 and which took office after the
completion of the listing on 18 May 2023, consists of 11 members, six men (55%) and five

women (45%), of which 36% belong to the age 30-50 group, and the remaining 64 %, to
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the 50+ age group. 27% of the members of the Board of Directors of the Group are
independent. In addition to these 11 members of the Board, there is an Honorary
Chairman, who has the right to participate in all Council meetings, but without the right
to vote. The executive members within the bodies are Andrea Sasso (Chairman & CEQ)
and Giorgio Gobbi (Executive Director).

The Board of Statutory Auditors consists of three full members, one of whom is a woman,
and two alternate auditors, one of whom is a woman. Considering the total membership,
including full and alternate members, 20% of the members of the Board are in the 30-50
age bracket, and the remaining 80% are in the over-50 age bracket.

Andrea Sasso, Chairman of the Board of Directors, also holds the position of Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer. This position was confirmed unanimously at the
meeting on 23 May 2023, the first meeting held after the effective appointment of the
new Board of Directors. This meeting also confirmed the appointment of Giorgio Gobbi
as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, the independence requirements of the
independent directors, the appointment of the Lead Independent Director, and the
composition and chairmanship of the Board’s own internal committees.

The interests of the stakeholders, the diversity within the Board of Directors, and the
competencies of its members were taken into account by the aforementioned
shareholders’ meeting to warrant the appointment of the current Board, which will
remain in office until the approval of the financial statements as at 31 December 2025.
Further bodies established at the Shareholders’ Meeting of 9 May 2023, also effective of
downstream of the completion of the listing process are the Appointments Committee,
the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee and the Control, Risk, Related Party
Transactions, and Sustainability Committee.

There is no employee representation on administrative, management and supervisory
bodies.

The members of the bodies have extensive and consolidated experience in the business
sectors, the Group’s products and Dexelance’s target markets. Their careers have

developed in leading roles in areas such as finance, investment, private equity, corporate
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governance, marketing, operations and strategic development, with across-the-board
experience in leading national and international companies. With diverse and
complementary backgrounds ranging from manufacturing, design and retail to strategic
consulting and sustainability, each member brings distinctive skills that contribute to

Dexelance’s growth and innovation.
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Men Women Total

N % N % N %
CDAS 6 55% 5 45% 11 100%
Board of Statutory 2 66% 1 33% 3 100%
Auditors
Hiring, Human Resources, 1 33% 2 67% 3 100%
and Remuneration
Committee
Control, Risk, Related Party | O 0% 3 100% 3 100%
Transactions, and
Sustainability Committee
Total 9 45% 11 55% 20 100%

Table 1 — Percentages of members of administration, management and supervisory bodies broken down by
gender

Management, sustainability team, and management of IROs

The Board of Directors plays a control and approval role, drawing on the support of the
Board’s own internal committees for operational assessments. In particular, the Control
and Risk, Related Party Transactions and Sustainability Committee provides proposing
and advisory functions, thereby guaranteeing an adequate preliminary activity to support
the Board’s decisions on the internal control, risk management and sustainability system.
Given the key importance of sustainability, Dexelance has set up a central Sustainability
Team, consisting of an ESG Manager and an ESG Specialist, who work in close synergy
with the Group CFO, and with the ESG Ambassadors, who are the point persons at the
subsidiaries involved in implementing the actions concerning the sustainability objectives.
The ESG Ambassadors, supervised by the management of the subsidiaries, actively
cooperate with the central Sustainability Team to implement ESG strategies, thereby
ensuring coordinated and effective action on all sustainability issues.

On 17 December 2024, the Board of Directors approved the double materiality analysis
carried out for the purpose of the 2024 Sustainability Statement according to the new
Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), which identifies relevant Impacts,
Risks and Opportunities (IROs) for the Dexelance Group. Subsequently, on 29 January

2025, the Board of Directors examined the Group’s ESG Manifesto, a policy document

5> The average ratio of male to female members of the Board of Directors is approximately 1.3.
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drawn up to identify and communicate to all stakeholders, the pillars of Dexelance’s
sustainability strategy and the strategic lines that will guide the actions planned for the
coming years, and it approved the actions and objectives envisaged to this end in the
Group’s current Business Plan for the 2025-2027 three-year period. The planned actions
encompass environmental, social and governance dimensions, and they involve all Group
companies as a way to ensure an integrated and homogeneous approach.

The Business Plan was prepared in cooperation with the ESG Ambassadors, ensuring the
concreteness and feasibility of the defined initiatives. The objectives, which were
approved by Dexelance’s top management and the Board of Directors, were carefully
evaluated to ensure a close connection with the material IROs and to foster strategic
synergies and effective supervision.

Monitoring progress, either quarterly or half-yearly depending on the specificity of the
objectives, serves to continuously assess the progress of initiatives, mapping the
achievement of predefined deadlines and consolidating the Group’s commitment to
sustainability.

The Board of Directors has a control and approval role on issues of impacts, risks and
opportunities, and it receives support from the Control and Risk, Related Party
Transactions and Sustainability Committee. This committee performs a proposing and
advisory role, providing adequate preparatory work for the Board’s evaluations. In
particular, it supports the definition of sustainability guidelines, the periodic review of
impacts, risks and opportunities, and the monitoring of actions taken to manage them.
The central Sustainability Team is in charge of operationally supporting these processes,
also with the involvement of any external advisors who may be appointed at any given
time.

The Group’s management manages impacts, risks and opportunities through a
governance that takes place at two levels: top management,® which is responsible for the

overall strategy, and Group Management (i.e., the CEOs of subsidiaries), which is in charge

6 CEO, Managing Director, CDO, Corporate Development, IR & ESG Manager, CFO.
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of operational implementation. The central Sustainability Team works with the CFO to
coordinate the integration of ESG strategies with the support of the ESG Ambassadors.
Control and monitoring are entrusted to the BoD and the Control and Risk Committee,
which oversee the effectiveness of the actions taken.

The effectiveness of the Group’s governance mechanisms is supported by continuous
training and focus on developing the skills of its management and directors in the area of
sustainability. The company encourages the Group’s management’s participation in
events dedicated to sustainable development, and/or Dexelance’s participation in
awards, calls, projects and communities whose areas of focus also touch on sustainability
issues. In addition, the Control and Risk, Related Party Transactions and Sustainability
Committee and the Board of Directors receive regular reports from management on the
actions carried out by the Group with a view to sustainable development. At the same
time, formal and informal meetings are held with members of the Group’s management
and their direct reports on sustainability issues, in which any external advisors identified
at any given time who specialise in ESG issues may also take part. Lastly, starting with the
first one in 2024, a workshop on ESG issues will now be held annually, with the
involvement of certain roles and positions at the subsidiaries, the training material for
which has been and will continue to be shared with the Committee and the BoD.

[GOV-2] Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the

undertaking’s administrative, management and supervisory bodies. Dexelance’s central

management and the Board of Directors are routinely informed about relevant impacts,
risks and opportunities as well as policies and objectives, which are reported to them by
the Sustainability Team in the form of committees convened on an annual basis. Where
necessary, the Board of Directors is aligned with the results and effectiveness of policies
and actions carried out by the Group or individual subsidiaries.

The 2025-2027 Business Plan integrates the strategic lines in the field of sustainability that
emerged from the double materiality analysis, ensuring consistent alignment with the
pillars and strategic lines identified in the Group’s ESG Manifesto and with the needs of

the individual subsidiaries. In particular, the role of the Board of Directors is fundamental
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in identifying and pursuing the Group’s strategic objectives and evaluating the general
management performance, specifically taking into account the information received from
the delegated bodies. In the quarterly meetings dedicated to defining and reviewing the
corporate strategy, in conjunction with the assessments conducted for the Business Plan,
the administrative, management, and supervisory bodies address the issues relevant to
the Group arising from the identification of the most significant impacts, risks and
opportunities (IROs) for Dexelance. This allows for a thorough and balanced assessment
of any trade-offs between growth objectives, sustainability and long-term value creation.
The list of significant impacts, risks and opportunities faced by the administrative,
management and supervisory bodies during the reporting period can be found in the
section “Dexelance double materiality” in this chapter.

[GOV-3] Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes. No

incentive schemes linked to sustainability goals are currently offered to members of the
administrative, management and supervisory bodies. However, the Shareholders’
Meeting of 22 April 2024 approved the 'Performance Shares Plan Italian Design Brands
2024-2029’, an incentive plan based on financial instruments with a Vesting Period of
2024-2029 and as beneficiaries Dexelance’s Strategic Managers, namely the CFO, the
CDO, and the Corporate Development, IR & ESG manager, as well as the Executive
Directors, Andrea Sasso and Giorgio Gobbi. 20% of the units accrued by the Plan’s
beneficiaries are linked to ESG performance objectives. This was confirmed following the
approval of the 2025-2027 Business Plan, which, as described above, also includes actions
and objectives regarding sustainability issues. In addition, starting in the year 2025, with
reference to the objective "Implementation of an incentive system linked to ESG KPIs",
provided for in the current Business Plan, for the Group management, as well as for the
ESG Ambassadors, annual bonuses linked to sustainability goals will be provided.

[E1 GOV-3] Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes. No

sustainability-related incentive schemes are currently offered to members of the

administrative, management and supervisory bodies. The executive members, Andrea
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Sasso and Giorgio Gobbi, Chairman and CEO and Executive Director respectively, will be
offered incentive schemes linked to sustainability goals as described above.

[GOV-4] Statement on due diligence. At present, the Group does not have a formalised

and active due diligence system for sustainability, but it implements various controls that,
in fact, help to ensure the control and management of risks in relevant areas. The
adoption of standards such as ISO 14064 complements the other management systems
of some Group companies (ISO 14001, ISO 9001, and 1SO 45001).” This constitutes a real
safeguard for the management and control of environmental and social impacts. These
tools not only ensure compliance with applicable regulations, but also promote
continuous improvement, the identification of risks and opportunities, and the
implementation of corrective and preventive actions.

[GOV-5] Risk management and internal controls over sustainability reporting. In early

2025, Dexelance launched a procedure for drafting the Sustainability Statement to
formalise processes and controls in relation to sustainability reporting.

Considering the changing regulatory landscape in sustainability, the Dexelance Group has
worked to develop an internal control and risk management system for sustainability
reporting (ICSR), which includes processes, procedures and controls to ensure the quality,
reliability and transparency of the sustainability information. The system is integrated
with the Enterprise Risk Management process and is supported by the Internal Audit
Manager to verify the adequacy and effectiveness of all controls. The reporting work is
coordinated by the Group’s Sustainability Team, which manages the collection, analysis
and validation of data with the involvement of the ESG Ambassadors and the Data Owners
of the individual subsidiaries.

The Group uses the double materiality analysis to identify and prioritise sustainability
risks. In particular, the development of the financial materiality process is based on the
Enterprise Risk Management process and the annual updating of the Risk Register,

thereby harmonising sustainability risks with financial risks. Working in collaboration with

7150 14001: Gervasoni; 1ISO 9001: Gervasoni, Saba Italia, Flexalighting,Cubo Design; ISO 45001: Gervasoni.
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the CFO, the Sustainability Team conducts the assessments and presents the results to
the CEO, the Executive Director, the Control and Risk Committee, and to the Board of
Directors.

Some of the main risks that emerged involved physical climate risks that pose a significant
threat to both corporate infrastructure and the value chain. Another critical element is
the dependence on key raw materials, whose possible price increase or scarcity could
affect the Group’s production capacity and profitability. Waste management is also a
significant risk, as non-compliance with environmental regulations could expose the
company to financial penalties and damage its reputation, undermining the credibility of
its sustainability commitments. In terms of safety and human capital, the Group has
identified the risk of occupational accidents and illnesses, which could result from
exposure to hazardous substances and lead to additional insurance costs, as well as
repercussions on corporate reputation. Finally, dependence on key figures is a further
critical factor; the absence of succession plans for the Group’s management and strategic
roles could lead to a skills shortage and thereby compromise the quality of management
and competitiveness in the long run.

For each of these risks, Dexelance has identified mitigation strategies that will include the
adoption of formal policies and specific procedures that establish clear and consistent
guidelines for managing risks and defining roles and responsibilities to ensure that each
risk is monitored and managed by specific and qualified company figures. Control
procedures have been structured to ensure that business processes are carried out in
compliance with internal and external regulations, through an effective separation of
duties (SOD), avoiding conflicts of interest and improving the reliability of controls. In
addition, periodic risk assessment through audits and continuous monitoring allows for
the early detection of any areas of vulnerability and the adoption of corrective actions.
Risk analysis and internal controls are integrated into business functions through the
process of collecting and validating sustainability data. The Group’s Sustainability Team,
with the support of the ESG Ambassadors, coordinates the involvement of the operational

departments and the Data Owners, who are responsible for the accuracy and
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completeness of the information collected. The validation process involves the Group’s
Sustainability Team’s annual review of data, including the analysis of deviations from the
previous year through internal checks to ensure the information’s consistency and
reliability.

The results of the risk assessment and Sustainability Statement process are periodically
presented to the Group CFO, the CEO, and the Executive Director, who review and
approve the draft Sustainability Statement; to the Audit and Risk Committee, which
provides an opinion on the double materiality analysis and the content of the report; to
the Board of Directors, which approves the Sustainability Statement in conjunction with
the Annual Report; and finally to the Board of Statutory Auditors and the Independent
Auditors, which perform compliance checks on the sustainability information prior to

publication.

Sustainability strategy
[SBM-1] Strategy, business model, and value chain

The Group’s business area, products, and companies

Dexelance Group is active in the furniture and lighting sector. The 11 companies belonging
to the Group are divided into four strategic business areas (SBAs): “Furniture”, “Lighting”,
“Luxury Contract”, and “Kitchen & Systems”. Gervasoni, Meridiani, Saba Italia, Gamma
Arredamenti and Turri work in the “Furniture” strategic business area, providing a wide
range of products for interior and exterior furnishing; Davide Groppi, Flexalighting and
Axo Light belong to the “Lighting” strategic business area; the “Luxury Contract” business
area includes two companies, Modar and Cenacchi International, which focus on creating
bespoke, prestigious furnishings for luxury shops, showrooms, residences, hotels, and
offices; the "Kitchen & Systems" strategic business area features only Cubo, which is
dedicated to the design, manufacture and marketing of modular kitchen solutions and
systems through the brands Binova and Miton Cucine.

The operating segment mentioned above aligns with the information prepared in

accordance with IFRS 8, as reported in the "Strategic business area information" section
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of the “Management Report, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statement as of

December 31, 2024 — Economic and financial results”, of the Dexelance Group.

Strategic Business Area Company ‘ Products?

Furniture, sofas, sofa beds, rockers, lamps, beds,
Gervasoni benches, armchairs, poufs, chairs, stools, tables,
end tables

Sofas, sofa beds, armchairs, benches and poufs,
chairs and stools, tables, end tables, writing desks
and consoles, storage cabinets, beds, nightstands,

accessories

Meridiani

Furniture - -
Sofas, armchairs, poufs, chairs, stools, beds and

Saba ltalia .
sofa-beds, tables, and accessories

Gamma Arredamenti Sofas, armchairs, poufs, beds, tables, nightstands,
International lamps, accessories

Sofas, armchairs, sideboards, tables, chairs, end
Turri tables, beds, nightstands, benches and poufs,
consoles, accessories, lighting, office

Suspended, ceiling, wall, table, and floor lamps,

Davi .
avide Groppi recessed lamps, outdoor lamps

Indoor and hanging lamps, various types of
recessed lamps, path markers, projectors, linear
systems, ceiling and wall systems, RGB systems,

outdoor lamps (ceiling and ground recessed
lighting, path markers, ceiling and wall lighting,

projectors, and bollards)

Lighting
Flexalighting

Designer chandeliers, wall lamps, table
Axo Light lamps, pendant lamps, wall and ceiling lamps, floor
lamps

Production and installation of furniture for luxury

Cenacchi International .
shops, showrooms, offices, hotels, and homes

Luxury Contract - - - -
4 Production and installation of furniture for luxury

Modar . )
shops, residences, hotels, and offices

Kitchen & Systems Cubo Design Kitchens, storage cabinets, accessories

One of Dexelance’s objectives is to support the sales structures of its subsidiaries and to
promote growth and revenue acceleration also through expansion and increased
penetration into new markets. In 2024, the majority of Dexelance revenue was generated
from the retail channel, mainly due to the presence of the above-mentioned
independent, multi-brand stores located in more than 130 countries that feature the
Group’s brands. The remaining share of revenue comes from the B2B or “contract”
channel, in which Dexelance companies have specific expertise in various target sectors,

such as luxury brand retail stores and boutiques, residential, high-end hospitality, and

8 No products offered by Dexelance were found to be prohibited in certain markets.
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boating. In addition to the domestic market, the Group’s main areas of action are the
countries of Central Europe, such as France, Germany and the United Kingdom, and North
America, namely the United States and Canada.

For information on the number of employees per geographic area of the Dexelance
Group, please refer to the section “Characteristics of the Group’s people” in the chapter

“Social Information”.

Group Strategic Sustainability Guidelines and ESG Manifesto

In the course of 2024, Dexelance defined an ESG Manifesto, a policy document that
defines and formalises the pillars and strategic lines of Dexelance Group’s journey to
sustainability, which have been transposed by all the subsidiaries within the action plan
planned for the next three-year period and with the aim of tackling the main challenges
related to this issue, working on a common ground and taking into account the material
ESRS identified within the scope of the double materiality analysis. The company strategy
is structured around three macro-impact areas: environment, people, and ethical and
sustainable business management.

In the environmental field, the Group is committed to reducing the impact of climate
change by controlling climate-changing emissions and adopting energy efficiency
initiatives. Furthermore, Dexelance aims to make its own offices and warehouses more
sustainable through the adoption of responsible operating practices, and to disseminate
and promote the concepts of eco-design and circularity in product development activities,
by optimising the use of available resources, reducing waste and generally developing
more sustainable products throughout their life cycle.

As regards its people, Dexelance has committed to keeping the protection of human rights
and to promoting the creation of a fair and inclusive working environment at the centre
of its strategy, educating employees about the principles of equality, diversity and
inclusion and setting itself the goal of launching initiatives aimed at cultivating employee

satisfaction and motivation to promote their well-being and their professional
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development. The Group is also committed to strengthening ties with local communities
by contributing to the development of craft skills and to economic growth.

Finally, on the corporate management front, Dexelance will work to extend the Group’s
ESG commitments to further levels of the value chain by involving suppliers and partners
in responsible management practices. Finally, with the aim of consolidating its
governance structure, the Group aims to integrate more and more ESG criteria into its
decision-making and operational processes.

The ESG Manifesto and the strategic lines of Dexelance’s sustainability journey are
integrated with the Group’s strategy also with a view to the different segments to which
the subsidiaries belong. Specifically, for the companies belonging to Dexelance’s
Furniture, Lighting and Kitchen & Systems strategic business areas, the strategy is based
on the one hand, in terms of marketing and communication activities, on targeted actions
toincrease the visibility of the brands in the various channels and markets to support their
positioning within the competitive landscape of their respective sectors, and on the other
hand, in terms of distribution, on activities and tools dedicated to partners and resellers
that are increasingly performing and designed for the needs of different markets, all to
increase the degree of loyalty of the distribution network and establish a true long-term
partnership with the various Group companies. In terms of products, these companies
cultivate relationships with architects and designers to promote the creation of new
products and collections that are increasingly innovative in terms of function and quality,
long-lasting and with less environmental impact, terms of production and end-of-life and
disposal, as well as identity design, with the aim of embracing market trends that are
progressively evolving towards an increasingly holistic approach in the evaluation of
consumer brands.

As far as the Luxury Contract operating segment is concerned, the growth strategy focuses
more on expanding the customer base, while maintaining the very high quality of the
products and service offered to customers. This objective entails a continuous effort and
investment both in the company structures to make production processes more and more

efficient, flexible and sustainable from an economic standpoint, as well as in terms of
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reducing energy and emission impacts, to attract and train, technically and professionally,
new talent, thereby cultivating the internal know-how generated by the many years of
experience in the sector. The impetus from major customers, who are active in the world
of fashion and luxury jewellery and who are increasingly aware of sustainability issues,
acts as a strong driver for ESG engagement and implementation not only for the

companies in the Dexelance segment, but also for all upstream actors in the value chain.

Value chain

The Dexelance value chain was developed through a structured consultation process with
the point persons at the Group’s subsidiaries. These point persons provided a detailed
mapping of the stages that make up the respective value chains, as well as the products
and processes involved. The information gathered was then consolidated into a unified
representation of the Group’s value chain that takes into account the diversity of each
individual company and enhances the synergies between them. Through this approach,
the data presented are not the result of estimates, but derive directly from the in-house
know-how of the individual companies, which have made their knowledge and
operational experience available, thus ensuring a high degree of accuracy and reliability
to the analysis.

The Dexelance Group offers a diverse range of high-quality products and solutions with a
strong aesthetic, innovative and sustainable content. For customers and consumers,
Dexelance aims to provide distinctive, tailor-made solutions that emphasise
craftsmanship and technological innovation to deliver premium experiences in terms of
quality, functionality and design. Investors can benefit from a solid and diversified
business model, supported by a portfolio of prestigious brands and a strategy geared
towards sustainable growth and expansion in international markets. In addition, for other
stakeholders, the Group is committed to promoting responsible production practices,
favouring the circularity of materials, the adoption of low environmental impact
processes and the involvement of local communities, with the aim of creating shared

value and strengthening the Group’s long-term positioning.
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The products made by the Group’s companies may vary considerably, but the search for

excellence, quality of design, and attention to detail remains a common denominator

throughout the value chain. More specifically, the Dexelance Group’s value chain is

divided into three phases:

Upstream - Manufacturing & Procurement: concerns the primary activities preceding the

production and distribution of finished products. This phase comprises operations related

to raw material management, procurement and initial processing. The Group companies

carefully select suppliers of raw materials and semi-finished products — mainly in Italy —

to produce objects of excellence that help maintain the quality reputation of the Made in

Italy brand. More specifically, we find the following phases:

Procurement and processing of raw materials: the phase of obtaining and processing
of natural resources, in which the companies’ suppliers procure raw resources such
as marble, iron, feather, rubber, textile fibres, wood and chipboard, and then process
them to make them suitable for use in subsequent production stages;

Transport from suppliers of raw materials to suppliers of semi-finished products: the
transport of raw materials to suppliers of semi-finished products;

Creation of semi-finished products: the creation of semi-finished products from the
raw materials. The semi-finished products mainly used by Group companies include
painted materials, electrical components, wooden structures covered with
upholstery, upholstery fabrics, metals and glass;

Packaging production: the phase in which packaging is produced to enable the
product to be properly preserved during transport and sale. This phase involves the
use of packaging such as cardboard, bubble wrap, wood, polystyrene, and plastic
products (labels, envelopes, adhesive tape, etc.);

Inbound logistics: the transport of all elements to the companies to enable the next

stage of production.

The Dexelance Group’s Own Operations — Product Development and Production: this

covers the internal activities that Group companies carry out to develop new products

and manage production. This phase is considered crucial to ensure that the final products
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meet the needs of the market while reflecting the required standards of quality, image,

sustainability and competitiveness. In particular, this comprises the following activities:

Product design definition: this involves the aesthetic, functional and technical design
of the product, drawing on the expertise of architects, designers and other creative
professionals. In the process of defining the design, industrial designers and
architects work to ensure that the product is designed to have an aesthetic that is
consistent with the image of the Group’s various brands, a design that is functional
in use, excellent quality, functional to the durability of the product and, where
possible, a lower environmental impact of the product in all its life stages, starting
with the selection of materials with a lower environmental impact, such as recycled
and recyclable materials, and ending with the search for solutions that allow for easy
future restoration and reduce the need for new natural resources. At this stage,
attention is also paid to the efficiency of the production process and the reduction of
waste. The product design phase can be in-house or outsourced;

Research and development: the phase in which new materials and technologies are
tested with the aim of creating cutting-edge products that respond to market needs,
anticipating trends and offering solutions that meet high quality, high performance
and sustainability criteria. The research and development phase tends to be in-house;
Support processes: this includes the prototyping, testing and validation of designed
products. Once the product concept is defined, prototypes are developed to test
functionality, quality and performance. The prototyping phase allows for
modifications and optimisations before large-scale production;

Production: the phase that includes production planning (management of human
resources, machinery and raw materials) and the actual production processes
through the use of specific machinery or, in the case of products with a high
craftsmanship content, with the support of experienced, local craftspeople. This
phase is accompanied by specific checks to ensure the correctness of all operations.
As with design and R&D, some production steps may be in-house and others external,

depending on the type of product or the materials needed to make it;
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Product assembly and finishing: a process in which the various product components
that have been prepared in previous stages (such as production and semi-finished
products) are brought together to form the final product. Assembly can be
automated with machine or manual support. The aesthetic finishing is essential to
make the product attractive and conform to the required visual standards. This may
include sanding, painting, chrome plating or the application of surface treatments to
improve the product’s appearance. To improve the product’s durability and protect
it from wear, corrosion or environmental conditions, treatments such as galvanising
or powder coating (especially for metals) may be applied. Assembly and finishing
include the packaging stage, which ensures the integrity of the product during
transport and sale;

Production waste management: responsible waste management helps Dexelance
reduce its environmental impact, comply with waste regulations and improve the
overall efficiency of production processes. The types of waste most commonly
produced are material waste (e.g. metals, textiles, glass or wood), process waste (e.g.
chips, powders, paint waste), packaging waste (plastic, cardboard, plastics or filling
materials), and electronic waste (when production involves electronic components,
these can be circuits, wires, defective or obsolete electronic components). The Group
works to minimise waste generation through careful production planning and

process optimisation.

Downstream - Sales, Use & Waste Management: this refers to the phases following

production and covering the distribution, sale, consumer use of the product and, finally,

the management of waste and post-consumer materials. In particular:

Warehouse management: a phase that enables the company to optimise inventory,
reduce operating costs and improve overall efficiency;

Customer care: a phase that includes the management of orders, pre- and post-sales
advice, and the offer of warranties or support for the resolution of any problems

related to the products purchased;
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- Outbound logistics: transport of finished products to points of sale, with a view to
optimising costs and lead times;

- Sales to customers and consumers: in the retail channel, the Group mainly uses a
network of business partners to bring its products to the market. These business
partners may include multi-brand retailers, online shops, and distributors.
Sometimes, as in the case of Directly Operated Stores (DOS), the Group is directly
involved in the sale of products to consumers. Regarding the contract sales channel,
Dexelance directly reaches different types of B2B (business-to-business) customers;

- Use of the product by the end consumer: the phase of the product’s use by the end
consumer. For complex or technological products, manuals are offered to facilitate
the proper use of the product;

- Product end-of-life and waste disposal: the Dexelance Group promotes the circular
economy by providing instructions for maintenance and replacement of product
components. Some products that reach the end of their useful life can be dismantled,
and reusable materials, such as textiles, metals, plastics, can be separated for
recycling. As regards Lighting, even though dismantling instructions are not provided,
the consumer is provided with disassembly instructions that enable the identification
of the light source, in accordance with EU Regulation 1542/2023. This approach
ensures compliance with European regulations to facilitate the proper replacement
and subsequent recovery of components.

[SBM-2] Interests and views of stakeholders

Stakeholders and dialogue channels

Dexelance identified, through specific activities, the main stakeholders for its Group. They
are:

- Customers and consumers;

- Employees;

- Suppliers;

- Architects and designers;

36



- Health and safety in the workplace;

- Employee value and well-being;

- Trade unions and professional associations;

- Media;

- Partners and retailers;

- Local community.

Subsequently, for each stakeholder category, the main channels and tools in place to

ensure a transparent and timely dialogue were identified.
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STAKEHOLDER CATEGORY

Customers and consumers

MAIN CHANNELS OF DIALOGUE

Corporate website and social media
Direct contacts
Events and trade fairs

Internal communications (newsletter, intranet)
Company policies

Employees . ]
Business meetings
Channels of communication to the Supervisory Board under the 231 Model
. Direct contacts
Suppliers

Qualification and monitoring activities

Designers and architects

Collaboration on specific projects
Continued cooperation in the research and development of new products

Government bodies and public
administration

Documentary exchange

Shareholders and investors

e Shareholders' Meeting

e Annual and half-yearly consolidated and separate financial statements and
additional quarterly financial information

e One-to-one meetings and conference calls

e Participation in conferences dedicated to the financial community

Trade unions and professional associations;

e Dialogue
e Documentary exchange

e Corporate website and social media
e Press releases
e Management interviews

Partners and retailers e Direct contacts

Local community

e Corporate website and social media
e Donations and sponsorships

Dexelance has an ongoing interest in gaining an in-depth understanding of the interests
and opinions of key stakeholders as a way to ensure alignment with the company’s
strategy and business model. This enables it to identify and integrate their expectations
into business decisions. The Dexelance stakeholder engagement process is conducted in
the manner described in the table above. In particular, for 2024, the stakeholder
engagement process for the assessment of relevant IROs excluded the involvement of
external stakeholders, focusing instead on the activation and direct involvement of the
internal stakeholders. Specifically, a minimum of two employees in strategic positions
were involved for each Group company through company meetings, with the aim of
gathering qualified input and fostering a shared thought process. This process took the
form of a workshop held in the middle of the year that consisted of several stages: a
training session dedicated to ESG issues, an overview of the main market trends, and an
interactive part aimed at dialogue and discussion. During this last phase, participants had

the opportunity to explore hypothetical strategic developments for both individual

38




companies and the Dexelance Group as a whole, offering suggestions and perspectives
for the future. For a detailed analysis of the relevant impacts, risks and opportunities that
emerged, please refer to the section “Dexelance doublemateriality” in this chapter.

The results of the workshop and the ideas that emerged were carefully evaluated and
integrated into the definition of the Group’s sustainability strategy and actions. In
particular, the opinions gathered helped to further align the company’s strategy with the
expectations of internal stakeholders, strengthening the focus on issues such as
sustainable innovation, responsible end-of-life management of products, and the
cultivation of employee satisfaction, motivation, and well-being. This involved refining the
business model to ensure greater consistency with sustainability values and a more
effective integration of strategic priorities. The commitments identified as priorities
during the workshop were summarised as strategic lines in the ESG Manifesto and thus
also integrated as sustainability activities in the 2025-2027 Business Plan, for which
reason they will be implemented in the medium term. Key measures include initiatives to
strengthen sustainability governance, improve transparency towards stakeholders, and
develop dedicated projects aimed at reducing environmental impact and enhancing
human capital.

These measures are expected to strengthen the relationship with internal stakeholders,
increasing their involvement and trust in the Group’s strategic path. Incorporating their
views into the ESG Manifesto and the Business Plan will contribute not only to improving
internal alignment, but also to fostering a more participative corporate culture by creating
a continuous and constructive dialogue that can also positively influence the overall
perception of external stakeholders.

When the Business Plan was approved, the central management, the Group’s
management, the Audit and Risk, Related Party Transactions and Sustainability
Committee, as well as the Board of Directors of Dexelance were informed and updated in
detail on the results of the workshop organised with the internal stakeholders. During
these sessions, the opinions, suggestions and ideas that emerged from the participants

were presented. In addition, the Group’s management, administration, management and
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supervisory bodies are kept up to date on any needs that emerge from the different
channels of dialogue used, as well as on regulatory and market developments in order to
have a clear and thorough view of the interests and expectations of the stakeholders
involved, integrating them into the decision-making process and the definition of the

Group’s strategic priorities.

Dexelance Double Materiality

[SBM-3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and

business model

List of material impacts, risks and opportunities

The table provides a brief description of the relevant impacts, risks and opportunities that
emerged from the materiality assessment, specifying in the “value chain” column
whether they are concentrated in the company’s own operations or in the value chain,
both upstream and downstream. The description includes the current and anticipated
effects that these impacts, risks and opportunities have on the business model, value
chain, strategy or decision-making process, a description of how the negative and positive
impacts affect or may affect people and the environment, and reasonably expected time

horizons.
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A | Positiv Tim
IMPACT DESCRIPTION e Beitive/ Ny e chain me
Potential Negative horizon
The Group’s operations generate greenhouse gas
Contribution to emissions related to the use of non-renewable
climate cha.ng.e due energy_sourcgs in p.roductl(.).n.actlvq:les andin the Actual Negative Owr7 Short-term
to GHG emissions operation of its various facilities. Climate-changing operation
from own activities  emissions contribute to climate change and
generate impacts that are global in level.
Negative impact on climate change due to
Contribution to & P L & .
. greenhouse gas emissions from the operational
climate change due . . .
e activities involving the use of energy and fuels by Actual Negative Upstream Short-term
to GHG emissions . . Lo
R suppliers from which the Group obtains its
of Group suppliers .
supplies.
The negative impact on climate change due to Actual
greenhouse gas emissions produced by the
GHG emissions company’s logistics (road, ship, aeroplane, and rail) Upstream
from logistics and is determined by the use of fossil fuels for the Negative P Short-term
e . , Downstream
transport activities  transport of semi-finished products to the Group’s
facilities and of final products to customers (B2B or
B2C).
Negative impact on climate change due to Actual
reenhouse gas emissions associated with the use .
Product use & use g 15! . I . w ) Y Negative Downstream  Short-term
of some of the products (e.g. lighting) and, in
particular, with their disposal.
. The Group contributes to the depletion of raw Actual
Consumption and . . . .
. materials by purchasing materials from its .
depletion of raw . . . Negative Upstream Short-term
R suppliers such as timber, plastics, paper, metals,
materials . .
minerals, textiles, and leather.
Impact on The Group’s activities involve the generation of
environmental waste (e.g. leather, textiles, paints, and plastics . . Own Medium-,

. - (. & . P P ) Potential Negative . /
quality due to which, if not disposed of properly, can have a operation long-term
waste generation negative impact on the quality of the environment.

Impact on The activities of the Group’s suppliers result in the
environmental eneration of waste which, if not disposed of . . Medium-,

. & L P . Potential Negative Upstream /
quality due to properly, can have a negative impact on the quality long-term
waste generation of the environment.

The Group manufactures and sells products, such
End-of-life as lighting fixtures, sofas and tables, which, by
. their nature, cannot always be reused or recycled, . . Medium-/
environmental . - . . Potential Negative Downstream
impacts generating a significant environmental impact long-term
P related to the end-of-life management of these
items by the user-customers.
Non-responsible management of employees with
Failure to protect respect to working hours and failure to ensure own
the welfare of adequate wages can increase stress and fatigue, Potential Negative operation Short-term
employees compromise physical and mental health and hinder P
a proper work-life balance.
Due to the particularities and diversity of the
activities carried out by the Group, employees may
be exposed to cases of accidents related to the
Negative impact on  handling and processing of products, including own
employee health contact with hazardous chemicals (e.g. paints, Actual Negative operation Short-term

and safety

substances for the surface treatment of materials
such as waterproofing agents, and waxes) and
potentially harmful substances, with a consequent
negative impact on their health.
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The Group may not ensure an adequate degree of
skill development of its employees to perform
management (e.g. soft skills, leadership) and

Lack of employee . . . . Own
. ploy operational tasks (e.g. carpentry, cutting and Potential Negative . Short-term
skill development . . . operation
sewing, painting, etc.) through adequate technical
training, which may negatively affect the
professional growth of employees.
Through philanthropic initiatives, such as financial
Supporting local donations, support for social projects and
communities charitable work, the Group demonstrates a true
through charity, commitment to the welfare of the various .

. .. . o . Medium-/
cultural and artistic  communities in which it is present. These activities ~ Actual Positive Downstream lone-term
promotion and contribute to meeting local needs, promoting &
environmental social and economic development and
protection projects.  strengthening the link between the company and

the local area.
Non-compliance Potential non-compliance with minimum standards
with ESG criteria of ethical conduct along the value chain with . . Medium-/
. . . . Potential Negative Upstream
along the supply potential need to sever relationships with key long-term

chain

suppliers for the Group’s activities
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RISK

DESCRIPTION

Dependencies

Value chain

Time

horizon
The risk that acute climatic phenomena (e.g. floods
Physical and extreme rainfall, floods, earthquakes, landslides,
. . L . , Natural resources
climate etc.) may impact, limit or interrupt the Group’s o .
. A o Contribution to climate change Own
risks for the  activities due to structural damage and/or limited . . Short-term
, . . . due to GHG emissions from own operation
Group’s access to company sites with economic activities
operations repercussions on operations (higher costs and/or
lower sales).
The risk that acute and chronic climatic phenomena
e Natural Resources
. (e.g. droughts, floods, variability in weather o .
Physical L Contribution to climate change
. patterns, and rising temperatures) may cause the . .
climate I . due to GHG emissions of Group Upstream - Medium-
R temporary unavailability of raw materials and/or .
risks for the . . . suppliers Downstream term
. semi-finished products with consequent negative . .
value chain . ) GHG emissions from logistics
effects in terms of lower sales revenue and/or higher o
. and transport activities
operating costs.
The risk arising from the inability to rationalise
production and optimise the use of key raw
Dependenc materials such as timber, plastics, paper, metals,
. . e . Natural Resources .
e on key minerals, textiles, and leather. The difficulty in . . Medium-
. . Consumption and depletion of Upstream
raw reducing dependence on these resources, which . term
. . raw materials
materials could become scarce or expensive, could lead to
increased operating costs and compromise the
Group’s production capacity.
Failure to comply with waste management
regulations, due to the use of improper disposal
methods or failure to adhere to regulations and
Incorrect s .
guidelines, could expose the Group to fines, Human resources .
waste . . . . . . Own Medium-/
penalties and a loss of credibility with regard to its Impact on environmental quality .
manageme . . . . operation long-term
nt environmental sustainability commitments. Such due to waste generation
breaches could have significant consequences that
would affect both the business and the company’s
reputation.
The risk that workplace accidents or the occurrence
Workplace of occupational illnesses (e.g. related to employee
accidents or  exposure to hazardous chemicals) may expose the Negative impact on employee Own Medium-
occupationa  Group to extra costs (e.g. reimbursements, health and safety operation term
lillnesses insurance premiums, etc.) that generate economic
and reputational damage.
The risk that the absence or ineffectiveness of
succession plans for the Group’s key personnel (e.g.
top management, managers, designers and creators)
could lead to a shortage of critical skills, resulting in
Dependenc  higher personnel replacement costs and/or lower
P gher p . P o / . Lack of competence Own
e on key revenues associated with inadequate service levels. . Short-term
L - . . . development of employees operation
figures Furthermore, the difficulty in ensuring managerial

succession could weaken the quality and
effectiveness of management, undermine
competitiveness and reduce the capacity for
strategic development.
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OPPORTUNITIES DESCRIPTION Value chain Time horizon

Opportunities arising from the
modernisation of buildings (e.g.

energy efficiency of production Own operation
Production/showroom facilities and/or showrooms) and
modernisation and energy self-production of energy from Short-term

supply

renewable sources, resulting in
reduced operating costs and the
Group’s improved reputation
and attractiveness to investors.

For more information on how the Company plans to respond to the current and predicted
effects of its own significant impacts, risks, and opportunities, please refer to the section
“Sustainability strategy” in this chapter.

For the current reporting year, there were no material current financial effects associated
with the identified material risks. Nevertheless, the Group has already implemented
several prevention measures, including insurance coverage tied to physical climate risks
and to workplace accidents and occupational illnesses, and long-term incentive plans to
encourage the retention of key figures. To date, no significant impact on the business
model or production factors adopted is expected. For more details on the financial
impacts of climate risks, please refer to relevant section “Risks tied to climate change” in
the “Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December
2024”.

For the current financial year, the Group uses the phase-in as set out in Appendix C of
ESRS 1, which provides for the omission of information on expected financial effects.
Dexelance has not yet formalised a specific resilience plan to address relevant impacts
and risks, nor has it conducted a quantitative analysis of its adaptive capacity. However,
as part of its commitment to a structured approach to sustainability, the Group has
defined time horizons for assessing impacts, risks and opportunities in the short, medium
and long term, in line with ESRS standards. The time horizon considered for current
impacts is the short term (i.e., one year), as the nature of these impacts requires constant
monitoring and timely management. This methodological choice reflects the Group’s

need to assess the immediate consequences of business activities, ensuring effective
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alignment with control tools, operational strategies and the management of the related
impacts.

Following the revision of the materiality analysis, carried out by integrating the concept
of Double Materiality, the impacts were reconsidered and re-evaluated compared to the
previous reporting year. This process made it possible to adapt the identified impacts to
the specificities and dynamics of the new year, ensuring a timely update consistent with
the evolution of the operating environment and the Group’s strategic priorities.

It should be noted that specifically the positive impact “Support to local communities
through charity, cultural and artistic promotion and environmental protection projects”
identified as significant by the company, was not associated with any ESRS scope, but it
was considered as specific to the company. Impact refers to Dexelance’s ability to
generate positive effects on external stakeholders through its support of local
organisations, mainly in the cultural and artistic sphere. For more information, please

refer to the chapter “Entity-Specific Information”.

[IRO-1] Description of the process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and
opportunities

Double Materiality Process

The process adopted to identify and assess impacts, risks and opportunities (IROs) is

based on the double materiality methodological approach, as required by the CSRD

regulation and supported by the EFRAG IG 1 Guidelines: “Materiality Assessment

Implementation Guidance”. This approach combines the analysis of the impacts

generated by the company on people and the environment with the assessment of risks

and opportunities, which echoes the analysis and assessments of the company’s

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) that could affect financial performance.

The Double Materiality methodology followed a structured process that includes:

1. Understanding the organisation’s context: identification of ESRS topics related to
areas of sustainability inherent to the Group’s business, taking into account value

chain mapping and the internal and external context analysis conducted by
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considering ESG strategies and best practices for the sectors, regulatory drivers and
requests from ratings agencies (Sustainalytics, MSCI, CDP, and S&P Global);

2. Identification of Impacts Risks and Opportunities (IRO): identification of the
impacts, risks and opportunities associated with ESRS Topics, achieved through the
formalisation of a long list of potentially relevant IROs. This process took into account
both the results of the previous impact materiality analysis, supplemented with the
outcomes of stakeholder engagement activities conducted with the Management
and the Group’s ESG Ambassadors. The evidence from the company’s Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM), carried out by the Risk Assessment Office, was also analysed,
and the objectives, actions and commitments outlined in the 2025-2027 Business
Plan were considered;

3. Assessment of IROs: definition of the methodology and assessment of impacts
(impact materiality) and risks and opportunities (financial materiality) with the
subsequent definition of the short-list of IROs deemed material. The evaluation of
the short-list was carried out through workshops and specific meetings involving the
Group’s central management.

The monitoring of sustainability-related risks and opportunities, that have or could have

financial effects, is integrated within the company’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)

process.

The assumptions adopted in the evaluation of each IRO were based on data available

internally within the company, allowing for a relevance analysis contextualised to the

nature of the sector in question.

Impact materiality

Considering the Dexelance’s entire perimeter, the identification of impacts took into
account the specific context (both in terms of geography and business) in which the
individual subsidiaries of the Group operate, also considering the diversity of countries,

the typology of sites, and the business models.

46



By mapping the upstream and downstream value chain, with a specific focus on the type
of suppliers and type of supply, impacts related to the Group’s business were identified.
To this end, each impact was classified taking into account the three levels of contribution
generated by Dexelance — caused, contributed and directly related® — in line with
international due diligence principles, to ensure a complete and thorough assessment of
the relevance and priority of the identified impacts.

Taking due account of the information gathered during the understanding of the context,
the current and potential positive and negative impacts related to environmental, social
and governance issues were identified. To this end, an internal stakeholder engagement
activity was carried out with the involvement of several management figures from Group
companies, in the form of the aforementioned workshop held in mid-2024.

During the assessment, in line with the requirements of ESRS 1, section 3.4, “Impact
Significance”, specific thresholds were defined for impacts with reference to the
assessment dimensions: severity of impact and likelihood of occurrence in the short,
medium and long term. In particular, the severity of each negative impact was assessed
on a four-level scale for “scale” (negligible, moderate, significant, very significant) and
“scope” (limited, medium, extensive, very high), and on a three-level scale for
“irremediable character” (remediable impact, partially remediable, irremediable). For
positive impacts, the possible benefit was assessed on a four-level scale for “scale” and
“scope”. The probability scale was defined with values defined on five levels (rare,
unlikely, possible, probable, very probable), where the maximum probability of
occurrence corresponds to the occurrence of a current impact.

The overall significance of an impact is the sum of the three components of severity

multiplied by the probability component.

Financial materiality

° For more information, please refer to FAQ 2 of the document “EFRAG IG 1: Materiality Assessment
Implementation Guidance”.
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The Group has adopted an integrated approach that systematically considers the links
between impacts, dependencies, risks and opportunities throughout the value chain. This
process is based on an in-depth analysis of the interactions between the company’s
activities, business relationships and the socio-economic environment in which the Group
operates. In particular, Dexelance, following the definition of dependencies in ESRS 1, RA
14, assessed how its impacts — both positive and negative — can generate risks, such as
potential operational, reputational and/or financial damage, and/or opportunities, such
as innovation, improved operational performance and stronger stakeholder relations.
This assessment took into account critical dependencies on the natural and social
environment.

The Group has assessed the likelihood, magnitude and nature of the effects of the
identified risks and opportunities, through a structured approach that considers three
main aspects: economic-financial, operational and reputational. The magnitude is divided
into five levels (Marginal, Low, Medium, High, and Critical), defined according to
guantitative criteria that consider the impact on revenues and EBITDA, and qualitative
criteria, meaning how reputational and operational issues might impact the expected
change in costs or revenues. At the same time, the probability assessment examines the
frequency with which the event has occurred in the past and/or the likelihood that it may
occur along the short-, medium- or long-time horizon following the definition of time
horizons in ESRS 1, Section 6.4.

From an operational point of view, the effects on business processes were analysed, with
particular attention to their critical nature and the need for Management’s intervention,
also measuring the duration of any potential interruption of key processes. At the
reputational level, the Group assessed potential damage to the brand image, both locally
and globally, taking into account media resonance and stakeholder expectations.

For more information on how the probability, magnitude, and nature of the IROs
identified were kept into account in conducting the impairment test at 31 December
2024, please refer to the section “Intangible assets” in the “Explanatory Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2024”.
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To assess and monitor these risks proactively, the Group has integrated its own risk
assessments, which also considered sustainability-related risks, including ESG
(environmental, social and governance) issues into its strategic guidelines, and integrated
the impacts, risks, and opportunities identified within the Group’s “Risk & Opportunity
Universe” consistently with the risk management model adopted by Dexelance according
to the practice of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM).

For details on the decision-making process and related internal control procedures, please
refer to the section “Sustainability Governance” in this chapter.

In 2024, the process of identifying, assessing and managing impacts and risks was further
strengthened with the launch of the creation of an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
Framework, a comprehensive company risk management system that enables the
development of a consistent and systematic approach, under the supervision of the
Internal Audit Manager. This integration has and will enable the alighment of the
management of impacts and risks, and the related dependencies, with the Group’s overall
risk profile, fostering a unified and strategic vision. Through the evaluation of scenarios
and identification of priorities, the process contributes to the definition of corporate
strategies, supporting informed decisions and the optimisation of mitigation processes.
The identification, evaluation and management of opportunities is incorporated, where
relevant, into the overall Group management process. This allows potential synergies
between dependencies with the IROs to be exploited, ensuring that emerging
opportunities are considered within the strategic and operational framework. The
integrated structure facilitates a proactive approach, which aims not only to mitigate
risks, but also to capitalise on opportunities in line with business objectives and the

market environment.

Parameters, Estimates and Changes in the Materiality Analysis

The input parameters used in the process of identifying and assessing the IROs associated

with sustainability are based on a multi-level approach. In understanding the context, the
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Group has used data from public documentary sources and industry standards
corroborated by internal analyses. The second phase, dedicated to the identification of
IROs, involved the integration of a diversity of parameters to capture the complexity of
the Group’s business, including the geographical and business diversity of the various
subsidiaries. In the assessment phase of IROs, the process focused on minimising the use
of estimates, preferring the use of hard data and shared assumptions, consistent with the
methodological definitions of the Materiality Assessment Implementation Guidance
(EFRAG). As was described earlier, specific methodologies have been defined for assessing
the materiality of impacts (impact materiality) and risks and opportunities (financial
materiality), the thresholds for which have been described in the preceding paragraphs.

The analysis has been changed from last year, moving from an approach based solely on
impact materiality, in accordance with the GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) standard to an
assessment integrating the financial dimension, in accordance with the double materiality
requirements of the CSRD. This adjustment has entailed a substantial revision of the
evaluation process, which was updated in 2024 to ensure alignment with the new
regulatory standards. The main changes include the integration of the financial
perspective alongside the impact perspective and the adoption of updated analysis
criteria and tools. The next review of the process is scheduled for 2025, barring any
extraordinary circumstances, such as significant acquisitions or divestments that might

require an earlier update.

Non-relevant ESRS topics

ESRS 2 |IRO-1 - Description of the processes to identify and assess material pollution-

related impacts, risks and opportunities The approach for determining impacts, risks and

opportunities is described in the section “Description of the process for identifying and
assessing significant impacts, risks and opportunities”. The issue of pollution was
evaluated in the context of the Group’s activities, considering both its financial
significance and the potential negative impact on stakeholders and the environment.

Although no detailed analysis was conducted on corporate sites, the analysis of the

50



company’s own operations and along the value chain revealed that the topic does not
present any risks or opportunities that could materially affect the Group’s financial
performance or generate significant negative impacts that would make it a relevant ESRS
topic for reporting purposes.

ESRS 2 IRO-1 — Description of the processes to identify and assess material water and

marine resources-related impacts, risks and opportunities The approach for determining

impacts, risks and opportunities is described in the section “Description of the process for
identifying and assessing significant impacts, risks and opportunities”. The ESRS E3 topic
with its related subtopics and sub-subtopics was analysed considering both its financial
relevance and potential impact of the Group’s operations and value chain. The
assessment was based on the operational characteristics of the Group’s companies, which
do not tend to use water in production processes (with the exception of Cubo Design,
which uses water for some production processes, but in insignificant quantities) and with
respect to the characteristics of the main production processes that use water within the
value chain. However, a detailed analysis of the assets was not conducted, nor were
specific consultations with the communities concerned. In light of these considerations,
it was assessed that the topic does not present risks or opportunities that would
significantly affect the Group’s financial performance or generate material adverse
impacts, and, therefore, it was not identified as a relevant ESRS topic for reporting

purposes.

ESRS 2 IRO-1 - Description of processes to identify and assess material biodiversity and

ecosystem-related impacts, risks and opportunities

The approach for determining impacts, risks and opportunities is described in the section
“Description of the process for identifying and assessing significant impacts, risks and
opportunities”.

The topic of biodiversity was analysed considering the Group’s operations and their
potential impact, as well as the related dependencies on environmental resources and on

current and future generations, with a focus on the availability of natural resources. The
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analysis showed that, even though wood materials are one of the main materials
purchased by the Group, in reality only 5% of the wood materials purchased are virgin
wood, meaning wood that comes directly from trees and not from a previous use. In fact,
most of the wood materials purchased by Dexelance comprise wood panels, which are
materials derived from the secondary processing of virgin wood, which is the result of
recycling or the reuse of waste wood (e.g. chipboard).

With respect to impacts on biodiversity along the value chain, these are characterised by
a non-specific geographic scope and are mainly attributable to the upstream phase of the
Group’s value chain, generated by Tier 3 suppliers with whom the Group has indirect
relationships. The use of recycled and FSC® (Forest Stewardship Council) certified
materials, promoted by some Group companies such as Gervasoni, Cenacchi, Modar and
Cubo Design, significantly reduces the direct or indirect link with deforestation activities.
Although no detailed analysis (analysis of scenarios related to biodiversity and
ecosystems) and no consultations with affected communities have been conducted, the
analysis of the Group’s own operations and along its value chain revealed that the topic
does not currently present any risks or opportunities that could materially affect the
Group’s financial performance or generate significant negative impacts that would make

it a relevant ESRS topic for reporting purposes.

Description of processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks, dependencies and

opportunities related to social aspects

The Group has not identified any relevant IROs with regard to the issue of affected
communities; therefore, it has not investigated their interaction with its strategy and
business model. An analysis of the company’s business activities was nevertheless
performed, which showed that, with respect to the topics and subtopics related to the
ESRS S3 theme, the topic does not present risks or opportunities that could materially
influence the Group’s financial performance or generate significant negative impacts that

would make it a relevant ESRS topic for reporting purposes.
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As a result of the analyses conducted, the Group did not identify any material impacts,
risks or opportunities (IROs) in relation to the issue of workers in the value chain that
would justify its reporting according to ESRS standards. This analysis took into account
that the majority of the Group’s procurement budget comes from suppliers within the
Italian perimeter. In Italy, occupational health and safety is regulated by the Legislative
Decree 81/2008 (Consolidated Workplace Safety Act), which imposes strict requirements
to ensure worker protection. Supplier companies are obliged by law to comply with these
standards, and failure to do so results in penalties. This makes working conditions that
pose a significant risk to health and safety unlikely. Furthermore, it is hereby emphasised
that, although the Group does not yet have an ESG monitoring/ranking system for
suppliers, the Group’s knowledge of working conditions at its suppliers is based on routine
site visits to its suppliers. In addition to the Group, Italian inspection agencies, such as the
INL (National Labour Inspectorate), carry out regular checks to ensure compliance with
regulations. This control mechanism minimises the risk of unsafe working conditions in
local suppliers and the possible negative impact along the value chain. Finally, in the
Group’s supplier base, considering the nature of the work, there are many artisans or
small manufacturers and suppliers operate mainly in sectors with low to medium risk
levels (e.g. non-intensive production and/or processing of non-hazardous products and
substances), which further reduces exposure to serious health and safety hazards.
Therefore, the Group considers that the topic does not present materiality elements that
would require reporting under the ESRS standards.

As a result of internal assessments, the Group has not identified any significant impacts,
risks or opportunities (IROs) in relation to the issue of Customers and Consumers. The
absence of significant IROs is attributable to the sector in which Group companies operate
and the existence of well-established controls and processes aimed at guaranteeing the
quality and safety of products and services and the protection of customer data to ensure
compliance with applicable regulations. On the basis of these elements, it is deemed that
the issue does not present impacts that would materially affect the Group’s financial

performance or generate significant negative effects on customers and consumers.
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Consequently, the topic is not considered material for reporting purposes according to

ESRS standards.
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Environmental Information - ESRS E1 and ESRS E5

Climate change

IMPACTS, RISKS and
OPPORTUNITIES

Value chain

Time horizon

Contribution to climate change due

to GHG emissions from own Impact Own operation Short-term
activities
Contribution to climate change due
to GHG emissions of Group Impact Upstream Short-term
suppliers
GHG emissions from logistics and Upstream -
- g Impact P Short-term
transport activities Downstream
Physical Climate Risks on Grou . .
v . P Risk Own operation Short-term
Operations
Phy.5|cal climate risks on the value Risk Upstream - Medium-term
chain Downstream
Production/showroom . .
/ Opportunities Own operation Short-term

modernisation and energy supply

Dexelance is aware of the urgency of addressing climate change challenges and is
committed to contributing to a transition to a low-carbon economy. In this regard, already
as of the year 2023, and subsequently with reference to the year 2024, a new “base year”
by virtue of the extension of the reporting perimeter to coincide fully with the financial
consolidation perimeter, the Group has started a process to quantify the inventory of GHG
emissions generated by its operations, which was conducted according to the reference
standard ISO 14064 and certified by an independent third party. This quantification
allowed Dexelance to fully offset its emissions through the purchase of credits on the
voluntary carbon market, which has contributed to the financing of projects for the

production of electricity from renewable sources.

Information on environmental impacts, risks and opportunities

[ESRS 2 IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and assess material climate-related

impacts, risks _and opportunities. The approach for determining impacts, risks and

opportunities and the list of IROs on climate change factors considered relevant can be
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found in the section “Dexelance double materiality” in the “General Information” chapter.
To identify current and potential impacts related to climate change, the Group examined
the operational activities carried out internally and along its value chain, identifying the
main sources of emissions by taking into account both the production and processing,
from upstream to downstream, as well as all inbound and outbound logistics activities.
Actual and potential impacts on climate change were assessed by taking into account total
GHG emissions including Scope 1, 2 and, where possible, Scope 3. The recognition of the
Scope 3 categories was carried out in accordance with the GHG Protocol to ensure the
accuracy and comparability of the data. This process also considered the requirements of
EN ISO 14064, for which the Group has obtained the relevant certification. For more
information on the relevant categories, please refer to the section “Energy and Emissions”
in this chapter.

Physical climate risks were identified and assessed on the basis of the historical
probability of their occurrence and the developments and changes under way, also with
regard to new regulations and standards. The company’s resources, including its
properties, facilities, and equipment, were analysed to assess their exposure to these
risks, with reference to extreme weather phenomena that may have already occurred in
the Group’s subsidiaries, and which could limit their use or require significant investments
to repair them for any damage. However, for the current financial year, apart from
preliminary analyses of the climate risks to which its resources are and will be subject,
Dexelance has not yet conducted a detailed analysis of climate scenarios for the
identification and assessment of physical risks, opportunities and transition risks in the
short, medium and long term. This is because the company does not yet have a transition
plan that integrates a full range of analyses, and which takes climate scenarios into
account. The implementation of this plan is planned for the future to ensure a more
structured approach that complies with regulatory requirements.

[ESRS 2 SBM-3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with

strateqy and business model. Currently, the detected climate-related risks are physical
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risks. Dexelance has not yet conducted a formal analysis of the resilience of its strategy
and business model with respect to climate change.

However, the Group is committed to defining a path for adaptation and mitigation of
climate change, caused directly and indirectly, which will involve conducting a climate
scenario analysis to identify the areas of greatest vulnerability and opportunities for
adaptation.

In this context, the Group has already instituted several prevention measures, such as
insurance coverage for physical climate risks.

Through targeted energy efficiency strategies, the Group intends to mitigate its own
environmental impact by promoting the responsible use of resources. In particular,
Dexelance has provided material investments (CapEx) in its 2025-2027 Business Plan for
the installation of independent energy production to increase its capacity to produce
energy internally from renewable sources over what it has already installed at three of
the group’s production sites, namely at Gervasoni, Gamma Arredamenti, and Cubo
Design. The Group also plans to implement efficiency measures for its energy
requirements, such as (CapEx) investments for the replacement of production machinery,
the replacement of lighting systems at production sites not equipped with LEDs, and the
promotion of more sustainable company mobility measures. The goal is to construct a
sustainability path that combines growth with environmental protection in line with
stakeholder expectations and the global challenges tied to climate. These initiatives will
involve the reduction of consumption, and thus GHG emissions, as well as the seizing of
opportunities to modernise showrooms and render buildings more efficient.

For more details on the financial impacts of climate risks, please refer to the section “Risks
related to climate change” in the Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements as at 31 December 2024.

[E1-1] Transition plan for climate change mitigation

[E1-2] Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation[E1-3] Actions and

resources in relation to climate change policies
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[E1-3] Actions and resources in relation to climate change policies.

[E1-4] Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation. Dexelance recognised

the importance of integrating climate change issues within its strategic lines, and it has
committed to setting clear and measurable objectives in this regard. This commitment is
based on an in-depth analysis of the impacts and risks arising from sustainability factors,
including climate change, which serves to direct its actions towards a more sustainable
future. The Group is aware of the challenges related to climate change and, within its
strategic lines, is committed to reducing this impact by controlling climate-changing
emissions and increasing energy efficiency. During this reporting year, the Group did not
adopt specific policies on climate change management, nor did it adopt a formalised
transition plan. However, in relation to the photovoltaic systems already installed at some
of the Group’s plants (Gervasoni and Cubo Design), maintenance activities were carried
out in 2024 to ensure the proper functioning, maintenance of energy efficiency and
durability of the system over time. As a result of these efforts, in the financial year, capital
expenditures of EUR 140 thousand were made, as reported in the section “European
taxonomy” pursuant to Regulation 2021/2178.

Furthermore, in an awareness of the importance of this issue, and in line with its
commitment to sustainability, the Group has planned to introduce an environmental
policy by 2025, which will include actions and practices related to climate change, as well
as the adoption of the various energy efficiency actions described above and the

formalisation of a Transition Plan by 2027.

Energy and emissions

[E1-5] Energy consumption and mix

The Group’s main energy carrier is natural gas, with a consumption of 7,344 MWh, which
is used for heating and production. Electricity purchased from the grid, used for lighting,
the operation of heat pumps and machinery, amounts to 6,301 MWh. Renewable energy,
exclusively from photovoltaic systems, amounts to 779.63 MWh, of which the consumed

value is 461 MWh. In addition to self-production from photovoltaic systems, it is worth

58



mentioning the use of the natural gas trigenerator by Cubo Design, which is used to cover
part of the electricity, heat, and chilled water consumption. The energy production from
the trigenerator is approximately 726 MWh, mainly used directly by Cubo Design, with
only a small portion being distributed to the national electricity grid. There is no energy
consumption from nuclear sources. Petroleum-derived fuels account for a total

consumption of 2,098 MWh.
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Energy consumption and mix 2024 (MWh)

Coal Fuels and Products -

Crude Oil Fuels and Petroleum Products 2,097.59
Combustion Petrol (Automobile) 268.57
LPG combustion (Automobile) 0.54
Diesel Combustion (Automobile) 1,180.12
Diesel Combustion (Truck) 598.37
Diesel Stationary Combustion (heating) 49.99
Natural gas fuel 7,344.00
Natural gas for heating and production 7,344.00
Electricity purchased or acquired from fossil sources!® 6,301.30
Total energy consumption from fossil fuel source 15,742.89
Share of fossil sources of the total energy consumption (%) 97.16%

Total energy consumption from nuclear sources -

Share of nuclear sources of the total energy consumption (%) 0.00%

Fuels from renewable sources -

Biomass (including industrial and municipal waste of biological origin) -

Biofuels (bioethanol) -

Biogas -

Renewable hydrogen -

Electricity purchased or acquired from renewable sources (Guarantee of Origin contracts) -

Heat purchased or acquired from renewable sources -

Steam purchased or acquired from renewable sources -

Cooling purchased or acquired from renewable sources -

Self-produced and consumed renewable energy (without using combustion fuels) 460.74

from a photovoltaic installation 460.74

of which from facilities other than photovoltaic -

Total energy consumption from renewable sources 460.74
Share of renewable sources of the total energy consumption (%) 2,84%
Total energy consumption 16,203

The data basis and methodology used for the calculation are in line with the GHG report
and inventory that was verified by an accredited third party (Bureau Veritas) conducted
according to the principles and requirements of ISO 14064, with a confidence level of the
GHG Statement Mixed Engagement, i.e. reasonable for direct and indirect emissions of

electricity and AUP (Agreed Upon Procedures) for other indirect emissions (Scope 3).

10 The purchased electricity does not come from certified sources. As a precautionary measure, it has been decided
to consider it entirely as coming from fossil sources. Additionally, it was decided not to consider the contribution of
nuclear energy present within the residual mix.
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The consumption of electricity, expressed in MWh, drawn from the grid was obtained
from bills for the period of analysis using the conversion factors of the Energy Manager
Guidelines 2018 - Version 2.1 (FIRE). It is specified that, for Meridiani France and Turri UK,
the electricity figure was obtained by re-proportioning the Italian figure to the square-
metre surface area of the store. In addition to electricity purchases, heat production in a

condominium with a centralised natural gas boiler also falls into this category.

Energy intensity

With respect to the energy intensity of high-impact sectors, Sections C (Manufacturing)
and M (Professional, Scientific and Technical Activities) fall under Sections A to H and
Section L of the NACE classification, respectively.

Therefore, NACE codes 31.09, 27.49, 31.01, 31.02 and 70.1, which cover the totality of
the Group’s activities, are considered to have a high climate impact. Information on the

energy intensity associated with Dexelance’s operations is given below.

Energy intensity (high climate impact sectors) 2024

Total energy consumption of activities in high climate impact sectors (MWh) 16,203.63
Net revenue from activities in high-impact sectors (€)1! 324,383,894.63
Energy intensity (MWh/€) 0.00005

[E1-6] Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and Total GHG emissions. The Group’s greenhouse gas (GHG)

emissions inventory was developed in accordance with ISO 14064, adopting a
consolidation approach based on a review of its operations. No location was excluded
from the scope of the calculation, and the table below provides detailed data for the

financial year.

11 For more details, please refer to the section “Revenues from sales and services” in the Explanatory
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ended 31 December 2024.
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Total emissions [tCO,e] - Analysis by GHG Protocol subcategories

Subcategory 2024 (icoze)
Scope 1 2,170.71
Percentage of Scope 1 GHG emissions regulated under emission trading 0%
Schemes
Direct emissions from stationary combustion 1,613.27
Direct emissions from mobile combustion 538.31

Direct emissions from process sources -

Direct emissions from fugitive sources 19.14

Direct emissions from agricultural sources -

Scope 2

Market based 3.013,28
Location based 1.468,79
Scope 3 63.058,19
1. Purchased goods and services 51,347.06

Optional subcategory: Cloud computing and data centre services -

2. Capital goods -

3. Fuel and energy-related activities (not included in Scope 1 or Scope 2) 1,667.4
4. Upstream transport and distribution 1,226.21
5. Waste generated in operations 272.02

6. Business travel -

7. Employee commuting -

8. Upstream leased assets --

9. Downstream transport and distribution 6,649.67

10. Processing of sold products -

11. Use of sold products -
12. End-of-life treatment of sold products 1,895.84

13. Downstream Leased Assets -

14. Franchises -

15. Investments

Total emissions [+co2e] (Scope 2 location based) 66,697.69

Total emissions [ico2e] (Scope 3 market based) 68,242.19

There are no Scope 1 emissions subject to regulated emissions trading systems.

The analysis considered all relevant emissions and removal categories, the significance of
which was determined by applying significance criteria based on: Magnitude (volume of
emissions), level of influence and control (ability of the organisation to take action) and
access to information (availability of data for reporting). Indirect emissions were

evaluated on the basis of the organisation’s ability to influence them. The data used
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comes exclusively from the subsidiary companies, with no direct input from the upstream
or downstream value chain. The data basis and methodology used for the calculation are
in line with the GHG report and inventory that was verified by an accredited third party
(Bureau Veritas) conducted according to the principles and requirements of ISO 14064-3,
with a confidence level of the GHG Statement Mixed Engagement, i.e. reasonable for
direct and indirect emissions of electricity and AUP (Agreed Upon Procedures) for other
indirect emissions (Scope 3).

The methodology used in this study is based on the collection of operations data from the
various selected processes (e.g. litres of diesel, etc.), which are multiplied by specific
emissions factors, i.e. factors that translate a quantity of matter or energy into an
equivalent quantity of greenhouse gases. In the quantification, all major greenhouse
gases (i.e. CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, SF6 and other fluorinated gases) were taken into
account and translated into CO2-equivalent units using characterising factors reported by
the IPCC (IPCC, 2021), the most authoritative institution on climate change. The emission
factors were identified taking into consideration different parameters such as reliability
and completeness of data, information and their sources, as well as temporal,
geographical and technological correlation. The choice of this methodology responds to
the lack of availability of direct GHG measurements of the identified and analysed
sources. Characterisation factors consider the complete oxidation of the fuels used.

The emission factors were identified taking into consideration different parameters such
as reliability and completeness of data, information and their sources, temporal,
geographical and technological correlation. Specifically, the accommodation of the
different types of activity data available (in particular, the co-presence of physical and
economic data) required the use of different databases. Specifically, the following were
employed:

- Dataset of Ecoinvent v3.10%%;

- Dataset of World Food LCA Database (WFLDB) %3;

12 https://ecoinvent.org/
13 https://quantis.com/who-we-guide/our-impact/sustainability-initiatives/wfldb-food/
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- Emission factors obtained by combining several Ecoinvent datasets through
processing in the Simapro environment;

- Emission factors obtained through information in valid Environmental Product
Declarations (EPDs) published on the public registers of the Programme Operator to
the International EPD System?“. It should be noted that the EPDs used do not refer to
the specific suppliers of the companies, but were used to represent the impacts
related to semi-finished products for which no representative datasets are available;

- Emissions factors from the Exiobase database v3.8.2. These emissions factors enable
a correlation between the expenditure made in a specific product sector and the
related emissions. The correctness of the factors used was verified by comparing the
previous series referring to 2019 (contained in the same source file) with the one
reported in the Climatiq portal'®, thereby confirming the correctness of the

calculations made.

Emissions intensity

Information on the energy intensity associated with Dexelance’s operations is given

below.

Intensity of emissions versus revenue - location-based

Total emissions - location-based (t CO, eq) 66,697.69

Net revenue (€)16 324,383,894.63

Emission intensity (t CO,eq/€) 0.00021
Emission intensity versus revenue - market-based

Total emissions - location-based (t CO; eq) 68,242.19

Net revenue (€) 324,383,894.63

Emission intensity (t CO,eq/€) 0.00021

[E1-7] GHG removals and GHG mitigation projects financed through carbon credits

Dexelance is committed to providing transparent and factual information about its

1% https://www.environdec.com/library

5 https://www.environdec.com/library

16 For more details, please refer to the section “Cost of services and use of third-party assets” in the
Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2024.
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greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions management and climate change mitigation initiatives.
The Group has no GHG absorption or storage activities; 100% of the initiatives to manage
GHG emissions concern projects to reduce the emissions themselves. The carbon credits
purchased in compensation of the inventory of emissions generated come from projects
outside the value chain and have been verified according to recognised quality standards.
The credits purchased by Dexelance belong to certified programme operators, such as the
Verified Carbon Standard (VCS) managed by Verra, which guarantee the projects’
observance of the eligibility criteria, such as permanence, the lack of double counting, a
sound monitoring, reporting, and verification process, and additionality, which ensures
that these projects would not have been carried out without the financing deriving from
the carbon credits issued.

As far as geographical origin is concerned, there are no projects generated within the
European Union.

During 2024, Dexelance purchased a total amount of 206,484 CO2 credits, related to GHG
emission mitigation projects of the Group, corresponding to the same quantity of tons of
CO2eq, with the following purposes: 72.484 credits to offset the emissions inventory
referring to the year 2023, 66,698 credits to offset the emissions inventory referring to
the year 2024, the remaining 67,302 credits to offset future emissions. For more
information on the amounts allocated for the purchase of credits, please refer to the
section “Cost of services and use of third-party assets” in the Explanatory Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements ended 31 December 2024.

However, Dexelance’s activity of purchasing carbon credits does not replace future
commitments made or being finalised by the Group for the direct reduction of its

emissions.

European Taxonomy
The European Commission, as part of the EU Action Plan on Sustainable Finance, has
published with Regulation 852/2020 the European Taxonomy, a classification system for

environmentally sustainable economic activities, which is fundamental for the
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achievement of the objectives set by the EU Green Deal. In addition to Regulation

852/2020, one must also consider:

delegated Regulation 2021/2139 (hereinafter also referred to as the “Climate
Delegated Regulation”) introducing the list of economic activities eligible for the EU
Taxonomy for the first two climate objectives and the related technical screening
criteria;

EU Regulation 2021/2178 (hereinafter also the “Delegated Regulation on Art. 8" or
the "Disclosure Delegated Regulation");

EU Delegated Regulation 2022/1214 with regard to economic activities in certain
energy sectors, amending the Delegated Climate Regulation and the Delegated Art.
8 Regulation;

Delegated Regulation 2023/2485 amending EU Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 by
setting additional technical screening criteria;

Regulation 2023/2486 (hereinafter also referred to as the "Regulation on the
Remaining Environmental Objectives"), which supplements the EU Regulation
2020/852, and its technical screening criteria, and which amends the Delegated

Regulation on Art. 8.

The Taxonomy is intended to represent a classification system to establish which

economic activities can be considered environmentally sustainable to protect private

investors from greenwashing and to support companies in understanding the types of

investments needed to contribute positively to the transition of the economy.

The EU Taxonomy states that economic activities can only be considered environmentally

sustainable (“aligned”) if they are covered by the “Climate Delegated Regulation” and

"Regulation on the Remaining Environmental Objectives" (“eligible”) and if they possess

specific characteristics that allow them to contribute substantially to at least one of the

following environmental objectives:

Climate change mitigation;
Adaptation to climate change;

Sustainable use of water and marine resources;
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- Pollution prevention and control;

- Transition to a circular economy;

- Protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems.

Starting with the Non-Financial Statements for the previous reporting period, with the

publication in June 2023 by the European Commission of the Regulation Delegated on the

remaining environmental targets, non-financial companies were called upon to carry out

their own analysis on the six targets, providing disclosure on the eligibility and alignment

of their activities with the targets. To be classified as aligned, eligible assets must:

- Contribute substantially to the achievement of at least one of the six environmental
objectives;

- Do No Significant Harm (DNSH) to any of the other environmental targets;

- Respect minimum safeguards on human and labour rights, corruption, taxation and
fair competition.

For each economic activity mentioned in the Delegated Regulations, the EU legislation

has defined a set of specific technical screening criteria to assess the alignment of eligible

activities with reference to the six environmental objectives.

The result of the analysis leads companies to identify for each reporting year eligible and

aligned activities, on which they are asked to provide three summary KPIs, by filling in

standardised tabular formats, on revenues, investments (CapEx) and expenses (OpEx)

related to these activities.

DEXELANCE’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE EUROPEAN COMMISSION’S ENVIRONMENTAL

GOALS

The following paragraphs describe how the Group assessed compliance with Regulation
(EU) 2020/852 and the prospectus with the required quantitative KPls. Since this is a
recently implemented international standard and is constantly being updated, all criteria
and assumptions made and included in this section are based on currently available

information and requirements, which may be subject to future revisions.
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ELIGIBILITY ANALYSIS

In continuity with the activities carried out for the 2023 Taxonomy disclosure, Dexelance

conducted the 2024 eligibility assessment associating the Group’s economic activities:

- in the first instance, with the descriptions of eligible activities provided for in the
Climate Delegated Regulation (Annexes | and 1), and the Regulation on the remaining
Environmental Objectives, adopted on 27 June 2023; and with the relevant activity
codes of the Statistical Classification of Economic Activities of the European
Community (NACE codes), reconciled with the relevant ATECO codes registered in the
relevant Chambers of Commerce.

As required by the Regulation, the eligibility phase assessed the possibility of including

Dexelance’s economic activities among those listed in the Delegated Regulations, and

thus their ability to potentially contribute to European environmental objectives,
regardless of whether these activities were capable of satisfying one of the technical

screening criteria set out in the same regulation. This analysis identified Activity 3.5,

“Manufacture of energy efficiency devices for buildings”, which is tied to the goal of

mitigating climate change, and which concerns the activities conducted by Davide Groppi,

Flexalighting and Axo Light.

In the course of the admissibility analysis, the presence of the “Capex C” (Annex 1 of

Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, para. 1.1.2.2 item (c)), relating to the purchase of

products from eligible economic activities aligned with the Taxonomy was also examined.

In particular, CapEx was identified under Activity 6.5 “Transport by motorbikes, cars and

light commercial vehicles” for Meridiani, Cubo Design, and Dexelance, and 7.6

“Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy technologies” for Gervasoni

and Cubo Design. Regarding to Activity 6.5, please note that “OpEx C” were also identified

in association with the requirements set forth in Annex 1 of Delegated Regulation (EU)

2021/2178, para. 1.1.3.2, subpara. (c) for Davide Groppi, Flexalighting, Axo Light,

Gervasoni, Gamma Arredamenti, Turri, Modar, Cubo Design, and Dexelance.
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Relevant

. item in the . o L
Objective . . EU Taxonomy economic activities ~ Group companies involved
financial
statements
Climate change Turnover, 3.5. Manufacture of energy Davide Groppi, Flexalighting,
mitigation OpEx C efficiency devices for buildings Axolight
Davide Groppi, Flexalighting,
. 6.5 Transportation by . PP . gnting
Climate change CapEx C, motorcvcles. passenger cars and Axolight, Gervasoni, Gamma Arr.,
mitigation OpEx C yeles, p & Turri, Modar, Meridiani, Cubo

light commercial vehicles .
Design, Dexelance

7.6. Installation, maintenance, and  Gervasoni, Cubo Design
CapEx C repair of renewable energy
technologies

Climate change
mitigation

The activities listed in the previous table have the same descriptions for both climate
change mitigation and climate change adaptation objectives. For this reason, the Group
conducted the analysis by considering the contribution of the activities to both objectives.
However, regarding the climate change adaptation objective, since activity 3.5 is not
classified as an "enabling" activity, no Turnover items are associated with it. Additionally,
for the same objective, considering activities 3.5, 6.5, and 7.6, no CapEx and OpEx items
can be associated. This is because, as stated in the European Commission Communication
C/2023/305 of October 20, 2023, regarding the eligibility assessment of "non-enabling"
activities, the Group has not yet conducted a climate risk assessment nor implemented
adaptation solutions that could enhance the resilience of economic activities to climate
change.

Therefore, the activities described above are eligible only in relation to the climate change

mitigation objective.

ALIGNMENT ANALYSIS

In continuity with the previous year, Dexelance again conducted its alignment analyses
this year by investigating its compliance with the technical screening criteria defined by
the standard, identifying both areas already in line with requirements and those with
room for integration and prospective improvement. By virtue of the gaps identified at
present with respect to the provisions of the Technical Criteria, to date, the Group does

not present aligned activities, but it is committed to taking the cues from the Criteria
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themselves to increasingly improve its sustainability performance in general and with

particular reference to the eligible activities identified.

Below are some relevant elements in the assessment of the alignment of eligible activities

for the Taxonomy.

Activity 3.5 Manufacturing of energy-efficient equipment for buildings

Substantial contribution to climate change mitigation

Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 states that the production of light sources in the most

efficient energy classes, as defined by Regulation (EU) 2017/1369, contributes

substantially to climate change mitigation. Davide Groppi devices comply with the criteria

set out in the regulations.

Do no significant harm (DNSH)

Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act establishes specific criteria to ensure that economic

activities do not significantly harm other environmental objectives:

Climate change adaptation: an analysis is required to identify and assess the
vulnerability of the economic activity to chronic and acute physical climate risks. The
Group companies have not yet carried out such detailed analyses. For these reasons,
the DNSH criterion has not been observed.

Transition to a circular economy: this includes the adoption of practices favouring the
recycling and reuse of materials, environmentally sustainable design and waste
management oriented towards the recovery of secondary raw materials. In adopting
a prudential approach, as the Group has not yet implemented a similar, detailed
analysis, it considers this activity as non-compliant with this criterion.

Sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources: an environmental risk
analysis is required to ensure the maintenance of good water status, accompanied
by a plan for the management and use of water resources. As the Group has not yet
implemented a similar, detailed analysis, it considers its operations to be non-

compliant with this criterion.
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Pollution prevention and control: the regulation bans the use of certain hazardous
substances. In the absence of a thorough assessment, the Group deemed it
appropriate to adopt a prudential approach and claim non-compliance with the
criterion.

Protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems: compliance with this
criterion requires an environmental impact assessment or equivalent analysis. In
adopting a prudential approach, as the Group has not yet implemented a similar,

detailed analysis, it considers this activity as non-compliant with this criterion.

Activity 6.5 - Transportation by motorcycles, passenger cars and light commercial vehicles

Substantial contribution to climate change mitigation

Expenditures incurred for the purchase and leasing of Euro V and Euro VI vehicles only

count towards the climate mitigation contribution criteria if the vehicles comply with the

emissions limit of 50 grams of CO, per kilometre. In the Group's vehicle fleet, this

parameter is met exclusively by fully electric vehicles, which represent a limited share of

the corporate fleet.

Do no significant harm (DNSH)

For this activity, Annex | of the Climate Delegated Act provides DNSH criteria for three

environmental objectives:

Adaptation to climate change: an analysis of vulnerability to chronic and acute
physical climate risks that may impact the activity is required. Since this analysis is
the responsibility of the vehicle manufacturers and no information is available in this
regard, the Group has adopted a conservative approach, considering its activity to be
non-compliant with this criterion.

Transition to a circular economy: vehicles must observe certain reuse and recycling
requirements, and there must also be waste management measures for their use and

end-of-life phases. Since no specific information was available from the
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manufacturers, the Group has adopted a conservative approach, considering the
criterion not to be met.

- Pollution prevention and reduction: The regulation requires vehicles to comply with
certain parameters in terms of emissions, approval and efficiency. In this case, the
vehicles in the Group’s fleet are compliant, as they meet the European regulations

currently in force.

Activity 7.6 - Installation, maintenance, and repair of renewable energy technologies

Substantial contribution to climate change mitigation

The companies Gervasoni and Cubo Design made investments for the installation and
maintenance of renewable energy technologies, which comply with the requirements of
Article 9 of the Decree of the Ministry of Economy and Finance of 19 February 2007.
Compliance was certified through a technical affidavit, allowing the activity to be
considered in line with the criteria of substantial contribution to climate mitigation.

Do no significant harm (DNSH)

The only DNSH criterion for activity 7.6 concerns adaptation to climate change, which
requires an analysis of the vulnerability to chronic and acute physical climatic hazards.
Since these analyses have not yet been carried out by Group companies, the DNSH

criterion has not been met.

Minimum safeguards

With regard to the minimum safeguard clauses, compliance with the criteria was assessed
on the basis of Art. 18 of Regulation 852/2020 and the “Final Report on Minimum
Safeguard Clauses” published in October 2022 by the Platform on Sustainable Finance
(PSF), the advisory body set up by the European Commission to coordinate the
development and implementation of the EU Taxonomy, as last supplemented on 27 June
2023. The analysis then focused on investigating how the Dexelance Group ensures

compliance with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the United
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Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights (UNGPs), including the
principles and rights set out in the eight core conventions identified in the International
Labour Organisation’s Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work and the
International Bill of Human Rights.

Dexelance is committed to ensuring equal opportunities, respect for human rights, and
combating discrimination as further specified in Sections “People management” in
chapter “Social Information”.

Furthermore, the Group demonstrates compliance with the “do no significant harm”
principle, as defined in SFDR, Article 2, point 17, by addressing the issue of the gender pay
gap and gender diversity in governance bodies and disclosing the respective indicators
within the Sustainability Statement.

However, while acting in full compliance with Italian and European legislation on tax,
competition, corruption, and respect for human rights, the Group considered, on a
conservative and prudent basis, that compliance with the minimum safeguards has not
been fully met. Dexelance is committed to reinforcing its monitoring of these issues over
time through the formalisation of ad hoc procedures and policies, including the Code of
Ethics, the Whistleblowing Procedure and Channel, a transversal tool with which the

Group has equipped itself to monitor possible conflicts with its values and organisation.

INDICATORS

Below are the KPIs required by Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation and detailed in
the dedicated Delegated Regulation on Article 8 (hereinafter also referred to as the
“Disclosure Delegated Act”).

This paragraph summarises the assumptions and methodologies used to calculate the
regulatory required KPIs (Turnover, CapEx, OpEx), based on the Annexes to the Disclosure
Delegated Act!’ by categorising the information according to eligible and possibly alighed
activities. For each KPI, there is a discussion of its calculation methodology, its structure

in relation to the different activities of the EU Taxonomy, and the process used to quantify

7 Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178
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the items included in the numerator. In accordance with the Regulation, the analysis
excludes intercompany items from the calculation of the indicators. The processing of the
indicators involved the Group’s administrative and accounting departments, which, on
the basis of the information contained in Annex 1 to Delegated Act 2178/2021, identified
the accounting items to be associated with the different KPIs, based on items in the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2024. Regarding to the
requirements specified in Section 1.1.2.2 of Annex 1 to the Disclosure Delegated Act, for
a plan to expand Taxonomy-aligned economic activities or to allow eligible economic
activities to be aligned with the Taxonomy, it is hereby clarified that the two KPIs of CapEx
and OpEx do not include any elements concerning such considerations.*®

Turnover

In accordance with the Disclosure Delegated Act, the Turnover KPI has been calculated as
the ratio of the part of the net revenue obtained from the sale of products or services,
tangible or intangible, associated with Taxonomy-aligned economic activities (the
numerator) and Group net revenue (the denominator). In accordance with IAS 1.82(a)
quoted in the Regulation, any revenue item generated by the sale of intercompany
products was excluded from the KPI’s calculation to avoid double counting. As a result,
the denominator of the Turnover KPI corresponds to the item “Revenue” in the
consolidated income statement and is equal to EUR 324,384 thousand.'® With reference
to the numerator of the Turnover KPI, the Group considered the share of revenue
included in the denominator that refers to Taxonomy-eligible and/or aligned economic
activities. Specifically, for the quantification of the Group’s admissible revenues, precise
figures were extracted from the companies in the scope of the consolidation in relation
to the following economic activity: 3.5 Manufacture of energy efficiency devices for
buildings.

CapEx

181t should be noted that, as the gas and nuclear sector activities covered by the Complementary Delegated
Act (Delegated Regulation 2022/1214) were not eligible, the relevant tables are not published.

19 For more details, please refer to the section “Revenues from sales and services” in the Explanatory Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements ended 31 December 2024.
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Under the Regulation, the calculation of the denominator of the CapEx KPI must include
increases to tangible and intangible assets, including those arising from business
combinations, considered before depreciations, amortisations, write-downs, and any
revaluation, including those arising from restatements and impairments, excluding
changes in fair value. In accordance with Annex | to the Delegated Act 2021/4987, the
denominator of the CapEx KPI was calculated using the increases recorded during the
2024 financial year and reported in Note 3 — Tangible assets, Note 1 - Intangible Assets,
and Note 2 - Right of Use, excluding goodwill. On the basis of these considerations, the
denominator of the CapEx KPI was EUR 7,924 thousand, whose composition is itemised
below with reference to the asset categories mentioned:

¢ Intangible assets with a finite useful life: EUR 895 thousand;

e Tangible assets: EUR 7,029 thousand;

¢ Recording of usage rights: EUR 7,791 thousand.

As defined in Section 1.1.2.2 of Annex | to the Disclosure Delegated Act., the numerator
of the CapEx KPI is the proportion of investments considered in the denominator
involving: (i) assets or processes associated with Taxonomy-aligned economic activities,
and/or (ii) the purchase of products resulting from Taxonomy-aligned economic activities
and individual measures that enable target activities to achieve low carbon emissions of
greenhouse gas reductions.

To quantify the eligible investments, the Group carried out a detailed analysis of asset
movements on the basis of individual company data within the scope of consolidation.
The numbers extracted concern activities that are related to purchases of activities
eligible for the Taxonomy: i) 6.5 Transport by motorbikes, cars and light commercial
vehicles, and ii) 7.6 Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy
technologies.

OpEx
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For the calculation of OpEx KPI, the Group’s chart of accounts was carefully analysed to
identify those cost items that fall within the categories defined in Annex | to the Disclosure
Delegated Act, which are the following:

¢ Uncapitalised research and development,

¢ Short-term leases,

e Maintenance & repairs,

¢ Day to Day servicing of assets.

With reference to the European Commission Communication (2022/C 385/01),
specifically to FAQ no. 12, the expenses incurred by Group for cleaning assets were
included in the calculation of the denominator with reference to the category “any other
direct expenditure related to the daily maintenance of property, plant and equipment”.
Based on these considerations, the denominator of OpEx KPI was EUR 3,648 thousand. In
accordance with the methodology used to quantify the numerator of the CapEx KPI, the
analysis of the OpEx KPI numerator considered the expenses incurred by the Group as
defined in the denominator associated with (i) assets or processes associated with
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities, and/or (ii) the purchase of products resulting from
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities and individual measures that enable target
activities to achieve low carbon emissions of greenhouse gas reductions. Based on the
eligible assets, the numerators were extracted and allocated to the numerator from the
data of the individual companies within the scope of consolidation. The activities included
in the numerator of the OpEx KPI are: i) 3.5) Manufacture of energy efficiency devices for

buildings, ii) 6.5) Transport by motorbikes, cars and light commercial vehicles.

Legend

For the purposes of tabular representation, the following legend applies:
climate change mitigation: CCM (Climate Change Mitigation); adaptation to climate

change: CCA (Climate Change Adaptation); Sustainable use and protection of water and
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marine resources; WTR (Sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources);
transition to a circular economy: CE (Transition to a circular economy); pollution
prevention and reduction: PPC (Pollution Prevention and Control); protection and
restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems: BIO (Protection and restoration of biodiversity
and ecosystems); Minimum safeguards: MS (Minimum Safeguards).

Yes - the activity is eligible for, and aligned with, the Taxonomy with respect to the
relevant environmental objective. No - the activity is eligible for, but not aligned with, the
Taxonomy with respect to the relevant environmental objective. N/A - Not applicable;
technical screening criteria not listed in the Regulation. The following legend applies when
reading the eligibility section: AM - Taxonomy-eligible activity for the relevant objective.
N/AM - activity not eligible for the Taxonomy for the relevant objective. N/A - Not

applicable.
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Nuclear and fossil gas related activities
The Group does not engage in activities related to nuclear energy and fossil gases.
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Nuclear energy related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research,
development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with
minimal waste from the fuel cycle

NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction
and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
2 | process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial
processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
upgrades, using best available technologies.

NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation
of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process heat,
3 | including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes
such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
safety upgrades.

NO

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or
4 | operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
using fossil gaseous fuels.

NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction,
5 | refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels.

NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction,
6 | refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels.

NO
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Circular economy

IMPACT AND RISKS Value chain Time horizon
Product use Impact Downstream Short-term
Consumption and depletion of raw
. Impact Upstream Short-term
materials
Impact on environmental quality due . .
P . 9 ¥ Impact Own operation Medium-/long-term
to waste generation
Impact on environmental quality due .
P . q v Impact Upstream Medium-/long-term
to waste generation
End-of-life environmental impacts Impact Downstream Medium-/long-term
Dependence on key raw materials Risk Upstream Medium-term
Incorrect waste management Risk Own operation Medium-/long-term

Dexelance recognises the importance of a more sustainable production and consumption
model based on the principles of the circular economy. By formalising internal awareness
initiatives, Dexelance aims to strengthen a circular corporate culture in the coming years,
with the goal of minimising its environmental impact throughout the value chain.

[ESRS 2 IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and assess material resource use

and circular _economy-related impacts, risks and opportunities. The approach for

determining impacts, risks and opportunities and the list of IROs on climate change factors
considered relevant can be found in the section "Dexelance double materiality" in the
“General Information — basis for preparation” chapter. The Group recognises that its
activities generate environmental impacts related to the use of resources and waste
management, with particular reference to waste from leather, textiles, paints, plastics
and other raw materials purchased from suppliers, such as timber, plastics, paper, metals,
minerals, textiles and leather.

In the identification phase of IROs related to the circular economy, an analysis of company
resources (buildings, facilities, plants, machinery, and raw materials) and activities
conducted (production processes, resource consumption and utilisation, waste
generation and management) was conducted to identify impacts, risks and opportunities
related to resource use and the circular economy, including the assessment of natural

resource and material utilisation, energy efficiency and waste management. By analysing
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the life cycle of products and their design, it was also possible to examine the amount of
resources used and discarded, identifying their impacts, risks and opportunities, including
related dependencies.

For the analysis, an approach was adopted based on direct and in-depth dialogue with
the production managers of the individual subsidiaries through ad hoc meetings. This
method made it possible to capitalise on their specific know-how and to collect factual
data directly from their operations, thereby ensuring a formulation that is consistent with
the Group’s operations. Based on the information obtained, impacts, risks and
opportunities (IROs) were identified, although consultations with affected communities
were not conducted.

[E5-1] Policies related to resource use and circular economy [E5-2] Actions and resources

related to resource use and circular economy [E5-3] Targets related to resource use and

circular economy. Dexelance recognises the relevance of the circular economy as part of

its sustainable and responsible growth path. In line with the Group’s sustainability
principles, a number of actions have been identified for possible implementation to
promote the concepts of circularity among subsidiaries, with the aim of optimising the
use of resources, reducing waste and encouraging the reuse of materials throughout the
entire life cycle of products. During this reporting year, the Group did not adopt any
policies or implement any specific actions. However, starting in the second half of 2025,
Dexelance plans to launch the dissemination of Environmental Corporate Culture
principles in the subsidiaries to improve the sustainability of offices and warehouses and
increasingly reduce the environmental impact of operations. These actions are part of a
path of awareness-raising and involvement of the various corporate offices to spread a
mentality focused on circularity and the conscious use of resources, both within its own
operations and when participating in trade fairs, various exhibitions and events. The
Group is also committed to supporting and promoting initiatives that will be developed
and implemented within its subsidiaries to reduce the impact of the materials used in the

design of products, as well as the packaging used for their sale.
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Materials and waste

[E5-4] Resource inflows. Dexelance places quality at the heart of its business, using a

rigorous selection of raw materials, mostly from Italian suppliers, to guarantee the
excellence and reputation of “Made in Italy”.

The variety and complexity of the Group's businesses are reflected in the diversification
of the materials used and the processing techniques adopted. The production processes
vary accordingly: from carpentry to painting with ecological finishes, from handcrafted
upholstery to advanced lighting design. The integration of traditional techniques and
modern technologies meets market demands with customised, high quality solutions.
Only some of the Group's companies use water in their production processes: in the spray
booths, to reduce dust in carpentry and painting activities, and in the cutting processes
of some inert materials for the “Kitchen & Systems” strategic business area. The water
comes from the municipal aqueduct, with the exception of Cubo Design, which is supplied
by the reclamation consortium connected to the Tordino river.

Overall, different materials are used, but no critical raw materials or rare earth materials
are used in the various processes. Each company in the Group adopts specific criteria:
Gervasoni, Cenacchi, Modar and Cubo Design, for example, combine wood with
innovative materials to produce furniture and accessories, and they have obtained FSC®
certification; Meridiani and Saba have introduced the use of natural and recycled
materials; Gamma Arredamenti stands out for its selection of LWG-certified leather. In
the lighting sector, Davide Groppi implements efficient solutions in view of the new
European Eco-Design Regulation, while Flexalighting, focusing on LED technology,
optimises design and assembly while limiting material consumption. In general, furniture
producers such as Gervasoni, Meridiani, Saba, and Gamma Arredamenti predominantly
use wood, textiles, plastics, and metals. Cenacchi and Modar, in the “Luxury Contract”
operating segment, while being continuously subject to variations in the type of raw
materials used in their products due to the nature of their business, consume mainly

wood, glass and metals. The ’Lighting’ business area uses mainly metals and glass and,
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finally, Cubo Design, belonging to the ’Kitchen & Systems’ strategic business area, uses
wood, metals, plastics, glues and paints.

As regards packaging, the Group companies use mainly wood, paper and cardboard, and,
to a lesser extent, plastic. In particular, the “Luxury Contract” operating segment uses
mostly wood, while the “Furniture”, “Lighting” and “Kitchen & Systems” SBAs make
greater use of paper and cardboard. Some companies, such as Davide Groppi, have also
initiated projects to replace single-use plastic packaging with reusable solutions (e.g.
reusable blister packs) to reduce waste and limit the use of non-recyclable materials.
Although wood is the most widely used material, it is divided into two categories: 54% of
the total material is in the form of wood panels, a material deriving from a secondary
reuse of virgin wood (mainly in the form of MDF or chipboard), while only 3% is virgin
wood. It is specified that, although the Group has made a reasonable effort, the
percentage of products sourced sustainably and therefore covered by a certification
scheme is not available for the reporting year in question.

Below is a representation of the materials used by the Group broken down by technical

and biological materials:

Materials used to manufacture products and offer services ton2024

Technical Materials | Biological materials Total

Virgin wood 738.75 738.75
Processed wood (panels) 12,878.82 12,878.82
Metals 4,395 4,395
Inert Materials 1,806.93 1,806.93
Glass 1,051.93 1,051.93
Electrical and electronic equipment 708.31 708.31
Plastic 683.34 683.34
Paper and cardboard 610.98 610.98
Textiles 23591 235.91
Skins 151.39 151.39
Down feather 83.26 83.26
Other 552.94 552.94

Total 9,198.46 14,699.11 23,897,57

Percentage 38% 62% 100%
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The company does not currently have a process that allows for the verifiability of the
weight, in absolute value or as a percentage, of reused or recycled secondary components
and intermediate secondary products and materials used by the company for its products
and services.

The materials were classified into macro-categories, as illustrated in the table, according

to the following criteria:

- Inert materials: include stone, marble, selenite, graphite, lime, gypsum, rock wool,
mica, bone, stucco, gress, ceramics, cement and plasterboard.

- Electrical and electronic equipment: include LEDs, LED drivers, cables, small
electrical parts, lighting accessories, hoods, dishwashers, washing machines,
microwaves, electrified lighting rails, connectors, lamps, electrical components,
magnets, electronic boards, power supplies, chips, batteries and signs.

- Other: includes lamp mounts, acetone, velcro adhesives, wax, thinners, abrasive
polish, anti-rust sprays, paints, glues, kitchen accessories, grooves, straps, ropes,
various furniture items, adhesives, mattresses and upholstery.

- Wood: a distinction is made between processed wood, which mainly includes wood
panels, as previously described, and virgin wood.

- Metals: include brass, steel and iron.

Supplies for offices or showrooms for foreign subsidiaries were excluded, with the

exception of Flexalighting North America, the only foreign production company.

The database and methodology used for the calculation are in line with the GHG report

and inventory that was verified by an accredited third party (Bureau Veritas) conducted

according to the principles and requirements of ISO 14064, with a GHG statement
confidence level of Mixed Engagement, i.e. reasonable for direct and indirect electricity

emissions and AUP (Agreed Upon Procedures) for other indirect emissions (Scope 3).

For the quantification of materials, a methodological ranking was adopted, which

involved: using weight data communicated directly by the company; calculating weight

by sampling certain flows, with conversion factors (from economic to physical data) to be

applied to similar materials; converting economic data into physical units using specific
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conversion factors in €/tonne, derived from the Exiobase database v3.3.18 (version of

23/03/2023).

[E5-5] Resource outflows

Dexelance mainly produces furniture products, such as sofas, chairs, tables, kitchen items
and lamps (as stated in the section “Sustainability strategy” in the chapter “General
information — basis for preparation”). Although the company has not yet developed a
formal assessment of the durability, reparability and recyclable content rate of its
products, it plans to carry out more in-depth analyses in the future to optimise the use of
resources and promote a more circular life cycle of its products. Dexelance is nevertheless
committed to integrating circular principles into its production process. In fact, principles
of durability and repairability are already taken into account in product research,
development and design. In particular, materials are selected that guarantee a long
service life and the product is designed in such a way as to facilitate disassembly, allowing
the different components to be easily recovered and only those that do not work to be
repaired.

Waste

For the year 2024, Dexelance reports that 3,424,645 kg of total waste was generated from
its operations, of which 61,551.11 kg was hazardous waste and 3,363,094.34 kg was non-
hazardous waste. Of the total, 3,251,303 kg went to recovery, while 173,343 kg went to
disposal. All waste produced was not recycled (0%) and the Group does not produce

radioactive waste.

Waste not destined for disposal

Hazardous waste Non-hazardous waste Total
Incineration (R1)
Preparation for re-use (P)
Recycling (R3, R4, R5)
g::;" R G (e 7,218.11 3,244,084.64 3,251,302.76
Total 7,218.11 3,244,084.64 3,251,302.76
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Waste for disposal

Hazardous waste Non-hazardous waste Total
Incineration (D10, D11) - -
Waste for disposal in a landfill (D1, i i
D2, D3, D5)
Other disposal operations (D4, D8,
D9, D13, g 0D 1’;) ( 54,333.00 119,009.70 173,342.70
Total 54,333.00 119,009.70 173,342.70

In 2024, the waste produced by Dexelance came mainly from wood waste, mixed
packaging (plastic, paper, metal and wood), waste paints and varnishes, used mineral oil
for engines and gears, printer toner, chips, glass and mirrors, as well as bulky waste and
insulation materials containing hazardous substances. These wastes are the result of
industrial, production and maintenance activities at the facilities. Materials in the waste
include wood, plastic, metals (aluminium, iron and steel), paper, paints, mineral oils,
textiles, and hazardous chemicals, which are separated and managed in accordance with
environmental regulations for their proper disposal.

Dexelance uses a methodology based on direct measurements and point calculations to
determine data on the waste generated, avoiding estimates whenever possible. Waste is
categorised according to EWC codes to distinguish between hazardous and non-

hazardous waste. The criteria used for classification follow current regulations.
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Social Information — ESRS S1

Information on social impacts, risks and opportunities

IMPACT AND RISKS Value chain Time horizon
Failure to protect the welfare of .
Impact Own operation Short-term
employees
Negative impact on employee health and Impact Own operation Short-term
safety
Lack of t | t of
ack of competence development o Impact Own operation Short-term
employees
A'cudents at work or occupational Risk Own operation Medium-term
diseases
Dependence on key figures Risk Own operation Short-term

[ESRS 2 SBM-3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with

strateqy and business model. All employees of Dexelance, on whom there could be a

material impact, are included within the scope of disclosure under ESRS 2. The impacts
identified by the Group, such as those related to the wellbeing of its own workers
(hereinafter also referred to as “employees”), occupational safety and skills development,
are in fact generalised and transversal in nature and concern the entire workforce,
independently of other factors.

The Dexelance workforce subject to significant impacts as a result of its operations is
mainly composed of employees with permanent contracts, who are employed in the
internal production phases of the subsidiaries, mainly in Italy, in product sales and
business support and coordination roles. A small part of the Group’s workforce consists
of non-employees, such as temporary workers, mainly involved in production, and
trainees.

The risk of workplace accidents or occupational illnesses is closely linked to the impact
generated by the Group’s specific operations. The diversity and peculiarities of
operations, which include the handling and processing, in some subsidiaries, of
potentially hazardous chemicals (such as paints, waterproofing agents and waxes), create

a direct dependency due to employee exposure to these substances. This impact on
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workers’ health is the primary cause of the risk, as working conditions that do not
guarantee adequate protection and prevention measures can amplify the risk of
accidents, occupational illnesses and related economic and reputational costs for the
Group.

However, the Group already has some prevention measures in place, such as insurance
coverage for workplace accidents and occupational illnesses. For more information, please
refer to the specific section “Cost for services and use of third-party assets” in the
Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ended 31 December 2024.
Furthermore, regarding to the risk of dependence on key figures, please note that the
Group has adopted long-term incentive plans for top management, including the CEO and
Executive Director, aimed both at incentivising the beneficiaries to pursue the Group's
objectives and at increasing loyalty with a view to their retention. For further information,
please refer to the section “Significant events during the financial year” regarding the
medium- to long-term monetary incentive plan in the Explanatory Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements ended 31 December 2024.

In addition, within Dexelance’s own operations, no cases or situations of serious risk of
forced, compulsory or child labour were identified, either in relation to specific types of
operations, such as production facilities, or in particular countries or geographical areas.
Regarding to the assessment of the significance of impacts on its own workforce,
Dexelance confirms that it has not identified types of workers with particular
characteristics, working in specific contexts or engaged in particular activities, who may
be more exposed to risks than the rest of the workforce.

Moreover, the relevant risks identified in relation to impacts and dependencies in terms
of employees do not concern specific groups of people, such as particular age groups or
workers in certain geographical areas, but instead affect the entire workforce of the

company, across the board.

People Management

[S1-1] Policies related to own workforce
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Currently, guidelines on the treatment of employees are outlined in Dexelance’s Code of
Ethics, which is the official document establishing ethical commitments and
responsibilities in the conduct of company business. The Code clearly defines the values
and principles that Dexelance recognises as essential elements of its mission, corporate
culture and business model. It promotes respect for workers’ rights and the creation of a
safe and respectful working environment. It also provides a framework to guide the
company’s ethical behaviour, ensuring that all activities are conducted in accordance with
the principles of fairness, dignity and well-being. Dexelance has not adopted a specific
policy on workforce management. However, aware of the importance of this issue and in
line with its commitment to the protection and well-being of workers, the Group has
envisaged, as part of its corporate strategic guidelines set forth in the Group’s ESG
Manifesto and 2025-2027 Business Plan, the introduction of Group policies on diversity
and inclusion and human rights, and corporate welfare and well-being, as well as the

introduction of a Group Working Hours Policy.

[S1-2] Processes for engaging with own workers and workers’ representatives about

impacts

At the moment, the Dexelance Group has not adopted a structured process of
engagement with these stakeholders but, as part of future initiatives, it plans to increase
opportunities for employee involvement, both through corporate communication
channels and Group initiatives, with the aim of establishing an open and constructive

dialogue.

[S1-3] Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for own workers to raise

concerns
The Dexelance Group has adopted a process for managing reports, also in anonymous
form, to prevent the occurrence of offences, irregularities or conducts that do not comply

with the Code of Ethics, the Organisation, Management and Control Model pursuant to
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Legislative Decree No. 231/2001, company procedures and applicable regulations. The
process enables the reporting of any significant negative impacts affecting the workforce,
ensuring the timely assessment of reports and, if necessary, the adoption of corrective
measures to remedy identified impacts. The effectiveness of remedial actions is
monitored through regular audits and dedicated reports.

For the management of reports, Dexelance uses a dedicated IT platform, accessible via
the official website, in full compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR). This platform provides a channel through which employees can communicate
their concerns, even anonymously. The Group promotes the use of these channels
through the dissemination of ad hoc company policies, such as the Code of Ethics and the
Whistleblowing Procedure.

Group companies independently adopt reporting management systems that are available
on their respective company websites, thus providing simple and direct access in all areas
of operations. To ensure the effectiveness of these tools, Dexelance constantly monitors
the issues raised and evaluates the results obtained, involving the Group CFO in all
communications.

Finally, the Group has implemented specific measures to protect employees who make
use of these channels from retaliation, as required by internal policies and regulations.
On average, twice a year, as was also the case during this reporting year, training and
refresher courses are provided to the senior management of all Group companies to
strengthen staff awareness of possible offences, the reporting procedures available and
their importance for the protection of the work environment.

[S1-4] Taking action on material impacts on own workforce, and approaches to mitigating

material risks and pursuing material opportunities related to own workforce, and

effectiveness of those actions. During 2024, no specific actions were implemented to

mitigate the negative impacts on the workforce. However, the Group manages impacts
through the application of procedures and policies that comply with current regulations,

ensuring safe and decent working conditions. In particular, measures are taken to avoid
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situations of stress and fatigue due to unbalanced working hours and to ensure adequate
salaries that promote a proper work-life balance.

However, in line with the commitments linked to the strategic guidelines approved this
year, the main measures planned for the next few years include, in addition to the
introduction of Group policies on diversity and inclusion, human rights, corporate welfare
and well-being, the activation of ongoing welfare programmes by all Group subsidiaries.
To facilitate the successful integration of new human resources, Dexelance also plans to
define a set of guidelines, to be used by all subsidiaries, for the onboarding of new
employees. This tool will support welcoming new hires and professional growth,
facilitating a sense of belonging and alignment with the Group’s corporate culture.
Finally, Dexelance aims to intensify its employer branding activities by strengthening and
launching new initiatives in the region, by increasing opportunities for school-to-work
alternation, already occasionally offered by Group companies, and by targeted
collaborations with training institutions.

The active involvement of internal stakeholders, including the Central Sustainability
Team, central management, and the ESG Ambassadors, as well as interactions with a
number of educational institutions were instrumental in shaping these initiatives.
Performance is monitored by means of surveys, membership analysis and periodic
feedback, with possible revisions of strategies in the event of deviations from the
established targets.

[S1-5] Targets related to managing material neqgative impacts, advancing positive

impacts, and managing material risks and opportunities. Dexelance did not set

guantitative targets in 2024. However, within the current Business Plan, a set of strategic
initiatives and actions with respective targets have been planned for implementation over
the 2025-2027 three-year period to promote a healthy, inclusive and sustainable working

environment.

Characteristics of the Group’s people

[S1-6] Characteristics of the undertaking’s employees
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All employees of the Dexelance Group are included in the scope of the reported
information. The tables below provide a detailed overview of the Group’s workforce (total
number of people), broken down by gender, country and contract type, also reported in
the section “Staff costs” in the “Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements as at 31 December 2024”, albeit with reference to the average number of
employees during the reporting period rather than the exact figure as at 31 December as

shown here. In addition, the outgoing turnover for the year 2024 is reported.
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Total number of employees (headcount) by country

Number of people as of 31 December 2024
Women

Italy no. 440 341 781
UK no. 1 1 2
China no. 1 7 8
USA no. 7 16
Canada no. 10 8 18
Total no. 459 366 825

More than 97% of the workforce (806 employees) are on permanent contracts.

Number of people ° .. ‘ :
459 366 825
Permanent no. 453 353 806
Temporary no. 6 13 19
Shifting schedule no. - - -
Full-time no. 454 331 785
Part-time no. 5 35 40

Number of persons and rate

Number (headcount) and rate of employee turnover

Employees who left the Group

no.

43

32

75

Turnover rate

%

9.4%

8.7%

9.1%

Turnover rate is calculated as the number of employees who have left the Group, either
voluntarily or involuntarily, as the ratio between the employees who have left and the

total number of employees by gender as at December 31, 2024,

[S1-7] Characteristics of non-employees in the undertaking’s own workforce

The table below provides the total number of non-employee workers of the Dexelance

Group, broken down by gender as at 31 December 2024.

Total number of non-employees in own workforce (headcount)

as of 31 December 2024
Number of people
Men Women

Total

95



Diversity, inclusion, and equal opportunities

[51-9] Diversity metrics

The tables below present the diversity metrics within the Dexelance Group, highlighting

the number of managers by gender and the distribution of total employees by age group.

Total number of top management

as of 31 December 2024

Number of people

Number of senior no. 4 3 7
managers
Percentage % 57% 43% 100%

Total number of employees by age group

as of 31 December 2024

Number of people

Number of employees no. 92 454 279 825

Percentage % 11% 55% 34% 100%

[S1-10] Adequate wages

All employees of the Dexelance Group receive an adequate salary in line with the
applicable benchmarks. Dexelance defines the salaries of its workforce in accordance with
the reference parameters applicable in the various countries in which it operates. In Italy,
salaries are in line with the sector's National Collective Labour Agreement (CCNL). In non-
EU countries, the salary level is determined by local legislation, ensuring that it complies

with current regulations and is adequate in relation to local standards.

[S1-16] Compensation metrics (pay gap and total compensation)

The gender pay gap indicates the difference between the average wage levels paid to
female and male workers. In this respect, the data in the table “Gender pay gap” shows

the average gross pay of all employees of the Dexelance Group. These data provide a clear
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view of the average total remuneration within the workforce, which reveals a pay gap
between female and male genders of 14%.2°

In parallel, the second table shows the total annual pay ratio. This ratio measures the
difference between the person receiving the highest pay and the median pay of all
employees, excluding the person with the highest pay.

Both indicators are based on the same method of calculating Gross Annual Remuneration
(GAR), which includes the annual basic salary, cash bonuses (performance-based bonuses
and economic incentives), and fringe benefits (non-monetary benefits such as a company

car, meal vouchers, health insurance, and other additional benefits).

Gender pay gap
As of 31 December 2024

Euro
‘ Men Women

Average gross hourly pay of all employees

Annual total remuneration ratio

as of 31 December

Euro 2024

Total annual salary of the highest paid person € 293,413.35
Median annual total remuneration of all employees in

... . . € 34,815.17
the organisation excluding the above-mentioned person
Annual total remuneration ratio 8.43

[S1-17] Incidents, complaints and severe human rights impacts

The data reported concern incidents, complaints and serious impacts on discrimination
and human rights within the Dexelance Group. In 2024, the Group recorded no incidents,
complaints or serious impacts related to discrimination or human rights violations (forced

labour, child labour or human trafficking).

Health and safety

[S1-14] Health and safety metrics

20 The formula used to calculate the gender pay gap is: (average gross hourly earnings of male employees -
average gross hourly earnings of female employees) / average gross hourly earnings of male employees) x
100.
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The table below shows the health and safety metrics within the Dexelance Group. This
datais provided to offer a transparent view of workplace accidents, reflecting the Group’s

commitment to ensuring a safe and healthy working environment for all employees.

Workforce covered by management systems according to legal requirements and/or recognised health and safety

standards or guidelines
as of 31 December 2024

Number of people Contract
Employees
employees

Number of employees covered by health and

safety management systems no- 814 110 924
% of employees covered by health and safety % 99% 76% 95%
management systems

Work-related incidents and ill health - Employees
as of 31 December 2024

Contract
employees

Employees

Number of deaths due to work-related

A . no. 0 0 0
injuries or illnesses

Number of recordable occupational accidents no. 13 2 15
Number of hours worked no. 1,184,764.22 90,311 1,275,075
Recordable work accident rate 10.97 22.14 11.76
Number of cases of work-related illnesses o 0 0 0
that could be registered )

'Nt:|m'ber of.days lost due to work-related no. 634 10 644
injuries or illnesses

Training

[S1-13] Training metrics

The table below presents the training metrics within the Dexelance Group, showing the
total number of training hours incurred and the average number of hours per employee,

broken down by gender.

Average number of training hours per employee and gender

as of 31 December 2024

Average Total Average
hours - hours - hours -
Men Women Women

Training hours

Total training  Average hours
hours per employee

Total

The Groups has not yet developed and formalised a performance evaluation system.
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Entity-specific information

IMPACT Value chain Time horizon
Supporting local communities through charity,
cultural and artistic promotion and Impact Downstream Medium - long term

environmental protection projects

In the double materiality analysis, Dexelance identified a positive impact in initiatives
dedicated to social support, cultural promotion and environmental protection. No specific
metrics, policies or targets are currently defined for this issue; however, the Group is
constantly engaged in philanthropic and social activities. Through donations and
partnerships with non-profit organisations, the Group has contributed to projects for
social inclusion, health care, educational development and cultural heritage
enhancement. In 2024, the Dexelance Group allocated a total of around EUR 30,000 to
social, cultural and environmental initiatives, reinforcing its commitment to local
communities and disadvantaged groups.

The Group also contributed to numerous charity auctions and collaborated with non-
profit associations such as AVSI, Cooperativa Lavoro and social inclusion, supporting some
initiatives of the cooperative ‘| Bambini delle Fate S.p.A.’, which works on improving the
quality of life of children and young people in difficulty. Modar has invested in several
solidarity projects, including support for education in disadvantaged contexts, long-
distance adoption and participation in charity events aimed at supporting young people
and families in vulnerable circumstances. Cenacchi contributed to preventive health and
community well-being by supporting a local breast health awareness campaign. Cubo
Design has supported the local community with concrete initiatives, including the
restoration of historic buildings, the upgrading of rescue equipment and the support of
associations dedicated to animal protection. Meridiani has participated in social inclusion
projects, contributing to the purchase of means of transport for people with mobility
difficulties and supporting educational and care activities for young people and families.
A further sign of being rooted in the territory is the inclusion of members of the local

community among the Group’s senior managers, favouring a management closer to the
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needs of the local area and the people who live there. Through these initiatives,
Dexelance continues to strengthen its positive impact, integrating the values of social
responsibility into its corporate strategy and contributing concretely to the development
of the communities in which it operates. These initiatives testify to Dexelance’s
willingness to integrate social responsibility into its business model, promoting a positive
impact on the local area and contributing to building a more inclusive and sustainable

community.
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Governance Information — ESRS G1

Information on environmental impacts, risks and opportunities

IMPACT Curren't/ Posﬂ'n{e/ Value chain Time horizon
Potential Negative
Nt.Jn-c.ompllance with ESG . Potential Negative Upstream Medium-/long-
criteria along the supply chain term

[ESRS 2 IRO-1] Description of the process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and

opportunities

The approach to determine impacts, risks and opportunities, and the list of IROs related
to relevant business conduct and governance, can be found in the section “Dexelance
double materiality” in the “General Information” chapter. In the Dexelance Group, an
analysis was performed to identify the impacts, risks and opportunities related to the
conduct of business, taking into consideration all relevant criteria, including location,
activities, sector and structure of the operation. The location of individual subsidiaries
was examined to understand the geographical and regulatory specificities that could
influence operations. The company’s activities, particularly those related to production,
distribution and resource management, were analysed to identify potential operational
risks and opportunities for optimisation. The sector in which the Group operates was also
assessed, considering market trends, emerging technologies and regulations, in order to
anticipate changes and seize competitive opportunities. Finally, the Group’s governance
structure, including business processes and interactions between the different units, was
examined to ensure that the entire system was geared towards reducing risks and
maximising opportunities for continuous improvement, in line with the principles of

sustainability and corporate social responsibility.

[ESRS 2 GOV-1] The role of the administration, supervisory and management bodies

The boards of directors and management are responsible for guiding Dexelance’s

strategy, integrating the principles of integrity, transparency and accountability into day-
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to-day decisions. These bodies are responsible for defining company policies and long-
term objectives, ensuring sustainability and compliance with regulations, for monitoring
compliance with laws and the Code of Ethics, and for preventing risks and unlawful
behaviour. To this end, Dexelance has adopted a Code of Ethics that guides the behaviour
of all levels of the organisation, promoting a working environment based on shared
values. The control bodies ensure that the Group’s operations are in line with legal, ethical
and social regulations by continuously monitoring compliance with the Code of Ethics.
The Dexelance’s Control, Risk, Related Party Transactions, and Sustainability Committee
supports the Board of Directors in defining the guidelines for sustainability, with the
support of the Central Sustainability Team as an internal delegated function, and possibly
also in collaboration with external professionals appointed on any given occasion, in line
with the company’s strategies and with a view to promoting and disseminating an
appropriate culture in this field across all levels of the organisation.

[G1-1] Corporate culture and business conduct policies Through its Code of Ethics,

Dexelance promotes its corporate culture, establishing the principles and rules of conduct
that guide the behaviour of all group companies, its employees, contractors, and
members of the Board of Directors, as well as influencing relations with business partners
and suppliers. It promotes a business model based on integrity, transparency, social
responsibility and sustainability, ensuring compliance with national and international
regulations and fostering a corporate culture of ethics and legality.

The main contents of the Code cover several areas of business conduct. Integrity and
transparency are key principles, with a commitment to fair and honest behaviour in
internal and external relations. Social responsibility and respect for human rights are at
the heart of the Group’s strategy, which is committed to creating a safe, inclusive working
environment that respects people’s dignity, promoting fair conditions for all workers and
combating any form of discrimination, exploitation or abuse.

The Code also includes specific provisions on regulatory compliance, requiring compliance
with all applicable laws and sectoral regulations, with a particular emphasis on anti-

corruption legislation, financial transparency and personal data protection. Guidelines are
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provided to avoid conflicts of interest, stipulating that all business decisions must be made
solely in the interest of the company and without undue personal or external influence.
Regarding to relations with stakeholders, the Code governs interactions with customers,
suppliers, institutions and the community, promoting relations based on mutual trust and
respect for ethical rules.

Dexelance constantly monitors issues raised, including possible violations of the Code,
also involving the Group CFO in all communications.

The Code of Ethics makes reference to various international regulations and conventions,
which define the principles of business ethics and social responsibility, also incorporating
references to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001, which governs the vicarious corporate
liability of companies for offences committed in their interest or to their advantage.

The Group has adopted a 231 Model and a whistleblowing system to meet its obligations
to transparency and preventing wrongdoing. In particular, the whistleblowing system
allows employees, collaborators and other stakeholders, both internal and external, to
report concerns about conduct that is unlawful or in conflict with the Code or internal
regulations. Reports can be made anonymously through internal reporting channels,
which are managed by specially designated and trained staff. In the event of a report, the
Group will initiate an internal investigation conducted independently and objectively,
with the aim of ensuring that each situation is dealt with promptly and impartially.

In relation to anti-corruption, the Group has not adopted policies and procedures that
comply with Italian law and international guidelines. By 2025, the Group is committed to
drawing up a Group anti-corruption policy, to which all subsidiaries will adhere.
Regardign to the protection of whistleblowers, the Group guarantees protection against
retaliation in accordance with the applicable legislation, including Directive (EU)
2019/1937. Measures are in place to protect the anonymity and security of
whistleblowers, and staff receiving reports are appropriately trained to handle the

information in a secure and confidential manner.
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Dexelance also provides regular training to its employees with a programme that includes
topics on business conduct, corruption prevention and how to use whistleblowing
channels.

The roles most at risk of active and passive corruption are, at the central level and for the
subsidiaries, the Management and the Administration, Finance and Control area, as well
as the central Investor Relations area and, for subsidiaries, the Procurement and Quality
area.

In addition to the Code of Ethics and the procedures in place to handle whistleblowers’
reports in accordance with the applicable legislation transposing Directive (EU)
2019/1937, the Group has not adopted any further specific procedures to investigate
incidents concerning business conduct, including cases of active and passive bribery,
other than those provided for in the applicable legislation. No specific actions, metrics
and targets were implemented in 2024. However, the Group is committed to defining

actions and initiatives in this regard in the coming years.

[G1-2] Management of relationships with suppliers

The Dexelance Group manages relations with its suppliers according to principles of
professionalism, collaboration and transparency, in an awareness of the strategic role
they play in the value chain. Particular attention is paid to the geographical origin of
suppliers, with a clear preference for collaborations with Italian companies. This choice
not only preserves the quality associated with the "Made in Italy’ brand, but it also
promotes local economic development, creating a virtuous circle for the communities in
which the Group operates and contributing to the reduction of the environmental impact
linked to transport.

Suppliers are selected and monitored through procedures, which consider the
competence, quality and sustainability of their activities. The aim is to ensure high
standards for products, in compliance with current regulations and corporate

sustainability commitments. For this reason, the contact persons in the procurement area
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of the subsidiaries periodically carry out checks and visits at the sites of the main
suppliers.

For companies in the “Luxury Contract” strategic business area, such as Cenacchi and
Modar, the selection of suppliers may vary according to specific customer requirements.
However, even in these cases, suppliers are subject to the same evaluation criteria, with
the obligation to comply with the quality standards defined by the Group and demanded
by clients.

Environmental and social sustainability is an essential criterion when choosing suppliers.
Four Group companies have already set up supply chains with partners with recognised
certifications, such as the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC®) for responsible forest
management. In addition, some companies are actively collaborating with suppliers to
increase the use and study of recycled or easily recyclable materials.

The commitment of several Group companies also extends to the choice of eco-friendly
materials, such as leather from certified tanneries and upholstered materials with
environmental labels.

The company has not currently adopted a formal procedure for the management of
payments to suppliers and SMEs involved in the supply chain, as the established practice
of all subsidiaries is to comply with the payment deadlines for individual contracts, except
in exceptional cases where there is a need to open disputes. It should also be noted that
it is common practice in subsidiaries, and in the market in general, to establish supply
agreements that provide for advance payments for part of the amount, which further
reduces the risk of debt exposure to suppliers and SMEs. These practices are also
confirmed by the supplier ageing in the Financial Reporting, which shows that past due

amounts are historically very low for the Group.
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Annex

[IRO-2] Disclosure requirements of the ESRS covered by the Consolidated
Sustainability Statement

The Group has considered the phased introduction provisions for disclosure obligations
or elements of information for disclosure obligations as outlined in Appendix C of ESRS 1,

except for what is provided for S1-7, S1-8, S1-13, and S1-14.

DR ‘ LIST OF DR MATERIALS Reference page
ESRS 2 - GENERAL INFORMATION
BP-1 General basis for preparation of the sustainability statement 17
BP-2 Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances 18
GOV-1 The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies 21
GOV-2 Infor.m.ation. provided to and sustainabili'sy matter§ addressed by the undertaking’s 26
administrative, management and supervisory bodies
GOV-3 Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes 27
GOV-4 Statement on due diligence 28
GOV-5 Risk management and internal controls over sustainability reporting 28
SBM-1 Strategy, business model and value chain 30
SBM-2 Interests and views of stakeholders 39
SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model | 42
IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities 47
IRO-2 Disclosure requirements in ESRS covered by the undertaking’s sustainability statement 109
ESRS E1 - CLIMATE CHANGE
SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model | 59
IRO-1 Descriptic?rT of the processes to identify and assess material climate-related impacts, risks and 57
opportunities
GOV-3 Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes 28
E1-1 Transition Plan for climate change mitigation 60
E1-2 Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation 60
E1-3 Actions and resources in relation to climate change policies 60
E1-4 Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation 60
E1-5 Energy consumption and mix 61
E1-6 Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and Total GHG emissions 63
E1-7 GHG removals and GHG mitigation projects financed through carbon credits 66
1.9 Anticipated financial effects from material physical and transition risks and potential climate- Phase-in
related opportunities
ESRS ES5 - RESOURCE USE AND CIRCULAR ECONOMY
IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess material resource use and circular economy- 36

related impacts, risks and opportunities
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E5-1 Policies related to resource use and circular economy 87
E5-2 Actions and resources related to resource use and circular economy 87
E5-3 Targets related to resource use and circular economy 87
E5-4 Resource inflows 88
E5-5 Resource outflows 91
£5-6 Anticipatgq financial effects from resource use and circular economy-related impacts, risks and Phase-in
opportunities
ESRS S1 - OWN WORKFORCE
SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model | 94
S1-1 Policies related to own workforce 96
S1-2 Processes for engaging with own workers and workers’ representatives about impacts 96
S1-3 Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for own workers to raise concerns 96
Taking action on material impacts on own workforce, and approaches to mitigating material risks
S1-4 and pursuing material opportunities related to own workforce, and effectiveness of those 97
actions
1.5 Targets related to managing material negative impacts, advancing positive impacts, and 99
managing material risks and opportunities
S1-6 Characteristics of own workforce 99
S1-7 Characteristics of non-employees own workforce 100
S1-9 Diversity metrics 101
S1-10 Adequate wages 101
S1-13 Training metrics and skills development 103
S1-14 Health and safety metrics 103
S1-16 Compensation metrics (pay gap and total compensation) 101
S1-17 Incidents, complaints and severe human rights impacts 102
ESRS G1 - CONDUCT OF BUSINESS
IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities 106
GOV-1 The role of the administrative, supervisory and management bodies 107
G1-1 Corporate culture and business conduct policies 107
G1-2 Management of relationships with suppliers 109

[Appendix B] List of information elements under the cross-cutting and thematic
principles derived from EU law

The table shows the pages relating exclusively to material ESRS.

Disclosure obligation Benchmark EU climate
. - . . Reference
and corresponding SFDR reference Third pillar reference regulation regulation
information element reference reference page
, Delegated
ESRS 2 si?/zrr(:i:ygsgfaegrraph 1 Annex |, Table 1, Regulation (EU) 22
GOV-1 () Indicator no. 13 2020/1816,
Annex Il

ESRS 2 Percentage of Board of Delegated 2
GOV-1 Directors members who Regulation (EU)
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are independent

2020/1816,

paragraph 21 (e) Annex ||
ESRS 2 Statement on due Annex |, Table 3, )8
GOV-4 diligence paragraph 30 Indicator no. 10
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
No 575/2013;
Involvement in . Commls_smn Implementing Delegated
ESRS 2 activities related to Indicator number Regulation (EV) Regulation (EU) Not
SBM-1 fossil fuel activities 4 of Table #1 of 2022/2453(§)Table 1 2020/1816, Applicable
aragraph 40 (d) i Annex 1 Quialitative information on Annex |l
paragrap Environmental risk and
Table 2: Qualitative
information on Social risk
Involvement in Indicator number Delegated
ESRS 2 activities related to 9 of Table #2 of Regulation (EU) Not
SBM-1 chemical production Annex 1 2020/1816, Applicable
paragraph 40 (d) ii Annex ||
Delegated
Regulation (EU)
Involvement in indicator number 2020/1818(7),
ESRS 2 activities related to Article 12(1) Not
. 14 of Table #1 of .
SBM-1 controversial weapons Annex 1 Delegated Applicable
paragraph 40 (d) iii Regulation (EU)
2020/1816,
Annex Il
Delegated
Involvement in Regulation (EU)
activities related to 2020/1818(7),
ESRS 2 cultivation and Article 12(1) Not
SBM-1 . Delegated Applicable
production of tobacco .
aragraph 40 (d) iv Regulation (EU)
P 2020/1816,
Annex Il
Transition plan to reach Regulation (EU)
ESRSE1-1 | climate neutrality by 2021/1119, 60
2050 paragraph 14 Acrticle 2(1)
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
R
Undertakings excluded P Enee Regulation (EU)
. (EU) 2022/2453 Template 1:
from Paris-aligned . . 2020/1818, Not
ESRS E1-1 Banking book-Climate . .
Benchmarks paragraph . . Article12.1 (d) to Applicable
Change transition risk: .
16 (g) . . (g), and Article
Credit quality of exposures 122
by sector, emissions and ’
residual maturity
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
No 575/2013; Commission
. . . . Delegated
GHG emission Indicator number Implementing Regulation Regulation (EU)
ESRS E1-4 | reduction targets 4 of Table #2 of (EU) 2022/2453 Template 3: & 60
. . 2020/1818,
paragraph 34 Annex 1 Banking book — Climate .
o . Article 6
change transition risk:
alignment metrics
Enerey consumption Indicator number
fromgfyossil sour?:es > Table #1 and
ESRS E1-5 Indicator n. 5 62

disaggregated by
sources (only high

Table #2 of Annex
1
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climate impact sectors)
paragraph 38

Energy consumption

Indicator number

ESRS E1-5 and mix paragraph 37 5 of Table #1 of 62
Annex 1
Energy intensity
associated with Indicator number
ESRS E1-5 | activities in high climate | 6 of Table #1 of 63
impact sectors Annex 1
paragraphs 40 to 43
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
No 575/2013; Commission
Implementing Regulation Delegated
Gross Scope 1, 2, 3 and Indicators number | (EU) 2022/2453 Template 1: | Regulation (EU)
ESRS E1-6 | Total GHG emissions 1and 2 Table #1 Banking book-Climate 2020/1818, 64
paragraph 44 of Annex 1 Change transition risk: Article 5(1), 6 and
Credit quality of exposures 8(1)
by sector, emissions and
residual maturity
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
No 575/2013; Commission
. . . . Delegated
Gross GHG emissions Indicator number Implementing Regulation Regulation (EU)
ESRS E1-6 | intensity paragraphs 53 | 3 of Table #1 of (EU) 2022/2453 Template 3: 66
to 55 Annex 1 Banking book — Climate 202.0/1818'
. . Article 8(1)
change transition risk:
alignment metrics
GHG removals and Regulation (EU)
ESRS E1-7 | carbon credits 2021/1119, 67
paragraph 56 Article 2(1)
Delegated
Regulation (EU)
Exposure of the 2020/1818,
ESRS E1-9 b?nchmark portfolio.to Annex Il Phase in
climate-related physical Delegated
risks paragraph 66 Regulation (EU)
2020/1816,
Annex I
Disaggregation of Article 449a Regulation (EU)
monetary amounts by No 575/2013; Commission
acute and chronic Implementing Regulation
physical risk paragraph (EU) 2022/2453 paragraphs
ESRSE1-9 | 66 (a) 46 and 47; Template 5: Phase in
ESRS E1-9 Location of Banking book - Climate
significant assets at change physical risk:
material physical risk Exposures subject to
paragraph 66 (c) physical risk
Article 449a Regulation (EU)
No 575/2013; Commission
Implementing Regulation
Brealfdown of th? (EU) 2022/2453 paragraph
carrying value of its real 34; Template 2: Banking
ESRSE1-9 | estate assets by energy- ! ) Phase in

efficiency classes
paragraph 67 (c)

book -Climate change
transition risk: Loans
collateralised by immovable
property - Energy efficiency
of the collateral
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Degree of exposure of
the portfolio to climate-

Delegated
Regulation (EU)

ESRSEL-9 related opportunities 2020/1818, Phase in
paragraph 69 Annex Il
Non-recycled waste Indicator number
ESRS E5-5 paragraph 37 (d) 13 of Table #2 of 92
Annex 1
Hazardous waste and Indicator number
ESRS E5-5 | radioactive waste 9 of Table #1 of 92
paragraph 39 Annex 1
ESRS 2 - Risk of incidents of Indicator number
SBM3 - S1 forced labour 13 of Table #3 of 95
paragraph 14 (f) Annex 1
ESRS2- | Risk of incidents of child | "ocator number
SBM3 -S1 | labour paragraph 14 (g) 12 of Table #3 of %
Annex 1
Indicator number
Human rights policy 9 Table #3 and
ESRS S1-1 | commitments Indicator number 96
paragraph 20 11 Table #1 of
Annex |
Due diligence policies
on issues addressed by Delegated
the func!amental Regulation (EU)
ESRS S1-1 Internfathnal Labor 2020/1816, 96
Organisation
. Annex I
Conventions 1to 8,
paragraph 21
Processes and
measures for Indicator number
ESRS S1-1 | preventing trafficking in | 11 of Table #3 of 96
human beings Annex 1
paragraph 22
Workpla?ce acc!dent Indicator number
EsRs s1-1 | Prevention policy or 1 of Table #3 of 9%
management system
Annex 1
paragraph 23
Grievance/complaints Indicator number
ESRS S1-3 | handling mechanisms 5 of Table #3 of 97
paragraph 32 (c) Annex 1
Number of fatalities Indicator number Delegated
ESRS S1- and number and rate of 2 of Table #3 of Regulation (EU) 103
14 work- related accidents Annex 1 2020/1816,
paragraph 88 (b) and (c) Annex Il
Number of days lost to .
ESRS S1- injuries, accidents Indicator number
AR ’ 3 of Table #3 of 103
14 fatalities orillness Annex 1
paragraph 88 (e)
Indicator number Delegated
ESRS S1- Unadjusted gender pay 12 of Table #1 of Regulation (EU) 102
16 gap paragraph 97 (a) 2020/1816,
Annex 1
Annex Il
ESRS S1- Excessive CEO pay ratio Indicator number
16 paragraph 97 (b) 8 of Table #3 of 102

Annex 1




Incidents of

Indicator number

igRS >1- discrimination 7 of Table #3 of 102
paragraph 103 (a) Annex 1
Delegated
. Regulation (EU)
Non-respect of UNGps | Ndicator number 2020/1816,
. 10 Table #1 and
ESRS S1- on Business and Human . Annex Il
. Indicator number 102
17 Rights and OECD Delegated
14 Table #3 of .
paragraph 104 (a) Annex | Regulation (EU)
2020/1818 Art 12
(1)
United Nations .
Convention against Indicator number
ESRS G1-1 . g 15 of Table #3 of 108
Corruption paragraph Annex 1
10 (b)
Protection of whistle- Indicator number Not
ESRS G1-1 | blowers paragraph 10 6 of Table #3 of Applicable

(d)

Annex 1

Main calculation criteria

The methodological indications on how some indicators reported in the Sustainability
Statement are calculated are as follows:

Power consumption

The Dexelance Group’s energy consumption (natural gas, electricity, diesel, gasoline, GPL)
was calculated in terms of Megawatts (Mwh). To standardise the different energy carriers,
conversion factors were used from the UK Department for Environment, Food & Rural
Affairs (DEFRA) table “UK Government GHG Conversion factors for Company Reporting —
Fuel properties”.

Climate-altering emissions

The greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1, Scope 2 location-based, and Scope 3) were
calculated in accordance with 1ISO 14064 for the year 2024. The certification according to
ISO 14064 was issued by Bureau Veritas on 26 February 2025. Scope 2 market-based
greenhouse gas emissions in the Reporting were not subject to verification according to
ISO 14064.

Direct (Scope 1) and indirect (Scope 2) emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions were calculated in line with the standard ISO 14064.
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The following sources for emission factors were used to calculate direct emissions (Scope
1):

 Fuels (natural gas, petrol, diesel): Ecoinvent.

¢ Refrigerant gases (F-gases): IPCC 2021.

To calculate indirect emissions (Scope 2), electricity consumption was converted
according to location-based and market-based approaches, using the following sources
for emission factors:

¢ For the location-based approach, calculated on the basis of the percentage composition
of the national mix of each country (Italy, France, the United Kingdom, China, and the
United States), the Eco invent emission factors were used;

 For the market-based approach: for European sites, the figure used in Ecoinvent, which
is based on the document “European Residual Mixes 2023” published in 2024 by the
Association of Issuing Bodies (AIB) was used for 2024 data. For sites located outside the
EU, at the time of writing, the Residual Mix emission factors are not publicly available
from accredited sources; for this reason, the same emission factors applied according to
the location-based methodology.

e For the calculation of emissions from district heating (or centralised heating for
condominium utilities), it was assumed that natural gas combustion is used to bring water
to the desired temperature. The values of the emission factors used are therefore those
for natural gas from Ecoinvent.

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3) were calculated in accordance with 1SO
14064. The results of the quantification were then expressed according to the
categorisation provided for in the GHG Protocol. The main greenhouse gases CO;, CH4,
N20, HFC, PFC, SF6 and other fluorinated gases) were translated into units of CO:
equivalent (CO.eq) due to emissions factors published by the International Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC37).

The categories included in the inventory are listed below as defined in the reference
standard ISO 14064-1, for each category the sources of the emission factors used are

given:
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¢ 3.1 - Emissions relating to the transport of supplying of raw materials, semi-finished
products, marketed products and packaging: calculated based on transported materials
and driven distances (tons*kilometres), using the Ecoinvent and Exiobase38 databases as
the source for emission factors.

¢ 3.2 - Emissions relating to the transport for the distribution of the finished product: the
same calculation method was used for this category as for Category 3.1.

e 3.3 - Internal logistics emissions between facilities or between the company and
subcontracted companies: the same calculation method was used for this category as for
Category 3.1.

e 4.1 - Emissions related to energy uses and proprietary vehicles: related to climate-
altering emissions tied to fuel supply stages (gasoline, diesel, and natural gas) and
electricity. The source of the emission factors used is the Ecoinvent database.

¢ 4.2 - Emissions related to imported energy: the same calculation method was used for
this category as for Category 4.1.

e 4.3 - Emissions from the procurement of raw materials, semi-finished products,
marketed products and purchased packaging: related to emissions from the production
of raw materials, semi-finished products, marketed products and purchased packaging.
The activity figure for quantifying impacts is expressed either as a mass or in terms of
economic expenditure for the purchase. Each item reported by the Company has been
associated with a specific emission factor whose sources are: Exiobase, Ecoinvent, and
the Environmental Program Declaration (EPD) library.

e 4.4 - Emissions from outsourced production activities: related to emissions from
outsourced production activities. Each item reported by the Company has been
associated with an emission factor whose sources are the Ecoinvent and Exiobase
databases.

¢ 4.5 - Emissions related to the treatment of waste generated at its own facilities: Related
to emissions generated by the disposal of waste generated at the Group’s facilities. In
accordance with the end-of-life allocation approach, waste destined for recovery is

associated only with the impact of transport to the treatment plant; for the disposal
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share, Ecoinvent emissions factors were used that take the average distribution between
landfill and incineration into account.

¢ 5.1 - End-of-life emissions of products sold: the same calculation method was used for

this category 4.5.

With reference to the content of the paragraph “Methodology note” in the chapter

“General Information — basis for preparations”, and in particular to the criteria for

identifying the significant categories or categories subject to quantification, below is an

overview of the categories relevant to the Group according to the ISO 14064 scheme.

Description = % % o ‘i:’ % g 4 %
°l % ER g 35

Direct emissions from facilities or owned vehicles
Energy vectors produced
Combustion of natural gas 1 High Direct C. Available | Yes | 1.a
Combustion of biogas 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Combustion of biomethane 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Combustion of woody biomass 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Combustion of diesel 1 Low Direct C. Available | Yes | 1.a
Other direct emissions by owned facilities NO
Emissions from agricultural activities in fields 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Emissions and absorptions from forestry 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Direct emissions from the livestock sector 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Use and change of use of soil 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Emissions and removal from chemical reactions 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Other monitored emissions into the air 1 Low Direct C. | Obtainable | Yes | 1.d
F-GAS fugitive emissions 1 Low Direct C. Available Yes | 1.d
Combustion from mobile owned sources NO
Automobiles 1 Low Direct C. Available | Yes | 1.b
Trucks 1 Media Direct C. Available | Yes | 1.b
Watercraft 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Aircraft 1 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Operating machinery 1 Low Direct C. Available Yes | 1.b
Emissions from the purchase of energy NO
Energy sources purchased NO
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Electrical energy 2 High Direct C. Available Yes | 2.a
Other energy vectors purchased 2 n.a n.a. n.a. NO
Emissions from transports NO
Transport of goods NO
Procurement of raw materials 3 High Indirect C. Existing Yes | 4
Distribution of finished and semi-finished products High Indirect C. Existing Yes
Logistics between facilities 3 Low Direct C. Existing Yes | 4
Shifting of people NO
Personnel commuting 3 Media Influence | Obtainable | NO
Work trips (using non-company means) 3 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Movements of clients and visitors 3 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Indirect emissions from mobile owned sources NO
Indirect emissions from owned automobiles 3 Low Direct C. Available | Yes | 3
Indirect emissions from owned trucks 3 Low Direct C. Available | Yes | 3
Indirect emissions from owned watercraft 3 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Indirect emissions from owned aircraft 3 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Indirect emissions from owned operating machinery 3 Low Direct C. Available | Yes | 3
Emissions from the purchase of sales and services NO
Materials purchased NO

Raw and semifinished materials 4 High Indirect C. Existing Yes | 1
Packaging for products sold 4 Low Indirect C. Existing Yes | 1
Packaging for goods purchased 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Other goods not directly connected to production 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Indirect emissions through produced energy vectors NO
Indirect emissions from the combustion of natural gas 4 Low Direct C. Available Yes | 3
Indirect emissions from the combustion of biogas 4 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Indirect emissions from the combustion of biomethane 4 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Indirect emissions from the combustion of woody biomass 4 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Indirect emissions from the combustion of diesel 4 Low Direct C. Available | Yes | 3
Indirect emissions from energy vectors purchased NO
Indirect emissions from electrical energy 4 | Medium | DirectC. Available | Yes | 3
Indirect emissions from other energy vectors purchased 4 n.a. n.a. n.a. NO
Durable assets and infrastructure NO
Machinery and other durable assets 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Infrastructure 4 | Medium | Influence | Obtainable | NO
Electronic devices 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Other assets not directly connected to production 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Services NO
Outsourced production processes 4 | Medium | Indirect C. | Obtainable | Yes | 1
IT services 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Other auxiliary services 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Facility waste treatment (special waste) 4 Low Direct C. Existing Yes | 5
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Waste treatment involving collection by city services 4 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO
Emissions associated with the use of the organisation’s products NO
Downstream of the products sold NO
Phase of the product’s use 5 Media Influence | Obtainable | NO
Disposal of the product 5 High Influence | Obtainable | Yes | 12
Disposal of the product packaging 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | Yes | 12
Financial investments NO
Consumer loan 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Project finance 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Corporate loan 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Listed and equity bonds 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Private equity and debts include venture capital 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Advisory services, if relevant 5 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Other emissions NO
Employee activities 6 NO
Employee food (not at the cafeteria) 6 Low Influence | Obtainable | NO
Remote working 6 Low Indirect C. | Obtainable | NO

Health and safety

The injury frequency rate is calculated as the ratio between the total number of
recordable incidents (incidents resulting in at least one lost workday and/or medical
treatment and/or restricted work cases) and the number of hours worked during the
same period, multiplied by 1,000,000, as prescribed by the EFRAG Application
Requirement (AR 89). The major accident frequency index is calculated as the ratio of the

total number of accidents to the number of hours worked in the same period, multiplied

by 1,000,000.

Employees

Employee data are represented as personnel at 31 December of the reference periods,

and not as FTE (Full-time equivalent) data.

Contacts and document review

This document was approved on 11 March 2025 and is subject to a limited assurance

engagement according tothe International Standard on Assurance Engagements
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principle ISAE 3000 (revised) by EY S.p.A. For further information on the Dexelance
Group’s sustainability strategy and the contents of this reporting, please write to the

following address: investors@dexelance.com.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT, CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 -
ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

Dexelance S.p.A. is based in Milan and has been listed on the Italian Stock Exchange since
18 May 2023; the Dexelance share is part of the FTSE Italia Small Cap index. The Company
was established on 10 March 2015 with the aim of promoting an Italian design hub in the
furniture and lighting segment. Since 2023, its scope has also included high-end modular
kitchen solutions and systems that can implement dimensional, organisational,
managerial, strategic and distribution synergies, which allow Dexelance to compete
internationally in a segment where Italy has a competitive advantage and excellent

creative and product skills.

On 22 April 2024, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Company
resolved to amend Article 1.1 letter T and Article 2.1 of the By-laws, approving the
proposal to change the company name to “Dexelance S.p.A.”, in order to create a new
group identity to support and grow towards a renewed and higher positioning in the

market.

This report accompanying the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 provides an analysis of economic performance of the Dexelance Group,
which was established in 2015 following the first corporate acquisition of Gervasoni S.p.A.
Subsequently over the years, the Dexelance Group has continued its growth through
external lines by completing additional corporate acquisitions: Meridiani S.r.l. (in 2016);
Cenacchi International S.r.l. (in 2017); Davide Groppi S.r.l. and Saba Italia S.r.l. (in 2018);
Modar S.p.A. (in 2019); Flexalighting S.r.l. (in 2020); a minority stake in Axo Light S.r.l. (in
2021) and the purchase in 2024 of the remaining shares in order to acquire full control of

Axo Light S.r.l.; Gamma Arredamenti International S.p.A. (in 2022), Cubo Design S.r.l. and
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Turri S.r.l. (in 2023).
It should be noted that the scope of consolidation has not changed since 31 December
2023. However, it should be noted that:

- On 1 October 2024, the merger by incorporation of the company Nian Design S.r.I.
into the parent company Cubo Design S.r.l. was carried out, based on the merger plan
approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 7 August 2024; the transaction has no
accounting effect at the consolidated level.

- 0On 15 October 2024, Dexelance S.p.A. completed its acquisition of the remaining
share capital of the subsidiary Axo Light S.r.l. (equal to 49%); the objective of the
transaction is the continuation of the Group’s consolidation in the “Lighting” strategic
area with a view to greater organisational effectiveness and renewed synergistic

interaction between the companies belonging to this operating segment.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements
of the Parent Company as at 31 December 2024 have been prepared in accordance with

the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union.

Macroeconomic and sectoral context

The year 2024 closed with a drop in turnover in the wood-furniture sector (-3.1%)*
compared to 2023, with a more pronounced decline in the domestic market (-3.5%),
which accounts for more than 60% of the total turnover and is affected by the reduction
in tax incentives, compared to exports (-2.3%), whose share accounts for 38% of the total
turnover. The trade balance of the wood-furniture chain, after the growth recorded in
2023, decreased (-5.3%) mainly due to the reduction in exports, while imports remained
stable. In particular, the furnishing system held up better than the woodworking system,
giving up 2.5 per cent of turnover and 2.1 per cent of exports, whereas the drop in 2023

had been 4%. The downturn recorded weighed mainly on key markets such as France (-

21 Centro Studi Federlegno Arredo Eventi S.p.A., Preliminary accounts 2024 Filiera Legno-Arredo, January
2025.
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3.5% in the first ten months of the year) and Germany (-3.6%), respectively the first and
second market for Italian furniture, and the collapse of China (-17.9%), which was partly
offset by the good performance of the United States (+2%), the third largest market, and
the strong growth in the United Arab Emirates (+21.6%) and Saudi Arabia (+22.8%).

The furnishings macro-system suffered a downturn in turnover (-2.5%), which was the
result of a decline in foreign markets (-2.1%), but above all due to lower sales in the Italian
market (-2.8%). Imports show a modest recovery, which affects the change in domestic
consumption.

The Wood macro-system, which had recorded a decrease in 2023, suffers a new decrease
in turnover in 2024 (-5.6%); the contraction is mainly in the domestic market (-6.5%), and

to a lesser extent in exports (-2.6%).

Preliminary estimates for 2024 see exports of the wood/furniture sector dropping by 2.3%
compared to 2023. Of the major export destinations recorded from January to October
2024, only the United States, Belgium and the United Arab Emirates show a positive sign,
while Spain and Switzerland show signs of stability. Significant declines were recorded in
Germany, the UK, France and China.

Comparing the main markets of Italian exports and, in particular, those with greater
increases and decreases compared to the previous year, the markets with the greatest
contribution are the United Arab Emirates, with an increase of EUR 67 billion in exports
compared to 2023, followed by the United States and Saudi Arabia, then South Korea and

Canada.

With reference to the Group’s performance during the year 2024, it should be noted that
the Dexelance Group has a significant presence in all the main world markets, particularly
Italy, the European Union and North America; moreover, the differentiation of the offer
attributable to the four different strategic business areas constitute a further element of

stabilisation and, therefore, of risk containment, including geopolitical risks, which may
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impact some markets more than others.

Progress of Group Management

From an economic standpoint, the consolidated financial statements show revenue and
other income of EUR 329,295 thousand, an operating result of EUR 27,414 thousand
(after a depreciation and amortisation of tangible assets totalling EUR 22,541 thousand)
and a positive result for the year of EUR 17,904 thousand, to the determination of which
saw the contribution of a net financial income totalling EUR 1,853 thousand, and income
tax totalling EUR 7,658 thousand.

To this result, the negative adjustment of EUR 41 thousand is to be made. This results
from the adjustment of the year-end value of hedging financial instruments net of taxes
and the translation reserve related to the conversion of foreign financial statements in
currencies other than the euro, actuarial losses and other movements totalling EUR -92
thousand. The result of the comprehensive income statement is therefore a profit of

EUR 17,771 thousand.

Operating conditions and business development

Dexelance S.p.A. holds the entire available capital of Gervasoni S.p.A. (30% are treasury
shares), controls 100% of Meridiani S.r.l., which in turn fully controls Meridiani France
SARL, 99% of Cenacchi International S.r.l., 100% of Davide Groppi S.r.l, the entire capital
of Saba Italia S.r.l. and Modar S.p.A., 51% of Flexalighting S.r.l., which in turn fully controls
Borman Lighting S.r.l. and 51% of Flexalighting North America Ltd.; 100% of Dexelance UK
Ltd., IDB Suzhou Co. Ltd. and Dexelance USA Corp., 100% of Axo Light S.r.l., which in turn
owns 100% of Axo Light USA Corp., 55% of Gamma Arredamenti International S.p.A.,
which in turn owns 100% of Gamma Arredamenti International Inc., 60% of Cubo Design
S.r.l., 51% of Turri S.r.l., which in turn wholly owns Turri UK Ltd., Turri USA Corp. and
Shanghai Turri Furnitures. Let us recall that Cenacchi International S.r.l., Flexalighting
S.r.l., Flexalighting North America Ltd., Gamma Arredamenti Arredamenti International
S.p.A., Cubo Design S.r.l., and Turri S.r.l. were fully consolidated due to the put options

that may be exercised by the minority shareholders and call options in favour of the
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Company, with the consequent obligation to purchase the units/shares held at predefined
conditions.

The Group’s companies belong to the strategic business areas (SBAs) and coincide with
the operating segments provided for in IFRS 8, i.e. furniture, lighting, luxury contracts and
kitchen and systems-

Graphically, the structure of the Group as at 31 December 2024 is as follows:
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With reference to the companies of the Dexelance Group, it should be noted that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

In 2024, Gervasoni presented a slight reduction in turnover compared to what was
achieved in 2023 (-8%); the relevant markets are Italy (21%), Europe (37%) and non-
EU (42%);

Meridiani reported a sales decrease in line with that achieved in the 2023 financial
year (-15%); the relevant markets are Italy (24%), Europe (47%) and non-EU (30%);
Cenacchi International recorded a sales performance (including the change in
contract work in progress) in line with that achieved in 2023 (-3%). Sales are mainly
to contract customers; the relevant markets are Italy (10%), Europe (30%), and non-
EU (60%) (mainly the United States);

Davide Groppi increased its turnover by roughly 10% during the period; the relevant
markets are Italy (50%), Europe (31%) and non-EU (19%);

the company Saba Italia’s turnover decreased slightly over the period by about 5%;
the relevant markets are Italy (43%), Europe (28%), and non-EU (29%);

the company Modar recorded an increase in sales revenues, including the change in
contract work in progress, of about 16% during the year compared to the previous
year; the relevant markets are Italy (17%), Europe (8%) and non-EU (75%) (mainly in
the United States);

the company Flexalighting increased its turnover during the period by about 14%
compared to 2023; the relevant markets are Italy (49%), Europe (34%), and non-EU
(17%). The Canadian subsidiary Flexalighting North America, on the other hand,
increased its turnover compared to 2023 by about 20%, with sales mainly in the
Canadian market;

The company Gamma has achieved a slightly higher turnover compared to 2023
(+3%), mainly outside Europe and Italy (92%), of which 48% in North America (40% in
the United States), and 19% in China;

the company Cubo Design has achieved sales in growth with recorded in during the
2023 financial year of about 7%; the relevant markets are Italy (49%), Europe (26%),
and non-EU (25%);
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j) the company Axo Light, whose entire share capital was acquired in 2024, sells roughly
47% of its turnover to the European market, about 31% to the Italian market and 23%
to the non-EU market;

k) Turri sells mainly to the non-EU market, where it generates roughly 57% of its
turnover, followed by turnover generated in the European market of about 28% and
turnover generated in the Italian market of about 15%.

The summary figures of the Group companies are presented here; it should be noted that
the figures do not take account of intercompany eliminations and are presented in

accordance with international accounting standards.

Revenues and Net financial
change in work EBITDA EBIT Net result position,

amounts are shown in €/1,000 in progress banks
Dexelance S.p.A. 681 (5,921) (6,157) 10,039 (26,692)
Gervasoni S.p.A. 34,823 7,157 5,854 4,265 386
Meridiani S.r.l. 24,953 1,008 (268) 927 590
Cenacchi Int. S.r.l. 38,728 11,614 8,871 6,458 (4,108)
Davide Groppi S.r.l. 17,529 1,980 800 925 (545)
Saba Italia S.r.l. 21,251 1,908 885 361 1,355
Modar S.p.A. 52,523 8,244 6,429 4,251 (2,626)
Flexalighting S.r.l. 7,896 2,736 2,609 1,977 (748)
Flexa. North America Ltd. 3,645 979 765 394 (173)
Gamma Arr. Int. S.p.A. 20,267 2,635 1,417 209 7,851
Cubo Design S.r.l. 59,360 10,855 4,659 2,108 15,375
Axo Light S.r.l. 3,122 (695) (981) (154) 1,645
Turri S.r.l. 37,985 5,013 1,661 1,059 3,885
Other companies 7,976 2,444 871 (2,456) (1,375)
Aggregated total 330,738 49,955 27,414 30,364 (5,180)
Consolidation entries (*) (6,354) (12,460)

Consolidated total 324,384 49,955 27,414 17,904 (5,180)

(*) Eliminations made in respect of commercial transactions and intra-group services and dividend payments in

2024, as described below.

In particular, as a result of the above figure for the holding company's net bank financial

position includes the balances of the Group’s cash pooling relationships
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ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE GROUP

To gain the best understanding of the Group’s situation and operating performance, the
tables below show a brief analysis of the consolidated financial statements, made up of
the reclassified income statement, the reclassified statement of financial position and a
series of financial statement ratios.

Dexelance S.p.A. prepares the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2024
and the comparative financial statements as at 31 December 2023 by applying IAS/IFRS.
It includes the data of the direct subsidiaries Gervasoni S.p.A., Meridiani S.r.l., Cenacchi
International S.r.l., Davide Groppi S.r.l., Saba Italia S.r.l., Modar S.p.A., Flexalighting S.r.l.,
IDB Suzhou Co. Ltd., Dexelance UK Ltd., Dexelance USA Corp., Gamma Arredamenti
International S.p.A., Cubo Design S.r.l., Axo Light S.r.l. and Turri S.r.l., as well as its indirect
subsidiaries Meridiani France SARL, Borman Lighting S.r.l., Flexalighting North America
Ltd., Gamma Arredamenti International Inc., Axo Light USA Corp., Turri UK Ltd., Turri USA
Corp. and Shanghai Turri Furnitures.

The Dexelance Group uses alternative performance indicators (hereinafter “Non-GAAP
measures”) in line with ESMA’s guidelines on “alternative performance indicators” (ESMA
Guidelines/2015/1415, adopted by Consob in Communication No 92543 of
3 December 2015), to enable a better assessment of operating performance.

The indicators represented are not identified as accounting measures under IFRSs and
should therefore not be considered as alternative measures to those provided in the
model financial statements for assessing the performance of the Group and its financial
position. The Group considers that the financial information set out below is an additional
important benchmark for assessing the Group’s performance, as it allows for more
analytical monitoring of the Group’s economic and financial performance.

Since such financial information is not a measure that can be determined by the
underlying accounting standards for the drawing up of consolidated financial statements,
the criterion applied for its determination may not be consistent with that adopted by
other groups and therefore may not be comparable.

The definition of these alternative performance indicators is as follows.
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Added value is defined as the sum of revenue for goods and services and other revenue
and income less the sum of costs for the purchases of raw materials, changes in
inventories, costs for services and use of third-party goods and other operating costs.
EBITDA is defined as the sum of the net profit for the year, plus the profit (loss) of
discontinued assets, plus income taxes, financial income and charges, plus amortisation,
depreciation and writedowns of fixed assets.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as the sum of net profit for the year, plus the profit (loss) of
discontinued assets; income taxes; financial income and expenses; amortisation,
depreciation and write-downs of fixed assets and excluding non-recurring costs/revenue
(Special Items).

EBIT is defined as the sum of net profit for the year, plus the profit (loss) of discontinued
assets, plus income taxes, financial income and charges.

Adjusted EBIT is defined as the sum of net profit for the year, plus the profit (loss) of
discontinued assets, plus income taxes, financial income and charges, excluding non-
recurring costs/revenue and amortisation and depreciation of intangible assets with a
finite useful life, models and customer lists, recorded during Purchase Price Allocation
(PPA), and which are due to terminate at the end of the relevant depreciation process.
The adjusted net result from operating assets is defined as the net result from operating
assets excluding (i) non-recurring costs/revenue; (ii) amortisation and depreciation of
intangible assets with a finite useful life, models and customer lists, recorded during
Purchase Price Allocation (PPA), and which are due to terminate at the end of the relevant
amortisation process; (iii) the effects of the remeasurements of put and call options and
earnouts; and (iv) the related tax effects.

Working capital is calculated as the net balance of customer relationships, supplier
relationships, inventories and assets and liabilities arising from contracts, customer
advances, while net working capital is calculated by adding to operating working capital

income taxes credits and other current assets and liabilities.
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Invested capital is calculated as the balance between net working capital, non-current
assets, liabilities for employee benefits, and provisions for risks and charges and other
non-current liabilities.

The net financial position is represented by financial debts, net of cash and other cash

equivalents.

The income statement is reclassified in multiple-step form to show the gross operating
profit (EBITDA) generated by the Group, namely the difference between revenue and
costs associated with the purchase/transformation/sales cycle, regardless of

amortisation, depreciation and writedowns, the financing methods adopted and the level

of taxation.

Reclassified income statement 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 Change
amounts are shown in €/1,000 amount % amount % amount %
Revenue 287,350 100.0% 324,384 100.0% 37,034 12.9%
Other income 4,969 1.7% 4911 1.5% (58) -1.2%
Total revenue and income 292,319 101.7% 329,295 101.5% 36,976 12.6%
External operating costs (195,698) -68.1% (225,438) -69.5% (29,740) 15.2%
Added value 96,621 33.6% 103,857 32.0% 7,236 7.5%
Staff costs (44,122) . -15.4% (53,466) . -16.5% (9,344) 21.2%
Provisions and writedowns (388) -0.1% (436) -0.1% (47) 12.1%
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 52,111 18.1% 49,955 15.4% (2,155) -4.1%
Cvr:;fer;isjvt:;”&df?gjjji‘:z B (16,997)  -5.9% (22,541)  -6.9% (5,544)  32.6%
Operating profit (EBIT) 35,114 12.2% 27,414 8.5% (7,699) -21.9%
Financial result 2,235 0.8% (1,853) -0.6% (4,088) : -182.9%
Gross result 37,348 13.0% 25,561 7.9% (11,787) -31.6%
Income tax (9,218) -3.2% (7,658) -2.4% 1,560 1 -16.9%
Group consolidated net result 28,130 9.8% 17,904 5.5% (10,227) -36.4%

Revenue for 2024 increased compared to 2023, from EUR 287,350 thousand to EUR
324,384 thousand, an increase of EUR 37,034 thousand, or 13%; the recorded change is
the result of the combined effect of:

- growth by external lines, as a result of the acquisition of Cubo Design S.r.l. on 31

January 2023, the combination of Axo Light S.r.l. (and its subsidiary Axo Light USA
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Corp.), which took place in July 2023, and the acquisition of Turri S.r.l. (and its
subsidiaries) completed on 30 September 2023;

the increase in revenues of companies already belonging to the Group for the entire
comparative period as at 31 December 2023 (the latter effect totalling EUR 1,329

thousand).

The Group’s revenue by type of activity or strategic business area (SBA) and by geographic

area in 2024 and in the previous year are broken down as follows:

a 18.7% growth in the “Furniture” segment, which was significantly influenced by the
acquisition of Turri S.r.l. and its subsidiaries, which also contributed positively to
turnover growth in non-EU markets;

growth in the “Lighting” sector of 11.2%, resulting from the organic growth of the
companies belonging to the sector and, also, from the aggregation of Axo Light S.r.l.
(and its subsidiary Axo Light USA Corp.);

a 7.1% growth in “Luxury Contract”, which was totally organic;

a 13.6% growth in the “Kitchen and Systems” sector, mainly due to the growth

achieved by the company Cubo Design as at 31 December 2024 and the fact that the

acquisition took place on 31 January 2023.

amounts are shown in €/1,000 2023 2024 amounts are shown in €/1,000 2023 2024
Furniture 119,413 141,696 Italy 78,146 82,621
Lighting 28,854 32,077 EU 71,990 81,713
Luxury Contract 85,187 91,251 Non-EU 137,214 160,050
Kitchen & Systems 52,273 59,360 Total 287,350 324,384
Other 1,623

Total 287,350 324,384

It should be noted that 'Other’ consists solely of the parent company Dexelance S.p.A. As

of 31 December 2024, the foreign company revenue carrying out commercial activities

(Dexelance UK, IDB Suzhou and Dexelance USA) were classified according to their

respective strategic business area; in December 2023 they had been recognised under the




item “Other”.

EBITDA, as defined by the Group and a primary indicator of economic performance, is
EUR 49,955 thousand in 2024 compared to EUR 52,111 thousand in 2023, with an
increase of 4.1% and a percentage on revenue decrease from 18.1% in 2023 to 15.4% in
2024. This reduction resulted mainly from the increase in personnel costs and external
operating costs.

EBIT increased from EUR 35,114 thousand to about EUR 27,414 thousand, a decrease of
EUR 7,699 thousand, showing a slight increase in the ratio of fixed asset depreciation and
amortisation to revenue of the previous year.

The change recorded in the financial management result compared to the previous year
was mainly due to the positive economic effects of the remeasurement of imputed
financial charges for put and call options and earnouts of minority shareholders; these
effects were positive in 2023. For more information on the composition of financial
management and the change compared to last year, please refer to the notes to the
financial statements.

Income taxes show a total tax burden of EUR 7,658 thousand compared to
EUR 9,218 thousand in the previous year.

Finally, the profit for the year amounted to EUR 17,904 thousand compared to the

EUR 28,130 thousand loss for the previous year.

Considering the importance of some non-recurring economic components on the results
for the year and the unique way in which the Dexelance Group was formed, the Group’s
management also wants to highlight the following economic values: Adjusted EBITDA,
adjusted EBIT and adjusted net result. Specifically, the adjusted EBITDA is determined
without the non-recurring costs and revenues, essentially considering the costs related to
the IPO process for the portion charged to the income statement, the costs related to the
acquisition of the new companies, and other non-recurring costs and revenues. Adjusted
EBIT was calculated gross of both non-recurring costs and amortisation and depreciation

of intangible assets with a finite useful life (models, customer lists, and order books)
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recorded during Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) and that will terminate at the end of the
relevant depreciation process. Finally, the adjusted net result is that which would have
resulted in the absence of non-recurring costs/revenue, of the amortisation on certain
intangible assets with a finite useful life as well as without considering the positive and
negative economic effects resulting from the remeasurement of imputed financial
charges for put & call options and earnouts of minority shareholders.

Reclassified income statements are briefly presented, comparing actual and adjusted

profit and loss accounts based on the management view:

31/12/2023 31/12/2024

Effective Adjusted Effective Adjusted
amounts are shown in €/1,000 data data data data
Revenue 287,350 287,350 324,384 324,138
Other income 4,969 4,741 4,911 4,911
Total revenue and income 292,319 292,091 329,295 329,049
External operating costs (195,698) (192,868) (225,438) (224,644)
Added value 96,621 99,223 103,857 104,405
Staff costs (44,122) (44,122) (53,466) (53,099)
Provisions and writedowns (388) (388) (436) (436)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 52,111 54,713 49,955 50,870
:)r:wec;r;i::etlzn, depreciation and writedowns of (10,555) (10,555) (14,203) (14,203)
e a4 | - eme| -
Operating profit (EBIT) 35,114 44,157 27,414 36,667
Financial result 2,235 (5,353) (1,853) (3,560)
Gross result 37,348 38,804 25,561 33,106
Income tax (9,218) (10,866) (7,658) (9,870)
Group consolidated net result 28,130 27,938 17,904 23,236

EBITDA as at 31 December 2024 amounted to 15.4% of revenue for the period, which
increased by 12.9% compared to the previous year. Net of non-recurring costs of
EUR 915 thousand in 2024 and EUR 2,602 thousand in 2023, EBITDA (adjusted) stands at
15.7% of revenue as at 31 December 2024 compared to 19% as at 31 December 2023.

The reconciliation of the above values is shown below. Starting with the actual amounts,
the components taken into account to calculate the adjusted values as at 31 December

2023 and 31 December 2024 are listed below:
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Effective Non.- PP.A . Remeasurement Adjusted
. _ recurring depre(flatlf)n, of pgt and call i

amounts are shown in €/1,000 Sz mc?:sisand a:(;“ \z:ittltsaztc;(\:‘ns ozgfnnosui:d S
Revenue 287,350 287,350
Other income 4,969 (228) 4,741
Total revenue and income 292,319 (228) - - 292,091
External operating costs (195,698) 2,830 (192,868)
Added value 96,621 2,602 - - 99,223
Staff costs (44,122) (44,122)
Provisions and writedowns (388) (388)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 52,111 2,602 - - 54,713
et osss) 0558
Amortisation, depreciation and
writedowns of fixed assets arising from (6,442) 6,442 -
the PPA process
Operating profit (EBIT) 35,114 2,602 6,442 - 44,157
Financial result 2,235 (7,588) (5,353)
Gross result 37,348 2,602 6,442 (7,588) 38,804
Income tax (9,218) (427) (1,221) (10,866)
Group consolidated net result 28,130 2,175 5,221 (7,588) 27,938

As at 31 December 2023, instead, adjusted EBITDA was determined without considering

non-recurring costs including costs related to the IPO process, proceeds from the

payment of incentive plans made during 2023 following the IPO process and costs related

to the acquisition of new companies totalling EUR 2,602 thousand, while adjusted EBIT

was calculated gross of the amortisation and depreciation of intangible assets with a finite

useful life recorded during PPA for EUR 6,442 thousand. Finally, the adjusted net result

was determined without considering the positive and negative effects of imputed charges

and the remeasurement of put and call options and earnouts due to minority

shareholders. The aforementioned adjustments resulted in a higher overall tax burden of

EUR 1,648 thousand, which includes EUR 427 thousand associated with non-recurring

costs and EUR 1,221 thousand related to the amortisation and depreciation of intangible

assets.
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Effective Nonj PP.A . Remeasurement Adjusted
. _ recurring deprec_latlpn, of pL!t and call ke

amounts are shown in €/1,000 ST mc?:sisand a:(;“ \z:ittltsaztc;(\:‘ns ozgfnnosui:d Sy
Revenue 324,384 (246) 324,138
Other income 4,911 - 4,911
Total revenue and income 329,295 (246) - - 329,049
External operating costs (225,438) 794 (224,644)
Added value 103,857 548 - - 104,405
Staff costs (53,466) 367 (53,099)
Provisions and writedowns (436) (436)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 49,955 915 - - 50,870
e et aaoy) 14208
Amortisation, depreciation and
writedowns of fixed assets arising from (8,338) 8,338 -
the PPA process
Operating profit (EBIT) 27,414 915 8,338 - 36,667
Financial result (1,853) (1,708) (3,560)
Gross result 25,561 915 8,338 (1,708) 33,106
Income tax (7,658) 128 (2,341) (9,870)
Group consolidated net result 17,904 1,043 5,998 (1,708) 23,236

As at 31 December 2024, Adjusted EBITDA was instead determined without considering
non-recurring costs including rebranding costs incurred by the parent company Dexelance
S.p.A. in the amount of EUR 233 thousand and other personnel costs in the amount of
EUR 367 thousand; Adjusted EBIT was calculated gross of amortisation of intangible assets
with a finite useful life recognised in the PPA in the amount of EUR 8,338 thousand.
Finally, the adjusted net result was determined without considering the positive and
negative effects of imputed charges and the remeasurement of put and call options and
earnouts due to minority shareholders. The above adjustments resulted in a higher
overall tax burden of EUR 2,212 thousand, which includes EUR 2,341 thousand associated

with the amortisation and depreciation of intangible assets.
Taking into account the Group’s external growth, a 2023 full-year income statement has

been prepared on the assumption that the acquisitions of Cubo Design S.r.l. and its

subsidiary Nian Design S.r.l.,, Axo Light S.r.l. and its subsidiary Axo Light USA, and the
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acquisition of Turri S.r.l. and its subsidiaries, took place on 1 January 2023, however

without considering the potential effects on the financial charges on the transaction and

on the depreciation and amortisation of the assets.

As there were no changes in the scope of consolidation during the year, no further

disclosures were necessary as at 31 December 2024.

Full-year income statement 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 Change Change
amounts are shown in €/1,000 ] adjflfs!ied il adjfLTs”ted il % adjft?s”ted %
Revenue 310,816 310,816 324,384 324,138 13,568 4.4% 13,322 4.3%
Other income 6,646 6,418 4,911 4,911 (1,735) -26.1% (1,507) -23.5%
Total revenue and income 317,461 317,233 329,295 329,049 11,833 3.7% 11,815 3.7%
External operating costs (215,945) : (213,023) | (225,438) | (224,644) (9,493) 4.4% (11,621) 5.5%
Added value 101,517 104,210 103,857 104,405 2,340 2.3% 194 0.2%
Staff costs (49,448) 1 (49,448) (53,466) (53,099) (4,018) 8.1% (3,651) 7.4%
Provisions and writedowns (446) (446) (436) (436) 10 -2.3% 10 -2.3%
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 51,623 54,317 49,955 50,870 (1,668) 3.2%  (3,447) -6.3%
ﬁ:;zr:;:;izn’ depreciation and writedowns of (12,183) (12,183)  (14,203)  (14,203)  (2,020)  16.6%  (2,020)  16.6%
e ™| 640 oo nen| e
Operating profit (EBIT) 32,999 42,134 27,414 36,667 (5,585) -16.9%  (5,467) -13.0%
Financial result 1,800 (5,788) (1,853) (3,560) (3,653)  -202.9% 2,227 -38.5%
Gross result 34,799 36,346 25,561 33,106 (9,238) -26.5% (3,240) -8.9%
Income tax (9,137) . (10,785) (7,658) (9,870) 1,479 -16.2% 914 -8.5%
Group consolidated net result 25,662 25,562 17,904 23,236 (7,758) -30.2% (2,325) -9.1%

Reclassified statement of financial position

The statement of financial position is reclassified in order to highlight the investment

structure and the composition of the financing sources.

Reclassified statement of financial position 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
amounts are shown in €/1,000 amount % amount %
Intangible assets 243,635 88.5% 235,484 87.8%
Right of use 32,910 12.0% 34,427 12.8%
Property, plant and equipment 28,631 10.4% 28,223 10.5%
Holdings and other non-current assets 8,543 3.1% 8,708 3.2%
Non-current assets (A) 313,719 113.9% 306,842 114.5%
Inventories 41,646 15.1% 45,529 17.0%
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Trade receivables 38,961 14.2% 41,632 15.5%
Other current assets 11,059 4.0% 8,824 3.3%
Current assets (B) 91,665 33.3% 95,985 35.8%
Trade payables (51,271) -18.6% (53,611) -20.0%
Other current liabilities (40,293) -14.6% (43,205) -16.1%
Current liabilities (C) (91,564) -33.3% (96,817) -36.1%
Net working capital (D =B —C) 102 0.0% (832) -0.3%
Provisions for risk and severance pay (11,944) -4.3% (12,163) -4.5%
Other non-current liabilities (26,551) -9.6% (25,748) -9.6%
Medium/long-term assets (liabilities) (E) (38,495) -14.0% (37,911) -14.1%
Net invested capital (A + D + E) 275,326 100.0% 268,099 100.0%
Shareholders' equity 154,378 56.1% 170,452 63.6%
Net financial position, banks 14,197 5.2% (5,180) -1.9%
Net financial position, others 106,751 38.8% 102,827 38.4%
Net financial position 120,948 43.9% 97,647 36.4%
Equity and debt 275,326 100.0% 268,099 100.0%

Net invested capital is mostly made up of intangible assets (models and ornamental
designs, trademarks, customer lists, order books, and goodwill) resulting mainly from
corporate acquisitions completed since the company was established.

During the financial year 2024, compared to 2023, net invested capital decreased by EUR

7,227 thousand, resulting from the combined effect of the changes listed below and
related:

- to non-current assets, which saw a decrease of EUR 6,877 thousand, mainly due to
the amortisation of intangible assets in the amount of EUR 8,151 thousand and the
increase in the value of usage rights in the amount of EUR 1,517 thousand;

- to net working capital, which saw a decrease of EUR 934 thousand.

Financing sources consisted of 64% of own funds and 36% of third-party funds (mainly

due to financial payables to other lenders), and showed a reduction in the net financial

position of EUR 23,301 thousand during the year.

Net financial position
The net financial position, as defined and monitored by the Company’s and the Group’s

management, breaks down as follows:
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amounts are shown in €/1,000 31/12/2023 | 31/12/2024 Change

Short-term bank loans 20,422 23,604 3,182
Medium/long-term bank loans 63,852 39,510 (24,341)
Cash (41,457) (33,681) 7,776
Other current financial assets (28,621) (34,614) (5,993)
NFP, banks 14,197 (5,180) (19,377)
Current earnout payable 7,560 4,790 (2,770)
Non-current earnout payable 10,821 1,780 (9,041)

Current payable for purchase of minority shares

through the exercise of the put option ) 9,747 9,741
shares through the exerase ofthe put option 54556 | 45656 (8900)
NFP, other than banks 72,937 61,972 (10,964)
Current financial payables to lessors 5,671 6,512 841
Non-current financial payables to lessors 28,030 29,430 1,400
NFP, payables to lessors (IFRS 16) 33,700 35,942 2,241
Other non-current financial liabilities 114 4,913 4,799
NFP, total 120,948 97,647 (23,301)

The total NFP (net financial position) is made up of the following components: i)
indebtedness to banks in the amount of EURG®63,115thousand, net of
EUR 68,294 thousand in cash and other current financial assets; ii) payables for the
purchase of minority shares, earnouts and put & call options to related parties in the
amount of EUR 61,972 thousand; iii) payables to lessors (IFRS 16 application) in the
amount of EUR 35,942 thousand; iv) other financial payables in the amount of EUR 4,913
thousand.
Bank debt as at 31 December 2024 totalled EUR 63,115 thousand. The reduction from the
previous period was due to the repayment of loans under the plan. This indebtedness is
expressed net EUR 33,681 thousand in cash and EUR 34,614 thousand in restricted cash
and cash equivalents.
Financial payable is mainly due to:
1. Bank debts of the following types:

- bank debts related to acquisition transactions for a residual amount of

EUR 45,779 thousand;
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- loans taken out in previous years to deal with the Covid-19 pandemic crisis,
known as the Liquidity Decree; these were taken out by the companies
Gervasoni, Meridiani, Modar, Cenacchi and Flexalighting for a total amount of
EUR 3,060 thousand;

- ordinary loans taken out by Group companies in the amount of
EUR 13,592 thousand.

2. The payables for the purchase of minority shares in Cenacchi International S.r.l.,
Flexalighting S.r.l., Flexalighting North America Ltd., Gamma Arredamenti
International S.p.A., Cubo Design S.r.l., and Turri S.r.l. through the exercise of put and
call options and the deferred earnout payables for each acquisition amount to a total
of EUR 61,972 thousand and represent the best possible estimate. The value was
determined in accordance with the put and call agreements on the basis of the
average projected EBITDA of the two financial January exercise of these options
(based on the new business plans prepared and approved by the company and the
Group in January 2025), multiplied by the contractually agreed multiple, less the
estimated NFP at the date of exercise of the options. The exercise of options and the
payment of earnout payables have different maturities (EUR 14.5 million over the
next 12 months and EUR 47.4 million from 2025 onwards, but not exceeding 5 years).

3. The value of payables to lessors in the amount of EUR 35,942 thousand is the present
value of future rental costs until the expiry of the contracts (real estate contracts
normally have a term of 6+6 years). The change in the year is attributable to both the
payment of fees for a total principal amount of EUR 7.9 million and the recognition
of new payables totalling EUR 10.2 million.

4. Other loans in the amount of EUR 4,913,000 to minority shareholders of certain

subsidiaries.

Individual bank debts to subsidiaries arising from acquisitions are secured by a pledge on
the shares or units of the subsidiaries to which they were disbursed; known as the

Liquidity Decree loans are secured by a public guarantee; loans to the parent company
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Dexelance S.p.A., whose residual debt amounts to EUR 18,726 thousand, are not secured,
nor are the remaining ordinary loans to subsidiaries.
The amortisation schedule of the loans and the economic conditions at the best market

levels are adequate for the Group’s prospective cash flows.

With regard to the Net Financial Position, it should be noted that on 4 March 2021, ESMA
(the European Securities and Markets Authority) published the guidelines on disclosure
requirements under EU Regulation 2017/1129 (known as the "Prospectus Regulation"),
which are applicable as of 5 May 2021.

With "Warning Notice No. 5/21" of 29 April 2021, Consob declared its intention to align
its supervisory practices with the aforementioned ESMA Guidelines.

The net financial position of the Dexelance Group according to the format adopted by

Consob is as follows:
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amounts are shown in €/1,000 31/12/2023  31/12/2024 Change

A Cash 41,457 33,681 (7,776)

B Cash equivalents - - -

C Other current financial assets 28,621 34,614 5,993

D Cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 70,078 68,294 (1,783)

E Current financial debt (including debt instruments but

excluding the current portion of non-current financial (13,231) (21,049) (7,818)

debt)

F Current portion of current financial debt (20,422) (23,604) (3,182)

G Current financial indebtedness (E + F) (33,653) (44,653) (11,000)
‘ H Net current financial indebtedness (G - D) 36,424 23,641 (12,783)

INon-current financial debt (excluding the current portion (157,372) (121,288) 36,084

and debt instruments)

J Debt instruments -

K Non-current trade and other payables -

L Non-current financial indebtedness (I +J + K) (157,372) (121,288) 36,084
| M Total financial indebtedness (H + ) (120,948) | (97,647) | 23,301

In this regard, please note the following aspects:

a) “Other current financial assets” includes financial assets (e.g. securities held for
trading) that are not (i) cash, (ii) cash equivalents or (iii) derivative instruments used
for hedging purposes;

b) “Financial indebtedness” includes remunerated debt (i.e. interest-bearing debt)
which includes, inter alia, financial liabilities for short- and/or long-term leases,
identified separately;

c) “Non-current trade and other payables” includes any non-interest-bearing debt with
a significant implicit or explicit financing component (e.g. trade payables with a

maturity of more than 12 months), and any other non-interest-bearing loans.

The total value of net financial indebtedness according to ESMA guidelines and that

adopted by the Dexelance Group is EUR 97,647 thousand.

Key financial/economic indicators
The profitability and financial ratios derived from the reclassified balance sheet and

reclassified income statement presented above are as follows:
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31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 ADJ 31/12/2024 AD)
t result for th 28,130 17,904 27,938 23,236
ROE net result for the year 292 18.22%  — I 1050% | ——222C 1810%  ———=>° 13.63%
shareholders' equity 154,378 170,452 154,378 170,452
ting i EBIT 35,114 27,414 44,157 36,667
ROI operating income (EBIT) 35114, .., = 27418 0,50 44157 o000 36667 g g
net invested capital 275,326 268,099 275,326 268,099
ting i EBIT 35,114 27,414 44,157 36,667
ROS operating income (EBIT) 35114 ., ., = 27418 o oo 44157 o g0, 36667 )50
revenue 287,350 324,384 287,350 324,138
EBITDA 52,111 49,955 54,713 50,870
EBITDA/Revenue 2922t 1813% 0 —222 1540% | —=2 19.04% @ ——21—— 15.69%
revenue 287,350 324,384 287,350 324,138
financial positi 120,94 7,647 120,94 7,647
Debt coverage rethieanclpos o) 120946 55, | 97647 o 120946 ., 97647 4
EBITDA 52,111 49,955 54,713 50,870
Bank debt net financial position, banks 14,197 0.27 -5,180 0.10 14,197 0.26 -5,180 -0.10
coverage EBITDA 52,111 49,955 54,713 50,870
current assets 91,665 164,279 91,665 164,279
i sl 2222 g =222 4 =22 =22 4
Current ratio current liabilities 91,564 00 141,470 6 91,564 00 141,470 6
) Financial net financial position 120,946 97,647 120,946 97,647
e shareholders' equity 154378 078 = 170452 057 | “154378 078 | 17045, 057
ratio

The adjusted income ratios, in particular ROE, ROl and ROS, show a decrease compared

to the last period.

The ratio of total financial debt exposure to adjusted EBITDA is around 1.92, while the

ratio of financial debt to equity is 0.57 (0.78 in the previous year), as a result of the

increase in net financial indebtedness (the result of which is affected by both the decrease

in bank indebtedness and the financial component of remeasuring put and call options).

Investments made by the Group

The following table provides a breakdown by category of the Group’s investments in

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the years ended 31 December

2023 and 2024:
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% of total % of total
amounts are shown in €/1,000 Slinzines investments Sz investments
Land and buildings 647 6.2% 289 1.8%
Plants and machinery 2,173 20.7% 2,417 15.4%
Equipment 289 2.8% 345 2.2%
Other property, plant and 3,775 36.0% 3,978 25.3%
equipment
Rights of use 3,166 30.2% 7,791 49.6%
Other intangible assets 412 3.9% 887 5.6%
Total 10,474 15,716

Regarding to the investments made during the financial year 2024, we highlight the
increase in the item “Right of Use” for new leases signed during the year, including the
new offices of the US subsidiary Dexelance USA Corp, and the renewal of some expiring
contracts. Capital expenditures amounting to about EUR 7.9 million concern
improvements to third-party buildings and the purchase of durable goods of various
kinds. In particular, during the year, investments were made in the leased showroom of

Davide Groppi S.r.l. for EUR 676 thousand and in the leased buildings of Gervasoni S.p.A.
for EUR 603 thousand.

Performance of the parent company Dexelance S.p.A.
The tables below show the situation of the parent company Dexelance S.p.A., prepared

in accordance with international accounting standards:

Reclassified income statement
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Reclassified income statement 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 Change

amounts are shown in €/1,000 amount % amount % amount %

Revenue 332 100.0% 681 100.0% 349 105.1%

Other income 229 69.0% 311 45.7% 82 35.7%

Total revenue and income 561 169.0% 992 145.7% 431 76.8%

External operating costs (6,297) 1896 7<y_ (4,379) -643.1% 1,918 -30.5%
) A

Added value (5,736) 1727 7(y- (3,388) -497.4% 2,349 -40.9%
» J7

Staff costs (1,319) -397.3% (1,365) -200.5% (46) 3.5%

Provisions and writedowns - 0.0% - 0.0% -

Gross operating profit (EBITDA) (7,055) 2125 O‘V- (4,753) -697.9% 2,302 -32.6%
» U7

Amortisation, depreciation and 0 o 0

writedowns of fixed assets (218) 65.8% (243) 35.9% (26) 12.0%

Operating profit (EBIT) (7,273) 2190 8°/- (4,997) -733.9% 2,276 -31.3%
” .07

Financial result 8,672 | 2,611.9% 10,735 1,576.4% 2,063 23.8%

Gross result 1,398 421.1% 5,737 842.5% 4,339 310.4%

Income tax 1,634 492.3% 1,044 153.4% (590) -36.1%

Net result 3,032 913.4% 6,782 995.9% 3,749 123.6%

It should be noted that the parent company received dividends totalling EUR 12.3 million
in 2024 (EUR 10.6 million in 2023) from the subsidiaries Gervasoni S.p.A.
(EUR 3.0 million), Saba Italia S.r.l. (EUR 500 thousand), Meridiani S.r.. (EUR 306
thousand), Cenacchi International Italia S.r.. (EUR 4.0 million), Davide Groppi
(EUR 1.5 million) and Modar S.p.A. (EUR 3.0 million).

As in the case of the consolidated financial statements, as well as for values relating to

the parent company’s balance sheet, the adjusted values were determined and the

relevant values were reconciled.
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31/12/2023 31/12/2024

Effective Adjusted Effective Adjusted
amounts are shown in €/1,000 data data data data
Revenue 332 332 681 681
Other income 229 1 311 311
Total revenue and income 561 333 992 992
External operating costs (6,297) (4,253) (4,379) (4,112)
Added value (5,736) (3,920) (3,388) (3,121)
Staff costs (1,319) (1,319) (1,365) (1,365)
Provisions and writedowns - - - -
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) (7,055) (5,239) (4,753) (4,486)
e o o e am o
Operating profit (EBIT) (7,273) (5,458) (4,997) (4,730)
Financial result 8,672 8,672 10,735 10,735
Gross result 1,398 3,214 5,737 6,004
Income tax 1,634 1,207 1,044 970
Net result 3,032 4,421 6,782 6,974

Adjusted EBITDA was determined without considering non-recurring costs, totalling EUR
267,000, mainly related to rebranding costs. It should be noted that non-recurring costs
as at 31 December 2023 also included costs related to the IPO process, which amounted
to EUR 2,044 thousand.

Below is a reconciliation of the figures from actual to adjusted values, as at 31 December

2023 and 31 December 2024.
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Effective data recNLj)rr:i-ng Z;?jd;::r:itzr:r? Adjusted data
amounts are shown in €/1,000 Sz costs stock options Sz
Revenue 332 332
Other income 229 (228) 1
Total revenue and income 561 - (228) 333
External operating costs (6,297) 2,044 - (4,253)
Added value (5,736) 2,044 (228) (3,920)
Staff costs (1,319) (1,319)
Provisions and writedowns - -
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) (7,055) 2,044 (228) (5,239)
s e e
Operating profit (EBIT) (7,273) 2,044 (228) (5,458)
Financial result 8,672 8,672
Gross result 1,398 2,044 (228) 3,214
Income tax 1,634 (491) 64 1,207
Net result 3,032 1,533 (164) 4,421

Effective data rezl::‘rr‘i_n 2::;'( :;o:ic;r; Adjusted data
amounts are shown in €/1,000 31/12/2024 costs ’ stoclfoptions 31/12/2024
Revenue 681 681
Other income 311 - 311
Total revenue and income 992 - - 992
External operating costs (4,379) 267 - (4,112)
Added value (3,388) 267 - (3,121)
Staff costs (1,365) (1,365)
Provisions and writedowns - -
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) (4,753) 267 - (4,486)
T s s
Operating profit (EBIT) (4,997) 267 - (4,730)
Financial result 10,735 10,735
Gross result 5,737 267 - 6,004
Income tax 1,044 (74) - 970
Net result 6,782 193 - 6,974

Reclassified statement of financial position
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Reclassified statement of financial position 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
amounts are shown in €/1,000 amount % amount %
Intangible assets 9 0.0% 51 0.1%
Right of use 535 0.5% 722 0.7%
Property, plant and equipment 598 0.6% 757 0.8%
Holdings and other non-current assets 103,124 97.8% 101,089 100.6%
Non-current assets (A) 104,265 98.9% 102,620 102.1%
Other current assets 4,467 4.2% 1,847 1.8%
Current assets (B) 4,467 4.2% 1,847 1.8%
Trade payables 575 -0.5% (699) -0.7%
Other current liabilities (2,392) -2.3% (2,896) -2.9%
Current liabilities (C) (2,967) -2.8% (3,595) -3.6%
Net working capital (D =B - C) 1,500 1.4% (1,748) -1.7%
Provisions for risk and severance pay (333) -0.3% (352) -0.4%
Other non-current liabilities 0.0% - 0.0%
Medium/long-term assets (liabilities) (E) (333) -0.3% (352) -0.4%
Net invested capital (A + D + E) 105,432 100.0% 100,520 100.0%
Shareholders' equity 100,632 95.4% 105,728 105.2%
Net financial position, banks (5,529) -5.2% (26,692) -26.6%
Net financial position, others 10,329 9.8% 21,484 21.4%
Net financial position 4,800 4.6% (5,208) -5.2%
Equity and debt 105,432 100.0% 100,520 100.0%

Within the holdings item, compared to the year 2023, increases and decreases are mainly
related to:

- the value of the holding in Axo Light S.r.l. (for EUR 1.2 million) following the
acquisition of its entire share capital in October 2024;

- thevalue of holdings, related to capital increases, in Dexelance USA Corp., IDB Suzhou
Ltd., and Dexelance Co. Ltd. for a total of EUR 1,692 thousand. It should be noted that
write-downs of the values of the aforesaid equity investments for a total of EUR 1,447
thousand (EUR 193 thousand referring to Dexelance UK Ltd., EUR 507 thousand
referring to IDB Suzhou Co Ltd and EUR 747 thousand referring to Dexelance USA
Corp.) were made in order to align them with the recoverable value of the companies
themselves, and a provision for risks on losses was then allocated for a total of EUR
226 thousand. Please refer to the section on financial fixed assets in the notes to the

financial statements of Dexelance S.p.A;
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- to the value of the equity investments held in Gamma Arredamenti International
S.p.A. for EUR 243 thousand and in Turri S.r.l. for EUR 833 thousand due to the effect
of discounting the subsidised loans granted during the year.

The net financial position towards others instead amounted to EUR 21,484 thousand and
was represented by payables to lessors for a total of EUR 760, partially offset by net
intercompany financial assets for centralised treasury management (so-called cash

pooling) for a total of EUR 22,077 thousand.

Information on the Group’s main risks and uncertainties

As part of its industrial activities, the Group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, arising
from exogenous factors related to the general macroeconomic and geopolitical context,
as well as risks deriving from strategic and management choices relating to the specific
sectors in which it operates. In this context, the Group—particularly through its Internal
Control and Risk Management System—systematically identifies, measures, manages and

monitors business risks. The main risks identified by the Group are listed below.

Financial risks

Exchange rate risk: limited. The Group operates mainly in euros. As regards the currency
balance in US dollars, since receipts and payments in foreign currencies partially offset
each other, the currency risk is not excessive and therefore the provision of foreign
exchange hedges was not considered necessary. For the sensitivity analysis on foreign
exchange risk and the related effects on net result before taxes and the effects on
shareholders’ equity before taxes, please refer to the paragraph on financial risk
management in the notes to the financial statements.

Risk of restatement of financial liabilities for earnouts and put and call options: the
financial risks also include the risk of remeasurement of earnouts, put & call options
entered into with minority shareholders of the acquired companies. The earnout and put
& call values are directly related to the achievement of certain economic and financial

targets by the acquired companies (generally the contractually defined EBITDA and net
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financial position) in the periods following the acquisition of control, and are recorded at
the present value of the financial liability.

In 2024, the recognition in the income statement of these values entailed the recognition
of net financial income from restatement for a total of EUR 6,769 thousand.

For the sensitivity analysis on the remeasurement risk of earnouts, put & call options and
the related effects on net result before taxes, please refer to the section on financial risk
management in the notes to the financial statements.

Risk of restatement of the long-term incentive plan and the performance shares: The value
and recognition of the incentive plans is linked to the increase in value of the Company's
share price, recorded for a period of at least 30 consecutive days on the trading market
compared to the IPO price, during the first 3 years of office and/or during the second 3
years of office in the case of renewal of office and failure to meet the objectives during
the first 3 years of office. This is calculated and paid in cash by the Company during the
month, following a positive verification by the Board of Directors that the long-term
incentive has accrued. These liabilities are restated at every period-end or when a
liqguidation event occurs. Their effects are then reflected in the income statement under
financial income in the income statement, together with the estimated discount cost for
these liabilities.

In the year 2024, the recognition of these amounts in the income statement resulted in
the recognition of an amount of EUR 183 thousand, of which EUR 157 thousand was
recognised under service costs and EUR 26 thousand under personnel costs.

In reference to the performance share plan, it is hereby specified that the allocation of
the units will be made by the Board of Directors, which will verify at the end of the Vesting
Period whether the performance objectives have been achieved and whether the Trigger
Event has occurred. The number of units awarded will depend on the achievement of
certain performance targets over the vesting period.

The Group recognises share-settled transactions on the basis of IFRS 2, which requires the

cost of transactions to be determined on the basis of the fair value at the allocation date.
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At each reporting date, the Group also determines the fair value of the instrument based
on the probability of achieving the defined performance targets.

Interest rate risk: the Group used derivative financial instruments. The debt to financial
institutions is partially hedged against the risk of interest rate fluctuations in the amount
with the instrument known as IRS (the company pays a fixed rate and is entitled to receive
a variable rate indexed to Euribor).

The derivative contracts stipulated have an overall negative value—mark to market—of
about EUR 380 thousand as at 31 December 2024, the change in which, net of the tax
effect, compared to the previous year was recognised under other comprehensive profit
items in the amount of EUR 41 thousand, net of the tax effect.

For the sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk and the related effects on net result before
taxes, please refer to the paragraph on financial risk management in the notes to the
financial statements.

Price risk: limited. Purchase prices normally have a duration of one year; sales prices
absorb and tend to neutralise increases in purchases. Even in the presence of an
inflationary scenario (especially in the first part of the year), the impact of the increase in
raw material prices was limited, also due to the ability of the Group companies to adjust
their sales prices and maintain margins.

Credit risk: limited. In most cases, the customer base is split, and the exposure per
individual position is usually small; in addition, customers are systematically monitored,
and each customer is associated with a credit limit and a maximum overdraft not
exceeding the amount indicated in the reports provided by the commercial information
companies. For many customers, particularly from outside the EU, Group companies
require advance payment or guarantees. In some cases, credit insurance is used.
Cenacchi International S.r.l., Modar S.p.A. and Turri S.r.l. operate on the global market
with renowned customers; it should be noted here that there is a strong concentration of
customers with several companies that are traceable to a few economic entities with
which the companies' relationships have been strengthened over the years. Management

systematically monitors cases where exposure is significant.
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Liquidity risk: limited. It is believed that the cash (approximately EUR 68.3 million at 31
December 2024), in addition to the cash flows that will be generated by operating
activities, will be adequate to meet the needs arising from investment activities, working

capital management, and the repayment of debts at their natural due dates.

Non-financial risks

Developments in the global economy, the environment of political, economic and
financial instability and the volatility of financial markets could influence the performance
of the Group, with possible adverse effects on its economic, capital and financial position.
In the overall macroeconomic framework, the uncertainties regarding (i) the impacts of
sanctions imposed worldwide relating to the conflict between the Federal Republic of
Russia and Ukraine, (ii) the Middle East conflicts and (iii) the risks related to climate
change are important.

Risks related to the global geopolitical situation: the Group is exposed to the risks
associated with the current and future global, European and Italian economic and political
situation, which has also been aggravated by recent political and military tensions in
Ukraine and Israel, where developments and the political and economic impact are still
uncertain and hard to assess. Therefore, it cannot be excluded that the occurrence and/or
continuation of any economic downturn and/or political instability and any future
negative impact, including any significant impact, on the global, European and/or national
economy may lead to a weakening of demand for the Group’s products, with potential
adverse effects on the Group’s business and prospects, as well as on its economic, capital
and financial position.

The world’s geopolitical situation is experiencing extreme tension and complexity,
particularly as a result of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, as well as the more
recent conflict between Israel and Palestine. These dramatic events have further
stimulated inflationary phenomena and the already existing speculative dynamics, with
particular reference to energy and raw material prices. The Group has very limited

involvement in the areas affected by the conflict and its business model is not particularly
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exposed to inflationary commodity phenomena or higher energy costs; however, it
cannot be excluded that the continuation of this situation may lead to margin pressures
or impacts on the propensity to consume durable goods.

Looking ahead, there are unknowns related to the effects of the fiscal and trade policy
that the US administration will decide to implement. Specifically, the introduction of
duties and tariffs on numerous countries and geographical areas to make imports less
advantageous and competitive compared to domestic products or services could
undermine international trade in goods and services. In this context, despite the risks
associated with the drift towards protectionism in the United States, the Group does not
foresee any particular risks or concerns to date, especially in view of the high-end market
to which its products are aimed, which are not very sensitive to price changes. However,
it cannot be ruled out that fiscal policy may have an impact on the propensity to consume
and, therefore, the Group pays continuous attention to developments in the external

environment.

Information on the environment and staff

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors, which are at the core of the Group’s
strategy values, are a long-term commitment and the Group is establishing, building and
strengthening its ESG commitment through various activities and projects.

In this regard, it should be noted that the Dexelance Group, as an organisation already
subject to the obligation to report non-financial information according to Italian
Legislative Decree 254/2016 (implementing Directive 2014/95/EU), complies with the
obligations arising from the new EU Directive 2022/2464 (“CSRD Directive”) transposed
into Italian law by Legislative Decree 125/2024, which also extends the provisions of the
Taxonomy Regulation from the fiscal year 2024. These issues must be represented
consistently with the principle of materiality, i.e. providing relevant information in
relation to its business profile, strategies, stakeholder expectations and impact. The CSRD

was approved by the Board of Directors convened to approve the draft financial
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statements as at 31 December 2024 and made available to Shareholders. It is also
available on the website of Dexelance.
The Group maintains a management system to constantly monitor and, where possible,

with a view to continuous improvement, reduce environmental impacts.

The Group maintains an occupational health and safety management system with the aim
of both complying with legal requirements and monitoring and, where possible,
preventing any kind of problem relating to the health and safety of its employees. The
number of Group employees as at 31 December 2024 was 833 (807 as of 31 December
2023). The workforce consists of 19 executives, 422 managers and clerical workers, 384
manual workers and 8 others. During 2024, the use of special welfare instruments was

minimal.

Treasury shares and shares of parent companies

As at 18 December 2023, the programme aimed at increasing the portfolio of treasury
shares of the parent company Italian Dexelance S.p.A. became operative in order to (i)
equip itself with a portfolio of treasury shares to be used to service transactions
consistent with the Group’s strategic development lines in view of or within the scope of
agreements with strategic partners, including, but not limited to, transactions involving
sales and/or exchanges, swaps, contributions, assignments or other acts that include
other extraordinary finance transactions (ii) use treasury shares for transactions to
support market liquidity, so as to facilitate trading in the securities themselves at times of
low market liquidity and to encourage regular trading, in accordance with the provisions
of the law on market abuse and accepted market practices. The aforementioned share
buy-back programme was resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 17 November 2023.
It should be noted that as at 31 December 2024, 205,566 treasury shares, equal to
0.7634% of the share capital, had been purchased for a total amount of EUR 1,928

thousand.
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On 22 April 2024, the Shareholders’ Meeting resolved a new share buyback programme
which, in addition to the above objectives, also provided for the allocation of treasury
shares to the implementation of incentive plans based on Company shares for directors
and employees in key function roles within the Company. Please refer to the specific
section on this matter included below for more detailed information on the share

incentive plan.

Dexelance S.p.A. on the Stock Exchange

The initial public offering period for the admission to trading of the Company's ordinary
shares on Euronext Milan, a regulated market organised and managed by Borsa Italiana
S.p.A., began on 10 May 2023 and concluded positively on 15 May 2023. Dexelance stock
forms part of the FTSE Italia Small Cap index. The launch of the trading of shares and the
settlement date of the Offer took place on 18 May 2023. The Offer, which was priced at
EUR 10.88 per share, was reserved exclusively for qualified investors and concerned
6,433,823 new shares. The price set included the share capital increase, excluding option
rights and the share premium for a total equivalent of approximately EUR 70 million. In
addition, 275,735 new shares were issued, worth approximately EUR 3 million, in the
context of a capital increase reserved for certain shareholders/entrepreneurs from a
selection of companies controlled by the Issuer, who subscribed at the Offer Price
(reserved capital increase).

On 18 May 2023, Tamburi Investment Partners S.p.A. (hereinafter "TIP"), an industrial
group investing in industrial excellence and listed on the Euronext STAR Milan segment of
Borsa Italiana S.p.A., subject to listing, finalised the acquisition of 50.7% of Investindesign
S.p.A., which in turn holds 48% of Dexelance’s ordinary shares (formerly Italian Design
Brands S.p.A.), following the exercise of the greenshoe option described below. On the
basis of the agreements entered into on 12 July 2023, TIP has exercised the option to
acquire, on the same terms and conditions of the first acquisition, an additional 20% of

the share capital of Investindesign S.p.A. through Club Deal.
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Finally, in the context of the Offer, a so-called Greenshoe option was granted by the
current shareholders of the Company in favour of Equita SIM S.p.A. on behalf of the Joint
Global Coordinators for the purchase of a maximum of 965,074 shares, corresponding to
15% of the maximum number of shares subject to the Offer. It should be noted that the
Greenshoe option was exercised on expiry of 30 days from the date of the start of trading

the shares on Euronext Milan.

The chart below shows the price trend of the Dexelance S.p.A. stock and the related

trading volumes from 1 January to 31 December 2024.

Mag "24 Set "24 Gen "25

Source: borsaitaliana.it

During 2024, and after having reached a high of EUR 11.12, the share price recorded a
negative trend until the end of the year with a negative performance of 19% compared
to the IPO price. As already indicated, as at 18 December 2023, the share buy-back
programme became operative, aimed at supporting the value of the share and increasing
the portfolio of treasury shares to be allocated to service transactions consistent with the
Group’s strategic development lines. Below, instead, are the share price performance

figures recorded from 1 January to 31 December 2024.

Dexelance share price on the Milan Stock Period 01/01/2024 -
Exchange (EUR) 31/12/2024
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IPO price 10.88
Maximum (07/05/2024) 11.12
Minimum (05/11/2024) 8.31
Average 9.67
End of period (31 December 2024) 8.83
Capitalisation as at 31 December 2024 237,759,211

During the second year of listing, the Dexelance Group developed numerous contacts
with the national and international financial community, carrying out intensive investor
relations activities through both in person and virtual roadshows, conferences organised
by leading national and international brokers and conference calls following the
publication of quarterly results. Investor engagement activities play a key role for the

Group and will continue to be developed and strengthened in the coming years.

Shareholding

The shareholding structure as at 31 December 2024 is as follows:

No. of shares %
Investindesign S.p.A. 12,925,514 48.00%
Fourleaf S.r.l. 1,352,625 5.02%
Other partners 4,715,987 17.51%
Management 560,637 2.08%
Treasury shares 205,566 0.76%
Market 7,165,969 26.61%

Business outlook

Recent years have seen a normalisation in the dynamics of the costs of energy, raw
materials and semi-finished goods, and an inflationary phenomenon is expected to be
limited in the future compared to previous years. In any event the Group is maintaining a
proactive and constant focus on controlling costs and identifying initiatives that can
guarantee the expected revenue, profitability and cash flows.

The Group continuously monitors both the performance of the relevant markets and
developments in the conflicts between Ukraine and Russia, Israel and Palestine, and in

other regions in turmoil, which call for a continuously cautious approach to
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macroeconomic forecasts in relation to the repercussions on prices of raw materials,
demand, and the performance of the financial markets. In this regard, it should be noted
that Group’s exposure in terms of turnover in relation to countries involved in the
conflicts is not significant.

In addition to the tensions already known in the macroeconomic environment in recent
years, there are the unknowns linked to the possible effects of fiscal and trade policy in
terms of duties and tariffs, which could affect international trade and thus impact the
propensity to consume. However, the Group does not foresee any particular risk, as its
product offering is aimed at the high-end of the market, which shows little sensitivity to
price changes.

For the year 2025, despite the general macroeconomic context, the reference market is
expected to remain substantially stable, also in line with the most recent research in the
wood-furniture sector, and the Group is confident that it can continue to grow more
quickly than its reference market.

The strategic objective of growth by external lines is also confirmed for 2025, despite the
fact that no new acquisitions were concluded in the previous year. Negotiations are

currently in progress, some of which may materialise in the current financial year.
ko _kokk _ Kk
Milan, 11 March 2025
On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Andrea Sasso

/ﬁ'/ﬂ%@ N
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31

DECEMBER 2024

Consolidated statement and financial position

(amounts in thousands of euros) Notes  31/12/2024 31/12/2023
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 1 235,484 243,635
Goodwill 134,811 134,919
Brands 57,461 57,461
Models 6,085 7,393
Customer relations and order book 35,211 42,236
Other intangible assets 1,916 1,626
Right of use 2 34,427 32,910
Property, plant and equipment 3 28,223 28,631
Deferred tax assets 18 4,122 3,648
Equity investments 6 6
Other non-current assets 4 4,580 4,888
Total non-current assets 306,842 313,719
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 5 37,096 36,867
Contract assets 6 8,433 4,779
Trade receivables 7 41,632 38,961
Income tax credits 8 1,440 4,135
Other current assets 9 7,385 6,924
Other current financial assets 10 34,614 28,621
Cash and cash equivalents 11 33,681 41,457
Total current assets 164,279 161,743
TOTAL ASSETS 471,121 475,462
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(amounts in thousands of euros) Notes  31/12/2024 31/12/2023

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 26,926 26,926
Other reserves and retained earnings, including profit (loss) for the period 143,526 127,452
Total Group shareholders’ equity 170,452 154,378
Shareholders’ equity — minority interests 0 0
Total shareholders' equity 12 170,452 154,378

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Post-employment benefits 13 7,363 7,027
Provisions for risks and charges 14 4,801 4,917
Medium-/long-term bank loans 15 39,510 63,852
Other non-current financial liabilities 16 47,435 65,377
Other medium-/long-term loans 16 4,913 114
Non-current financial payables to lessors 16 29,430 28,030
Other non-current liabilities 17 1,858 839
Deferred taxes 18 23,889 25,712
Total non-current liabilities 159,199 195,867

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term bank loans 15 23,604 20,422
Other current financial liabilities 16 14,537 7,560
Other short-term loans 16 0 0
Current financial payables to lessors 16 6,512 5,671
Trade payables 19 53,611 51,271
Income tax payables 20 1,039 1,262
Other current liabilities 21 42,166 39,031

Payables to staff and social security organisations 10,609 10,136

Contract liabilities 16,557 14,432

Other payables 15,000 14,463
Total current liabilities 141,470 125,217
TOTAL LIABILITIES 300,669 321,084
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 471,121 475,462
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Consolidated income statement

(amounts in thousands of euros) Notes  31/12/2024 31/12/2023
Revenue 22 324,384 287,350
Other income 23 4911 4,969
Total revenue and income 329,295 292,319
Purchases of raw materials 24 (126,799) (112,309)
Change in inventories 392 2,502
Staff costs 25 (53,466) (44,122)
Costs for services and use of third-party assets 26 (96,719) (84,717)
Other operating costs 27 (2,312) (1,174)
Provisions and writedowns 28 (436) (388)
Amortisation, depreciation and writedowns of fixed assets 29 (22,541) (16,997)
Operating profit/(loss) (EBIT) 27,414 35,114
Financial income 30 13,756 16,320
Financial expenses 30 (15,609) (14,086)
Result before taxes resulting from continuing operations 25,561 37,348
Income tax 31 (7,658) (9,218)
Net result 17,904 28,130
Attributable to:

Profit/(loss) pertaining to the Group 17,904 28,007
Profit/(loss) pertaining to third parties 0 123
Basic earnings per share 0.67 1.15
Diluted earnings per share 0.67 1.15
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(amounts in thousands of euros) Notes  31/12/2024  31/12/2023

Net result 17,904 28,130
Profit/(loss) from cash flow hedge (54) (913)
Tax effects 13 219
Total profit/(loss) from cash flow hedges, net of tax 32 (41) (694)
Foreign currency translation differences 12 (186)
Other movements (37) (118)

Total comprehensive income items that will subsequently be reclassified to

. 7
profit/(loss) for the year (65) (997)
Actuarial profits/(losses) (88) (319)
Tax effects 21 76
Total actuarial profit/(loss), net of taxes 32 (67) (242)
Comprehensive income items that will not subsequently be reclassified to

) (67) (242)
profit/(loss) for the year
Comprehensive income statement net of taxes (132) (1,239)
Total comprehensive net profit/(loss) for the period 17,771 26,891
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company 17,771 26,768
Minority shareholders - 123
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Consolidated Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Capital Shareholders’
Share Cash flow . . Profit/(loss) | Total Group and Profit — . Total
. Share . . Actuarial Other Retained . L equity — ,
(amounts in thousands of euros) . premium hedging . . for the shareholders' | reserves —  minority L shareholders
capital gains/(losses)  reserves earnings . ; L . minority .
reserve reserve period equity minority  interests . equity
. interests
interests
| Balance at 1 January 2023 20,217 3,563 174 425 (358) 40,692 (5,932) 58,780 - - - 58,780
Allocation of result for the year (5,932) 5,932 - - -
Reserved initial public offering 6,710 63,407 70,117 - 70,117
Other income statement items (694) (242) (304) (1,239) - (1,239)
Dividends (700) (700) - (700)
Acquisition of minority interests (539) (539) - (123) (123) (662)
Purchase of treasury shares (47) (47) - (47)
Net result 28,007 28,007 123 123 28,130
Balance at 31 December 2023 26,926 66,971 (520) 183 (709) 33,521 28,007 154,378 - - - 154,378
Capital ,
Share Cash flow . . Profit/(loss) | Total Group and Profit — Shareh.olders Total
. Share . . Actuarial Other Retained . L equity — )
(amounts in thousands of euros) . premium hedging . . for the shareholders' | reserves —  minority L shareholders
capital gains/(losses)  reserves earnings . ] L . minority .
reserve reserve period equity minority  interests . equity
. interests
interests
| Balance at 1 January 2024 26,926 66,971 (520) 183 (709) 33,521 28,007 154,378 - - - 154,378
Allocation of result for the year 28,007 (28,007) - - -
Other income statement items (41) (67) (25) (132) - (132)
Purchase of treasury shares (1,880) (1,880) - (1,880)
Share Incentive Plan 183 183 - 183
Net result 17,904 17,904 - 17,904
Balance at 31 December 2024 26,926 66,971 (561) 115 (2,431) 61,528 17,904 170,452 - - - 170,452
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

(amounts in thousands of euros) 31/12/2024 31/12/2023
A. Cash flows from operating activities (indirect method)
Profit/(loss) for the period 17,904 28,130
Income tax 7,658 9,218
Interest expense/(interest income) 10,435 11,038
Other non-monetary income and expenses (8,476) (13,160)
Capital (gains)/losses on disposals (174) 54
1. Profit/(loss) before income taxes, interest, dividends and capital gains/losses from transfer 27,346 35,280
Severance Indemnity Provision 846 748
Provisions 877 459
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 22,541 16,997
Impairment losses 43 (206)
Other adjustments for non-monetary items (174) (192)
2. Cash flow before changes in net working capital 51,479 53,085
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (229) (2,741)
Decrease/(Increase) in contract assets (3,654) (1,450)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (2,628) (6,891)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 2,340 (1,705)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities 2,126 (3,215)
Decrease/(Increase) in other changes in net working capital 1,099 (693)
Interest received/paid on loans (3,246) (3,366)
(Income taxes paid) (6,924) (12,466)
Disbursement of severance payments and other provisions (1,198) (748)
3. Cash flow after other adjustments (12,314) (33,273)
| Cash flow of operating activities (A =2 + 3) 39,165 19,811
B. Cash flows from investment activities
Investments in tangible fixed assets, net of divestments (5,804) (6,769)
Investments in intangible assets, net of divestments (700) (348)
Investments in financial fixed assets, net of divestments 231 0
Investments in other financial assets, net of divestments (5,993) (22,642)
Acquisition or sale of subsidiaries or business units, net of cash 0 (42,361)
Exercise of options and earnout (9,163) (38,127)
| Cash flow of investment activities (B) (21,428) (110,246)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Third-party financing
Increase (decrease) in short-term payables to banks (284) (1,768)
Loans taken out 14,160 52,351
Loan repayment (29,312) (23,261)
Payments for lease liabilities (8,195) (5,423)
Adjustment, other financial payables 0 (2,355)
Equity
Increase in net capital 0 70,117
Purchase of treasury shares (1,880) (47)
(Dividends and advances on dividends paid) 0 (700)
| Cash flow of financing activities (C) (25,512) 88,914
Increase (decrease) in cash (A £ B £+ C) (7,776) (1,521)
Cash at 1 January 41,457 42,978
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 33,681 41,457
Change in cash (7,776) (1,521)
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

General information

The Group

Dexelance S.p.A. (hereinafter also “Dexelance”) has its registered office in Milan and has
been listed on the Italian Stock Exchange as of 18 May 2023; the Dexelance share is part
of the FTSE Italia Small Cap index. It was established on 10 March 2015 with the aim of
promoting an ltalian design pole in the furniture, fittings and lighting segment. Since 2023,
its scope has also included high-end modular kitchen solutions and systems that can
implement dimensional, organisational, managerial, strategic and distribution synergies,
which allow Dexelance to compete internationally in a segment where Italy has a

competitive advantage and excellent creative and product skills.

Significant events during the financial year

On 22 April 2024, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Company
resolved to amend Article 1.1 letter T and Article 2.1 of the By-laws, approving the
proposal to change the company name to “Dexelance S.p.A.”, in order to create a new
group identity to support and grow towards a renewed and higher positioning in the

market.

Furthermore, the Shareholders’ Meeting resolved to approve an incentive plan titled the
"2024-2029 Performance Shares Plan" and based on financial instruments that provides
for the free assignment to the key management personnel identified in the plan of a
number of shares subject to the achievement of performance targets and fulfilment of
conditions linked to the performance of the Company’s stock on the market. It should be
noted that on 11 March 2024, the Board of Directors of Dexelance S.p.A. approved, at the

proposal of the Hiring, Human Resources and Remuneration Committee, the proposal to
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submit the adoption to the Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company, pursuant to Article
114-bis TUF, of the Consolidated Finance Act, of the Plan on the terms and conditions
described in the relevant document published pursuant to law.

The Plan provides for the possibility of awarding a total of 500,000 shares to the Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Director and key
employees of the Company identified in the plan, upon the achievement of certain targets
over the more extended period of 5 years (the “Vesting Period”). Moreover, the Plan’s
activation is subject, only for the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer and for the Executive Director, to the achievement of the Trigger Event, which is
tied to the achievement of a certain average share price at the end of the Vesting Period.
It should also be noted that, as defined by the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of 22 April
2024, the Executive Directors have the right to access the equity incentive plan in
supplement to the already existing medium-long term monetary incentive plan
(“Monetary LTIP”) approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 9 May 2023, provided that,
with respect to this Monetary LTIP, they agree to the following: (a) for the CEO and
Chairman of the Board, the commitment to reinvest 50% of the net value of any incentive
received under the Monetary LTIP to acquire shares in the Company, not to dispose of
70% of the shares acquired during the 36 months following their purchase, and not to
dispose of 35% of the shares acquired during the 48 months following the purchase, with
the clarification that the purchase of shares by the Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer may occur either from the Company or on the market within
six months from the date of receipt of the net incentive potentially earned under the
Monetary LTIP; (b) for the other Executive Director, as he already holds shares in the
Company, lock-up commitments equivalent to those referred to in point (a) above for a
number of shares already held corresponding to 50% of the value of the net incentive
received under the Monetary LTIP.

The measurement unit with which the right to the allocation of shares (the "Units")
attributable to each beneficiary is measured was determined by the Board of Directors,

taking each person’s specific role and responsibilities into account. The percentage of
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conversion of Units into shares was instead determined by assessing the contribution that
each of the performance objectives makes to the pursuit of the objectives and the
medium- to long-term interests of the Company’s shareholders and stakeholders.

In particular, the allocation of the Units is made by the Board of Directors, which will verify
at the end of the Vesting Period whether the performance objectives have been achieved
and whether the Trigger Event has occurred.

The plan aims, on the one hand, to encourage beneficiaries to pursue the Group’s
objectives and, on the other hand, to foster loyalty among the beneficiaries for the
purpose of their retention.

The Group recognised share-settled transactions on the basis of IFRS 2, which requires
the cost of transactions to be determined on the basis of the fair value at the allocation
date. This cost is recognised under service costs and personnel costs, respectively,
together with a corresponding increase in an equity reserve, over the period in which the
service and, where applicable, performance conditions are met (the vesting period). At
each reporting date, the Company revises its assumptions on the number of shares
expected to vest and recognises the effect of the value of the shares vested during the
period by recording any change in estimate in the income statement and adjusting the
corresponding equity reserve. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has passed as well as the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit in the income statement of a
financial year represents the change in the cumulative charge recognised at the beginning
and end of the financial year.

The share allocation letters were delivered to the beneficiaries on 22 April 2024, and from
that date on, the incentive plan has produced the accounting effects for the beneficiaries
who agreed to participate in this plan.

The Group determined the value of the equity reserve at 31 December 2024 on the basis
of the provisions of the Performance Shares Regulation and IFRS 2 in the amount of EUR

183 thousand, of which EUR 157 thousand was recognised under service costs and EUR
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26 thousand under personnel costs.

It should be noted that the scope of consolidation has not changed since 31 December
2023. However, it should be noted that:

- On 1 October 2024, the merger by incorporation of the company Nian Design S.r.I.
into the parent company Cubo Design S.r.l. was carried out, based on the merger plan
approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 7 August 2024. The transaction has no
accounting effect at the consolidated level.

- on 15 October 2024, the acquisition by Dexelance S.p.A. of the remaining share
capital of the subsidiary Axo Light S.r.l. was finalised (equal to 49%); the objective of
the transaction is the continuation of the Group’s consolidation in the “Lighting”
strategic area with a view to greater organisational effectiveness and renewed

synergistic interaction between the companies belonging to this operating segment.

FORM AND CONTENT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards as well as the provisions
issued pursuant to Article 9 of Italian Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28 February 2005.

These standards comprise the set of IAS and IFRS standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB), as well as the SIC (Standing Interpretations
Committee) and IFRIC interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, which were endorsed by 31 December 2024. Any
international accounting standards endorsed after this date and before the date of
preparation of these financial statements are used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements only if early adoption is permitted by the Endorsement Regulation
and by the accounting standard being endorsed, and if the Group has exercised this

option.
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The publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Dexelance Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 was authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors
on 11 March 2025. These financial statements will be submitted to the shareholders’

meeting of Dexelance S.p.A. on 16 April 2025.

From an economic, equity and financial standpoint, the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 include the figures of the subsidiaries
(direct and indirect), adjusted where necessary, in order to align them with the accounting
principles used by the Parent Company in preparing the consolidated financial
statements, in compliance with the IFRS adopted by the European Union.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, the

Income Statement, the Comprehensive Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement, the

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, and these explanatory notes. They are also
accompanied by the Management Report.

The values shown in the financial statements are in thousands of euros; the explanatory
notes are mainly in thousands of euros, unless otherwise specified.

For the purposes of drawing up consolidated financial statements in accordance with

International Accounting Standards, the Group has adopted:

1) A format for the consolidated statement of financial position that separates current
and non-current assets and liabilities, it being understood that current refers to
assets and liabilities that are achievable in the normal operating cycle (IAS 1, para.
57), generally identified within the 12-month period following the reporting date;

2) aformat by nature for the statement of comprehensive income;

3) theindirect method for cash flows in the cash flow statement.

Expression of compliance with International Accounting Standards

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB) and transposed into European Union and Italian law via Italian
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Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28 February 2005 at the reference date of the financial
statements. The IFRS also include all revised International Accounting Standards (IAS), and
all interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

(IFRIC), formerly known as the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC).

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent
Company, Dexelance S.p.A., and the companies over which the Parent Company has the
right to exercise control, determining their financial and management decisions and
obtaining the related benefits. The companies included by means of the full consolidation
method as at 31 December 2024, in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 10, are listed

below.
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- Py o
Company name Registered office Share capital Sfrateglc % d|rect. % mdlre?t
business area ownership . ownership
Gervasoni S.p.A. Pavia di Udine (Udine) 1,000,000 furniture 100% 0%
Meridiani S.r.. Misinto (Monza and 120,000 | furniture 61.11%  38.89%
Brianza)
Meridiani France SARL Paris (France) 100,000 furniture 0% 100%
Dexelance UK Ltd. London (UK) GBP 779,950 : furniture 100% 0%
Cenacchi International S.r.l. (*) Ozzano dell'Emilia 10,000 luxury contract 99% 0%
(Bologna)
Davide Groppi S.r.l. Piacenza 20,000 lighting 100% 0%
Saba Italia S.r.I. S Martino di Lupari 50,000 furniture 100% 0%
(Padua)
Modar S.p.A. Barlassina (Monza and 500,000  luxury contract 100% 0%
Brianza)
IDB Suzhou Co. Ltd. Suzhou (China) CNY 12,456,163 : other 100% 0%
Flexalighting S.r.l. (*) Pontassieve (Florence) 10,000 lighting 51% 0%
Borman Lighting S.r.l. (*) Pontassieve (Florence) 10,000 lighting 0% 51%
Dexelance USA Corp. New York (USA) UsD 10,000 other 100% 0%
Flexalighting North America Ltd. (*) : Surrey (Canada) CAD 103 lighting 0% 26%
Gamma Arredamenti S.p.A. (*) Forli (Forli-Cesena) 2,000,000 furniture 55% 0%
Gamma Arredamenti Inc. (*) High Point (USA) usD 5,000 furniture 0% 55%
kitch
Cubo Design S.r.l. (*) Notaresco (Teramo) 84,000 itchen & 60% 0%
systems
Axo Light S.r.l. Scorze (Venice) 119,000 lighting 100% 0%
Axo Light USA Corp. New York (USA) USD 100,000 ' lighting 0% 100%
Turri S.r.l. (*) Carugo (Como) 1,000,000 furniture 51% 0%
Turri UK Ltd. (*) London (UK) GBP 10,000 : furniture 0% 51%
Turri USA Corp. (*) Miami (USA) uUsD 100 furniture 0% 51%
Shanghai Turri Furnitures (*) Shanghai (China) CNY 8,576,479 | furniture 0% 51%

(*) Fully consolidated companies due to the put and call agreement with minority shareholders,
the residual amount of which is recognised under Other current and non-current financial liabilities
(see Note 16). The Parent Company currently holds the majority 